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ABOUT THE COMPANY

Public Service Company of New Mexico (PNM) is an investor~wned utility that provides electric, gas and

water service witlun the state of New Mexico. We serve a population of approximately 1.1 million by one

or more of our utilityservices. Among the more tlun 100 communities we serve, the Albuquerque and

Santa Fe metropolitan arms are the largest.

In 1993, the Company derived 67.5 percent of its utilityoperating revenues from electric operations,

31.0 percent from natural gas operations, and 1.5 percent fiom water operations. PNM has approximately

2,600 employees.

SERVING YOUR ENERGY NEEDS
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FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

Public Senrice ("onipauy of¹ujMax/co and Subsidiaries

1993 1992 Change

Operating revenues

Operating expenses

Net earnings (loss)

Return on average common equity

Earnings Qoss) per common slure

Book value per common share at year-end

Electric:

Retail sales

Sales for resale

Total kilowatt-hour sales

$873,878,000

$740,594,000

$ (61,486,000)

(10.7P/o

$ (1.64)

$ 13.29

5,446,788,000

3,375,216,000

8,822,004,000

$ 851,953,000

$ 740,018,000

$(104,255,000)

(15.0)o/0

$ (2.67)

$ 15.00

5,358,246,000

3,685,418,000

9,043,664,000
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0.10/0
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TO MY FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS:

The theme of this annual report is straight talk about our progress. You will rmd about this

progress from members of the management team responsible for sustaining our path toward

renewed profitability for our owners, responsiveness to our customers, and fulfillmentfor our

work force.

In early 1993, the management of your Company accelerated

efforts to improve its financial health and become more

competitive. Accelerating our plan meant deciding to

restructure electric generating assets and to sell, assets not

needed to provide gas and electric utilityservices to our New

Mexico customers. 'Ihat meant shedding and revaluing excess

generation investment including, ifpossible, our interest

in Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station.

Management also made a commitment to

reduce operating costs an additional $25

million by mlucing the size of our work

force and adopting other operating

efficiencies. Further, the Company

announced its determination to

lower electric prices and improve

competitiveness.

I have said in the past there

are four measurements of your

Company's financial health: cash

flow, annual earnings level, retained

earnings, and assets disposition. The good

news: our cash flow is good. XVe've paid off

all short-term debt and have money in the



bank. Our annual operating earnings level

has improved for the fourth consecutive year.

1993 operating income is $ 133.3 million, up

19 percent, or $21.3 million over the previous

year. We signed contracts to sell assets not

directly related to providing ym and electric

services to New Mexico customers. We

completed the sale of 50 MWof San Juan

Genenting Station to Anaheim, California.

We reached agreement with an association

of Utah municipal utilities to sell an

additional 35 MW of excluded generation

froin San Juan. On the downside, we

ended the year with a significant retained

earnings deficit - the cost of getting our

electric prices more competitive and

resolving some regulatory uncertainty.

talks with reptesentatives of our traditional

regulatory adversaries and skeptics. And we

undertook a motive redesign of how we

serve customers. All the activities launched

in 1993 are propelling your Company

forward. We'e confident of attaining our

vision of becoming a competitive energy

services company which rewards its owners

for many years to come.

John T. Ackerman

Chairman of the Hoard

April 27, 1994

The decision to write down and write off

$ 108 million after taxes erases many of the

financial achievements of 1993. Hut it also

establishes a sound financial base from

which to emerge as a profitable and agile

energy services company in the inaeasingly

competitive energy services world.

Many of our accomplishments of the past

year occurred because we took a different

problem-solving path. We initiated open



DEAR SHAREHOLDER:

Five years ago this April, Public Service Company of New Mexico suspended payment of the

common dividend. Restoring shareholder value, as evidenced by share price appreciation and

payment of a common dividend, is a major corporate goal. The steps we take to mach this goal

are critical to positioning your Company for long-term viability in a more competitive industry.

"r

t

Our emphasis is on restoring financial health by improving our

capital structure and increasing competitive advantage. Both these

steps should lead to providing a sustainable dividend. As our

financial health improves with the attainment of targets

associated with improved bond ratings, we willbe in a

position to resume the common dividend.

In 1993, we took additional steps to get our financial house in

order. We found buyers for assets no longer needed by

our core customers. We reduced the size of

our work force and redesigned work

processes to create operating savings.

We sold excess generating capacity that

has dragged down yearly earnings, the

proceeds of which were used to retire

all of our short-term debt.

Equally as significant in the past

year were the lengthy discussions

held with traditional rate case

intervenors to develop a blueprint

for a successful future. These talks

resulted in an agreement to which

all parties stipulated to provide

immediate rate benefits to customers and

long-term benefits to shareholders. The

agreement is supported by the State

Attorney General's OfFice, the StafF of the

Public UtilityCommission, the City of



Albuquerque, and organizations

representing large industrial users, federal

agencies and small business owners.

growth strategy, the time in which we can

resume payment of a common dividend

willbe that much closer.

The agreement, which still requires

approval of the New Mexico Public Utility

Commission, has a number of provisions

which reduce the Company's future

financial exposure and uncertainty. It

contains a process by which we can

offer pricing fiexibilityto customers with

competitive alternatives. Of additional value

to us is the designation of Palo Verde Units

1 and 2 as "used and useful" to our New

Mexico customers, w/hach would help

assure recovery in rates. The agreement

also provides for shareholder gain in the

event of a sale of our remaining excluded

coal generating assets or a combination of

coal and nuclear asset sales. The effect of

providing ratepayers with a $30 million rate

reduction is enhanced competitiveness,

especially with our larger customers.

In the next few pages, you'l hear some

straight talk about our progress from each

member of our senior management team.

There's still much ground to cover, but I'm

confident that the actions we have taken

during 1993, and the path we'e pursuing

willoffer sustainable rewards in a more

competitive future. Thank you for your

continued interest and support.

Benjamin E Montoya

President and CEO

These steps, of course, were taken at a

price - write-downs and write-offs of $ 108

million after taxes. It's bitter but effective

medicine for what has ailed the Company.

There are indications in many quarters that

PNM is on the right track, ahead of the

wave of utilitychange. As we recapture

the confidence of our customers and the

financial community with our long-term
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Our financial performance in 1993 was decidedly mixed. Earnings from+
continuing operations were $1.15/sltare compared to S.73/sltare in 1992. Yet,

the Company sustained a loss of $1.64/share. Tltis resulted from writ~ffs totaling $108 million after taxes. Itfost
of the loss stems fmm a wntWown of our ownership interest in Palo Verde Units 1 and 2 to Q$5/kW as part of
the plan to lower our electric prices.

Operating revenues increased 2.6 peKent over 1992, reflecting the growth in our service territory. Improved
operating cash flow, supplemented by asset sale proceeds, allowed us to pay offall of our short-term debt.

Q. When willPNM resume paying a common dividend?

A. It'lbe a while yet. First, our retained earnings deficit must be erased. We also must restructure some
remaining assets and refinance and reduce debt. Tlus willbe occumng as we work to mitigate competitive and
other risks. In other words, we'e taking the long-range view toward building shareholder value so tltat dividend
reinstatement is sustainable. Tliere is no other way to do it responsibly.

Q. How is reducing and refinancing debt going to help the Company restore the common dividend?

A. As we move into a more competitive era, leverage increases risk and limits our flexibility.The bond rating
agencies recognize tlus and liave rated our debt accordingly. In order to improve our

bond ratings we must reduce our debt and continue to improve our operating earnings
and cash flow. These are also appropriate goals for our re-emergence as a healthy,
dividend-paying company.

We managed in 1993 to refinance high cost pollution control bonds for an annual
savings of $5.5 million. Our focus now has tumed to refinancing the offbalance
sheet Palo Verde lmse bonds which can not be accomplished with our current,

below investment grade bond ratings.

Q. What is PNM's cash position and is it strong enough to meet your
gmwth demands?

A. PNM now enjoys a healthy cash position which Itas been
suflicient to meet growth.related construction demands. Our
operating cash flow is expected to exceed our consuuction

requirements over the next several yeats.

Q. What sort of response did the Company receive from the
investment community to the framework filing
A. Generally, the response was favorable. One reason is tltat
the Stipulation, ifapproved, would mean less uncertainty about
PNM's future. As we diminish risks and prepare for the reality of
competition, PNM willbecome more attractive to the investment
community. The filingand the support it has among key players
in New Mexico inspires confidence tliat the Company is

proceeding down the correct path.

Max hfaerItI- Senior triceRmk&trand QzkfFfnancial Ogicer
His reslmnst>ility is to help return the Company to financial ltealth

and optimum ctpitalization.



We'e reached agreement for the sale of 35 1vAV of San Juan Generating
+

Station Unit 4 to Utah Association of b funicipal Power Systems (UAMPS). We

believe the Public UtilityCommission willmake its decision on approval of the sale by mid-year. Tltis

tnnsaction, taken together with our 1993 sale of 50? IW to the City of Anaheim, California, willreduce the

losses incurred beatusc of excluded capacity.

We'e signed a contract to sell the Sangre de Cristo Water Company to the City of Santa Fe for $48.25 million

and we'l contract with the City to opente the water system for a fee. We'e also ached an accord to sell

our wholesale gas gathering and processing assets in the San Juan and Permian basins for $155 million. The

disposition of these assets is part of a long-term strategy to focus on our core utilitybusiness and become more

agile as the assets tliat remain willcnliance our competitive positioning.

Q. Wltat about Palo Verde? Isn't tltis the power plant tltat's been the real financial problem for the Company?

A. Our goal to sell, ifpossible, some of our interest in Palo Verde, is unclianged from a year ago. There have

been expressions of interest, but until current openting issues are resolved, an outright sale is not likely. We'e

not sitting still until then. We'e pursuing a variety of &csh power marketing opportunities including Mexim,
which may help us "rightsizc" our genention mix. In 1993, we made two more energy sales in addition to

two existing regional sales contncts.

Part of the Stipulation pending before the PUC rcmIpuzes Palo Verde Units 1 and 2 as "used

and useful" for our New Mexico customers. The designation would bring greater

certainty of cost remvery. Ifour interest in the two units is ever sold or otherwise

removed from ntcs, the Stipulation would provide additional cost rcmveiy protections

intended to keep our investors whole.

Q. 'Ihc Stipulation asks for a 6.4 percent, or $30 million, nte reduction. Isn'

reducing ntes in direct conflict with restoring dividends?

A. Customers were demanding lower, more competitive eleaiicity prices. In
exchange for tlus reduction, the Company willbe assured of a mechanism to

smoothly tnnsition out of its monopoly status and into the more flexibl
environment of energy choice. Lowering prices now also reduces our

exposure to future adverse regulatory intervention. TItis is essential

ifPNM is to reposition itself as a flexibl and competitive energy
services company. The provision of the Stipulation outlining

regulatory treatment of future asset sales or Palo Verde lease

refinancing is especially beneficial for shareholders in the

long-term. 'Ihc proposed rate reduction, in context with other
benefits of the Stipulation, removes much of the fitnncial

uncertainty about the future earnings of PNM. It's a

fair tnde with benefits for all parties.

Q. Wliat other benefits are in thc Stipulation?

A. TIte Stipulation is a fnmework for a new
business'nd

regulatory platform for PNM. Ifapproved by
the Commission, considenble business risks willbe

diminished. It may help us restructure certain assets

so we can offer more competitive prices. Its benefits

wiH be immediate for customers in terms of a nte
reduction and long-term for shareholders whose investment

is more secure.

Jeff Sterba- Suitor VlccPtrsttImtt, Coqxmte lkmloptnett
His responsibilities indudc stntegic phnning and dircaing the

sales or testiuauting of excess gennation and non~ assets.
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Transmission and distribution operations realized combined savings of+
approximately $8.5 million tltmugh work force reductions and new ways of

doing business. Streamlining of pmcedures and organization was accomplished by centralization ofwalk-in
customer services and installation of the new centralized Albuquerque Phone Center. AllPNM employees,
whether on the telephones or reading meters or working on high voltage transmission lines, are Icaming to be
more cost~nscious, more customer-focused and more market4riven. The voluntary severance program along
with our efforts to engineer the way we provide services offered some significant improvements, but we'e
not going to stop looking for economies or efficiencies now. We have to do more to demonstrate a
commitment to lower prices and better customer service.

Q. Has PNM's safety record been compromised during rco~nization?

A. No. Our safety record has actually improved slightly in several areas. For example, 1993 saw a reduction in
uses related to Worker's Compensation claims. And the Les Vegas Division passed the 10-year mark without a
single lost-time injury. It should go without saying tlut safety continues to be a top priority.

Q. Your arm is responsible for providing the basics - reliable energy services tltat are there at the command of
thc customer. Customers, particularly larger ones, are more demanding titan ever. How are you delivering on
those expectations?

A. Operations is responsible for delivering on the promises made by our marketing groups. As part of tltls,
PNM hm renewed a commitment to assist its large customers like Kirtiand AirForce Base and Intel

Corporation with energy management expertise. 'Ibis goes beyond enhancing our facilities
to maintaining reliable power supply and offering applications of complex and develop-
ing technologies. Operations and marketing personnel are involved in a couple of
important projects. We'e studying fuel cell technology with Kirtland and the Gas
Researd> Institute. We'e pursuing an electro-tedtnology demonstration experiment
with the City ofAlbuquerque and thc Electric Power Researdt Institute to remove
arsenic from drinking water. The re-engineering of the way we work willallow us
to handle the healthy growth rate of our service territory.

Q. Wltat does it mean to be "Ncw Mexico's energy services supplier?"

A. Fundamentally, the simple "one size fits all" utilitymarketplace
is a tlung of the past. As PNM becomes more sophisticated,

both from a tedmological and customer service viewpoint,
we willbe able to segment services into smaller and smaller
packages. XVe may even be able to deliver energy choices
via the telecommunications network —the socalled "smart
house" of the future. The end result of tlus value-added
approach willbe an enltanced menu of energy services
from whidt all customers large and small may choosc-
the energy highway. By adding value for our customers,
we willcreate value for our sltareholders.

HiIIReal - SmrIor VkvPmddbri, WIr'lyOpemrie rs

I le is responsible for reliable delivery of gas and
electric services.
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Inst year we asked our customers to tell us diicaly what they needed froln us,

where we may have failed in the Ixtst to provide the kind of services they

expected, and how better Ixutnersltips could be developed to the benefit of us all. We found validation for a renewed

customer orientation.

We rco~ into distinct market segments, each segment devoted to a certain cd or kind of customer and to

delivering energy management expertise to the segments, whether residential, commerdal or industrie.

Q. Wlut does tlus mnn from thc customer's viewpoint'.

A. It means our electric and gas divisions are more responsive to our customers'nergy needs. We'e now in the

business of trying to say "Yes" to our customers. As our menu ofenergy services expands —from the basics, or "mre",

to specialized energy m~~gement semces called "valumdded" services —we'e developing meaningful partneisltips

with our customers. Restoring slutcholder value willdepend on building and retaining solid customer rcLationships in a

more competitive future.

A good example of the changes we'e talking about is our relationship with Intel Corporation. Intel, the Lugest,

most successful miaodtip maker in the world, is building a new dtip manufaauring plant in AlbuqueKtue. Intel's

sophisticated, sensitive equipment requires the highest possible quality of power. 'Ihe slightest onwenth of a semnd
"blip" in one of their 24-hour a day work shifts can ruin all the produas on the ploduaion line. PNM's new standard

of customer service is devoted to avoiding such costly problems. Comlxiny personnel are avaiLable to Intel and our
business customers 24 hours a day. And we work dosely withIReal's opentions area to assure delivery of lclLable,

unvarying power at all times.

Q. How luvc customers lcaaed to the proposed rate
reductio@'.

Most customers like the prospm of lower ntcs. Ihe/ve d~ tltis as a dear
demonstntion tlut PNM has been listening and acting on their concerns. They
understand, of course, tlut the propel still must receive lcguLatory approval.

Q. Wlut else are you doing to improve customer service and how are slureholders

going to benefit?

A. In 1993, we fomullyasked the Public UtilityCommission to allow us to
consolidate gas and electric customer services. We believe merging duplicated services

such as meter-ruing, billing and phone systems, is convenient for our customcls

and will reduce costs. Transforming ourselves into a snulter, leaner, less complicated

and more apploaduble energy services company bcndits slt~reholders and

customers alike.

We'e also meeting the Company's contributions to the state'

quality of life. 'Iltiough our gas division, PNM is a nujor promoter of
compressed tutunl gas (CNG) as a veltide fuel. We'e successfully

assisted in numerous vehicle mnversion plognms. For instance,

the Santa Fe city tnnsit system lus gone 100 peKcnt CNG. We'e

helping other state and fedenl governments implement mmdates
to convert their fleets to alternative fuels.

Allofour prognms are designed to capture our area's growth
and genente additiolul revenues assocLated with ncw pmlucts
alld sclvlccs.

,k

Phyllis Boulquc —Senior Vice Aaddbit,
h!angering 6 Qutnnei Scmfm
Shc is rcslmnsiblc for Pioviding gas and clcaric customers with
excellent sclvKc %xi IlltlodUclAgAcw PlodUcfs alxl scNlccs to glow
OUf ICVCllUCS.
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Bringing our base load and peaking genemtion supplies into balance with
local energy demands is going to take more time. In the seventies, the

Southwest saw'teady economic expansion. PNM planned accordingly, investing in new capacity, induding Palo
Verde Nuclear Generating Station. The recession of the early eighties, along with a collapse in oil and gas prices,
iesu! ted in too much system base-Iced capacity. We were able to reduce coal-fired expansion, but we were
committed to Palo Verde. Ifour area growth remains healthy, ifadditional regional wholesale contracts can be
signed, and ifour marketing programs are successful, we should be able to utilize all of our capacity by the
mid-to-late 1990s.

Q. XVIiat's the current situation at Palo Verde'?

A. All tluee Palo Verde Units cunently are operating at reduced capacity fonowing the 1993 discovery of steam
generator tube problems in Palo Verde Unit 2. Unit 3 should return to 100 percent power in mid-1994, Unit 1 in
mid-1995. Palo Verde Unit 2, scheduled to return to service late March, 1994, willcontinue to iun at reduced
capacity. Unit 2 will requite additional inspections prior to returning to full power in 1995/1996 with the full
cooperation of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. 11ie nuclear facility represents diversity in generation mix.
For tliis reason, it may be attractive to other utilities seeking generation diversity.

Q. Wliat is being done to control coal generation costs>

A. Two tltings: lower fuel costs and redesigning the way we work the plant. We are now operating the
San Juan Generating Station with approximately 600 employees compared with more than 900 just a few years
ago. During 1993 a cost improvement process identified $5.3 million in additional operating efficiencies. In 1992
we renegotiated our coal puKItase contract to provide direct cost reduction and
incentives ifwe exceed minimum purchases. Operating agreement modifications
provide incentive among the plant's participants to increase usage of San Juan
power. As a footnote, Arizona Public Service Company, the operator of Four
Comers Generating Station, has recently implemented a similar cost
improvement program. l

Q. Can you give us an update on the transmission situation'?

A. Right now, the Company is operating in a transmission constrained" mode
We need additional transmission capability as a cost-effective alternative to local
power generation. We'e addtessing transmission siting issues and
negotiated right-way with individuals, governments and various
Native American tribes. A year ago we pledged to take a fresh
look at the OLE (Ojo Une Extension) project designed to ensure
reliability in Northern New Mexico. We engaged in good faith ' '. '::jIl

discussions, but no reasonable alternatives acceptable to all
parties have been found.

Q. Can you summarize the power supply outlook for PNM?

A. We'l continue efforts to balance electric genemtion
among all available fuel sources and to rightsize these
resources to match system needs. Our goal is to maximize
the utilizat1on of resources we own or control, and make
PNM a strong competitor in the energy marketplace. We'e
making progress.

Jerry Godwln —Se thor Vke Prn&ntt, Pacer Supply Rmercel
His goal is to balance optimum power production and delivery with
innovative new ways to increase eAicicncy and reduce costs.

I3alance is the opeiative word.
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We decided to pursue a course called voluntary severance. Tlus left career
+

choice up to each employee. It was felt tltat because there were some in the

work force who were ready to re&ad or pursue other interests, the Voluntary Severance Plan was the most fair.

Giving the decision to each individual seemed appropriate. It also resulted in improved morale of those who

decided to stay. Remaining positions were redesigned to better meet the ComIxtny's needs.

Q. What were the results of the program?

A. A total of 523 employees left the Company. Tlrls was consistent with cost process improvement goals, and of

the initial $23.3 million severance pay expense, all but $ 10.6 millionwas recovered in 1993. Employees left from

every level of the Company (union workers were not eligible for the plan), so rightsizing had good balance with

no deuimental effect on our AfFirmative Action profile. PNM's work force stood at 2,619 at year end.

Q. Did voluntary severance disrupt service or compromise operations?

A. No. Initially, we expanded our use of skilled part@me workers and we conuacted outside services when

needed, but ovenll, our employees rose to the challenge of working harder and more effectively. Certainly the

clranges associated with rightsizing our work force were dilFicult for many employees, but benuse of advanced

planning, there was no measurable "blip" in our service.

Q. How is PNM training the work force to take up the slack~

A. By engineering the Comlxtny. We'e examining every job to assure it contributes to

meeting customer needs and becoming more competitive. Many employees lrad to leam

new skills and perform new duties within the Company. In a very real sense, PNM is

demanding more from each employee and most have met the challenge.

Q. How are PNM officers being held accountable following mcngineering?

A. In lieu of salary merit increases for two years, there is now a Performance y 'g f
Stock Option Plan for the oAicers and top 125 managers. Stock options are

tied to Company performance in two areas: earnings-per-sliare and customer

samfamon. tyben stock options am earned by meenng comtatny goals, tbey

may not be exercised for tltree years. Although improvement was made, 1993 j
goals were not met so no options were granted.

Q. How would you describe PNMs rehtionsVip with its major union?

A. The relationship is improving. In January we particilxtted

in a threoday workshop on improving labor/management
relations led by a facilitator from Cornell University. Eight

PNM managers attended, as did 11 International Brotherhood

of Electrical Workers OB&V) leaders. We focused on
removing barriers to successful labor/management relations.

Both sides are now more positively prepared for contntct

negotiations. I see this as a step toward long-term
improvement of tlus union relationslup.

Judy Zmotti- Vke Pmsidbrr, Hu>rum Resource

She formulates personnel and benefits policies to retain and
motivate the Company's employees. She is also a key member

of PNM's union negotiating teun.

11



A year ago we said we'd tltrow open the windows and doors and talk to
our customers and the oqpnizations inteiested in our business. With tins filing,

we chose to emphasize collaboration in seeking solutions to our pressing challenges. We placed every card on
the table befom filing the nse with the Public UtilityCommission. The more informal setting and less advemnal
attitudes stimulated the parties'uccessful search for the common ground. The results have been two-fold:
improved relationships with regulators and inteivenors and cost-savings tluough avoided litigation.
Collaboration is definitely the way to get work done.

Q. Wltat is the significance of the proposal to eliminate the monthly fuel adjustment clause?

A. The request would eliminate fuel price uncenainty for our customers, particularly large commercial and
indusuial customers whose businesses need more predictable energy costs. By removing fuel price adjustments,
our customers become more competitive, and tliat's good for us. Elimination of the provision is possible
because of modifications to fuel purdtase contntcts and improved fuel cost stability. These changes add to
our ability to retain these large customers and mitigate the risk that they willseek alternate supplies given
the choice.

Q. What's the status of the franchise with the City of Albuquerque?

A. During 1993 PNM assured the City ofAlbuquerque tltat the Company would continue to pay franchise
fees at the same level as the expired agreement. Remember tliat in New Mexico, a francltise is not a "right to
provide service" but a rightwf-way agreement. The right and obligation to serve originates with certiTication
by the PUC. PNM continues to pay for access to public rightsof-way in Albuquerque and is committed to
resolving outstanding issues with the City.

Q. The in-house law department was established in 1991. Wltat effect has tltis had?

A. Having an in-house law department has and willcontinue to drive down legal
costs and improve the overall quality of legal services provided to the Company. In
1993, PNM legal costs decreased 19 percent, or $2.6 million. A recent utility indusuy

study indicates an average company of our size can be expected to spend about
$4.5 million annually on legal services. Our legal costs are still too high- $8.7 million
budgeted for 1994. Wlule much of these costs are driven by naemal forces, we'e
working to reduce legal risks by implementing preventive law programs and seeking

alternatives to litigation.

Y

. 0,"

Q. Has the in-house law department offset the ne4 for
independent counsel?

A. No. It wouldn't be prudent for us to build a law
department that completely eliminated the need for outside
legal assistance. External legal services and certain specializede~ are required in some instances. We now have in
place methods and procedures to procure outside services
in the most economical manner.

Pat Orth —SenSr VlccPm>!dbu RqyikuoryRo?ky,
Gmreml Counsel aud Soeietary
His depaitments lntena with various ieguhtory agencies and
represent Phd in regulatory and legal pigs. He is also
responsible for shareholder records, securities compliance and
assisting the Board of Diiectors.
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One yardstick is the press coverage PNM receives. 1993 showed improvement
+

compared with 1992. The Company was mentioned less often and when it

was mentioned, we were less the object of contmversy. In short, the Company's positive contributions to the state'

communities are being recogrtized and our motives are less frequently challenged.

Q. How do cttstomers see PNM?

A. Results of a recent public opinion survey of PNM's performance show an improvement in the number of

people who think PNM provides good electric customer service. People who tltink PNM "does a good job of

communicating with its customers" rose by 3 percent. And finally, the number ofAlbuquerque electric customers

who tlunk PNM "is trustworthy and believable" incmsed by nine percentage points over the previous year. These

are significant improvements. The Company's gas division continues to be highly regarded by its customers.

Q. Why is public perception of PNM getting better?

A. New Mexicans'elationsltip with PNM is a matter of trust. In 1993, the Company undertook several major steps

in response to customer and community needs, delivering on commitments made by John Ackeiman in January of

1993. As we continue to pursue goals of price reduction and quality service, the public is acknowledging our efforts

with Vigher marks. We'e on the right path. We need to continue to perform. There's simply no substitute for

results.

Q. Wltat is retail wheeling and what is the status of legislation in New Mexico?

A. Retail wheeling is a concept which would permit a utility's customers to buy their

electric supplies from someone other titan their local utility. Tltmughout 1993, an

interim legislative committee met to leam about the electric utility industry and

analyze the potential impacts of retail wheeling. TItey listened to utilities'ositions

tltat numerous outstanding issues must be resolved for retail wheeling to work.

They include: treatment of transition costs, pricing flexibility,marketing reciprocity,

and small customer protections. TIte panel will report its finding and make

recommendations to the full legislature in January 1995. Public Service Company still

holds the position that unconstrained retail wheeling would be harmful to the majority

of our customers. Iflarge customers were to leave our system, smaller customers could

see lugher prices benuse fixed costs would be spread over a smaller customer base.

Q. Can you comment on PNM's future from your perspaive?

A. I'm optimistic because there is increasing support for PNM from government
officialand our customers. New Mexicans want PNM to mcstablish itself as a

financially sound and involved member of the state's economic and

social fabric.

blare Cltristensen —Vice Pimfdmrr, RrMk repairs
He monitors public opinion and attitudes and represents the

Company in the media and communities we serve. He also

directs PNM's governmental relations.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

, c
i

John T. Ackerman
Cbabman oftbe Board
Heacd to the Bcurtt June 1990
Quir, Excouthe Commince.

Joyce A. Godwin
Former Vkettstdent and Scmeuy, Prcrb3rerfan
Iftfdtberne Sertfees, Retired
Heaed to the Boartb hby 19ti9. hbrugcmcntDct~ and Ccmpensatxn ~cc; Chair,
Nomiruting Comminee; Quir, Ccrpxate and Public
Rcslmxtstlxiay Committee; Bcccuthe Comminee.

Robert M. Price
Fornxr Chairman and CEO, Qmtrcf&rta
Xponrtfmh Retired
Heacd to the Boartb July 1992
Quir Ftrunce Comminee hbrugcmctx
Dcselopmcot and Gxnpenmtion Commbce.

Reyreldo (uReynie") U. Ottiz
Senbr ytre~ Jones Ibranctal
Gtltp Inc, Ettgkrtrxxf, CO
Heaal to the Boartl April 1992
Audit Comminee, ~e and PuMc
Rmtxesil&y Comminee.

Paul F. Roth
Former prcrtdertt, Greater Dallas Cbamber of
Commerce Rettrrrf
Heaed to the Boartb hby 1991
Exccuthe Commbce, hbtugcmcrx
Development arxl Compcnsticn Commince,
Firunce Comminee, Nontituting Committee.

anat
anal
naal

Robert G. Armstrong
Pestdent ArmtootrgEnergy Corponatott,
Rosrtett Atrtrhlcxko
Hcaed to the Boattl hby 1991
hbrugcmex De~ and Gxnpcrtsation
Comminee; Quir, Audit Commince;
Exertxhe Commerce.

I,

I

Retirements/Resignation
of Directors in 1993:
RR. Reltder

Retired 5/25/93

Claude L belundecker
Retired 10/2593

Vickie Fislter
Resigned 12/8/93
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Benjamin F. Montoya
Presfdertt and CEO
Heaed to tlte Boartl September 1993
Fnunce Comminee.

Lturence H. Ltttman
Former Prestdettt Mtu.tfcxkoIrtttttrtteofltlbtlrtg
atrd yeebrtofogy, Ren'red
Hcacd to the Bcartb hby 1993
Auda Commince, Gxporate and PuMc Rcsponskx1ity
Commince, Nominating~



OFFICERS

Benjamin I. Montoya
President and CEO

(1), age 58

Max H. Maerki
Senior Vice President and CltiefPlnancial Officer
(10), age 54

Jeff E. Sterba
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development .„

(16), age 38

williamJ. Real
Senior Vice President, UtilityOperations
(15), age 45

M. Phyllis Bourque
Senior Vice President, Marketing and Customer
Services

(6), age 46

Jerry L Godwin
Senior Vice President, Power Supply Resources

(13), age 51

Judith A. Zanotti
Vice President, Human Resources

(8), age 55

Patrick T. Ortiz
Senior Vice President, Regulatory Policy, General
Counsel &Secretary

(2), age 44

Mare D. Christensen
Vice President, Public Affairs
(2), age 45

Alfonso R. Lujan
Vice President, Electric Transmission and
Distribution Services

(21), age 45

Terry D. Rister
Vice President, Gas Distribution Services

(22), age 42

Edwin A. Kraft
Vice President, Customer Services

(23), age 45

Lawrence D. Ratliff
Vice President, Engineenng and Teduucal Services

(19), age 47

Patrick J. Goodman
Vice President, Power Production
(21), age 44

John Renner
Vice President, Gas Supply Sourcing

0), age 65

Michael C. Slota
Vice President, Water Operations
(20), age 47

Donna M. Burnett
Corporate ContmHer and Chief Accounting OAicer
(14), age 40

MitchellJ. Marzec
Treasurer

(18), age 46

() Years of service with the Company or a company-

conuolled aiftliate. Ages and yeats of service as of
Mardt 1, 1994.
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"Greater efficiency, cheaper rates

broadaxe services and improved reliahility

the makings ofa resounding hit among consumers

are pushing the once staid -utilityindustry

toeboard a new era in
competition and invention. "

John Naisbitt's
Trend

Letter'ebruary

3, 1994

'ohn Yaisbitt's 7)mtd letter,

bysshe

GloM Network 1101 30th St., NW, Wasltlngton, D.G 20007
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

THE COMPANY,

Public Service Company ofNew Mexico (the "Company") was incorporated in the State ofNew Mexico
iri 1917 and has its principal offices at Alvarado Square, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87158 (telephone number
505-848-2700). The Company is a public utilityengaged in the generation, transmission, distribution and sale
of electricity and in the gathering, processing, transmission, distribution and sale of natural gas within the
State of New Mexico. The Company also owns facilities for the pumping, storage, transmission, distribution

, and sale of water in Santa Fe, New Mexico.
N

,On January 11, 1993, the Company announced its intention to dispose of the Company's natural gas
, gathering and natural gas processing assets and SDCW. On February 12, 1994, an agreement was executed
for the sale of substantially all of the gas gathering and processing assets of Gathering Company and
Processing Company and for the sale of the Northwest and Southeast gas gathering and processing facilities
of GCNM. On February 28, 1994, the Company and the City of Santa Fe signed a purchase and sale
agreement for the sale of the Company's water utility division. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—
"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS
OF OPERATIONS—Sale ofGas Gathering and Processing Assets" and "—Sale ofSDCW.")

w

~ The total population of the area served by one or more of the Company's utilityservices is estimated to
be approximately 1.1 million, of which 52.0% live in the greater Albuquerque area.

For the year ended December 31, 1993, the Company derived 67.5% of its utility operating revenues
from electric operations, 31.0% from natural gas operations and 1.5% from water operations.

As ofDecember 31, 1993, the Company employed 2,619 persons.

Financial information relating to amounts of revenue and operating income and identifiable assets
attributable to the Company's industry segments is contained in Note 12 of the notes to consolidated financial
statements.



ELECTRIC OPERATIONS

Service Area and Customers

The Company's electric operations serve four principal markets. Sales to retail customers and sales to
firm-requirements wholesale customers, sometimes referred to collectively as "system" sales, comprise two of
these markets. The third market consists ofother contracted sales to utilities for which the Company commits
to deliver a specified amount ofcapacity (measured in MW)or energy (measured in MWh)over a given period
of time. The fourth market consists ofeconomy energy sales made on an hourly basis to utilities at fluctuating,
spot-market rates. Sales to the third and fourth markets are sometimes referred to collectively as "off-system"
sales.

The Company provides retail electric service to a large area ofnorth central New Mexico, including the
cities of Albuquerque, Santa Fe, Rio Rancho, Las Vegas, Belen and Bernalillo. The Company also provides
retail electric service to Deming in southwestern New Mexico and to Clayton in northeastern New Mexico.
As of December 31, 1993, approximately 313,000 retail electric customers were served by the Company, the
largest of which accounted for approximately 3.6% of the Company's total electric revenues for the year
ended December 31, 1993.

1

The Company holds 23 long-term, non-exclusive franchise agreements for its electric retail operations,
expiring between August 1996 and November 2028. The City of Albuquerque (the "City") franchise expired
in early 1992. Customers in the area covered by the City franchise represent approximately 46.0% of the
Company's 1993 total electric operating revenues, and no other franchise area represents'more than 7.0%.
These franchises are agreements that provide the Company access to public rights-of-way for placement of
the Company's electric facilities. The Company remains obligated under state law to provide service to
customers in the franchise area even in the absence of a franchise agreement with the City. (See PART'II,
ITEM7.—"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONAND

, RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—Albuquerque Franchise
Issues".)

Power Sales

For the years 1989 through 1993, retail KWh sales have grown at a compound annual rate of
approximately 3.1%. However, the growth rate has been lower than had been anticipated at the time the
Company committed to construct new generating units in the 1970's. As a result, the Company has excess
capacity and has marketed most of such capacity in the off-system sales market. Additionally, the Company
is attempting to ~ reduce its excess capacity through asset sales. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—
"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS
OF OPERATIONS—OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—Excess Capacity Sales/Wholesale
Power Market".) The Company has contracted to sell and continues to market power at prices which only
recover variable costs and a portion of the fixed costs of its excess capacity. Remaining energy produced by
excess capacity is then sold in the economy energy market at prices which average only slightly above
incremental operating costs. The Company's system and off-system sales (revenues and energy consumption)
and system peak demands in summer and winter are shown in the following tables:

ELECTRIC SALES BY MARKET
(Thousands of dollars)

1993 1992

$471,099 $455,387
18,468 20,173

56,214t 62,348
25,2131'0,770

Retail
Firm-requirements wholesale
SPS contract .

Other contracted off-system sales ............
Economy energy sales~ .

1991 1999 1999

$444,594 $427,505 $413,644
22,390 25,739 27,679

109,773
55,581 70,640 52,804
29,665 26,052 14,507



ELECTRIC SALES BY MARKET
(Megawaff hours)

1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

Retail .

Firm-requirements wholesale................
SPS contract
Other contracted off-system sales...'..........
Economy energy

sales',446,788
5,358,246

342,137 322,177

1,450,966 1,198,250
1,582,113 2,164,991

5,139,954 5,048,830 4,909,592
308,390 376,040 397,792

1,618,694
1,223,212 1,743,196 1,079,972
1,559,939 1,378,270 735,558

Pursuant to FERC Order No. 529, all spot market economy sale transactions were reclassified from net
purchased power to revenue.

Due to the provision for the loss associated with the M-S-R contingent power purchase contract
recognized in 1992, revenues from other contracted oF-system sales and economy energy sales were
reduced by a total of $20.5 million. (See Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.)

Summer .

Wmter ..........

SYSTEM PEAK DEMAND~
(Mega waff)

t 1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

1,104 1,053 1,018 1,051 1,006
982 992 955 897 896

System peak demand relates to retail and firm-requirements wholesale markets only.

During 1993 and 1992, the Company's sales in the off-system markets accounted for approximately 34.4
percent and 37.2 percent, respectively, of its total KWh sales and approximately 17.2 percent (before
reduction of revenues from the M-S-R contingent power purchase contract, which were accounted for in the
determination of the provision for loss recorded in 1992) and 17.8 percent, respectively, of its total revenues
from energy sales. During 1993, the Company's major oF-system sale contracts in effect were with SDG&E,
APPA, AEPCO, IID and PSCo,

The SDG&E contract requires SDG&E to purchase 100 MW from the Company through April 2001.
On October 27, 1993, SDG&E filed'a complaint with the FERC against the Company, alleging that certain
charges under this 1985 power purchase agreement are unjust, unreasonable and unduly discriminatory.
SDG&E is requesting that the FERC investigate the rates charged under the agreement and establish a refund
date effective as of December 26, 1993. The relief, ifgranted„would reduce annual demand charges paid by
SDG&E by up to $ 11 million per year from the effective refund date through April2001, subject to certain
limitations if the FERC has not acted within 15 months.- The Company responded to the complaint on
December 8, 1993, and SDG&E and the Company filed subsequent pleadings. The Company believes that
the complaint is without merit, and the Company intends to vigorously resist the complaint.

The APPA contract requires APPA to purchase varying amounts of power from the Company through
May 2008. Under the terms of the agreement, APPA willincrease its purchase starting June 1, 1994 from 33
MW. to 89 MW, decreasing in October 1994 to 74 MW. The AEPCO contract requires AEPCO to purchase
from 9 MW to 15 MW of power through May 31, 1994, depending upon AEPCO's customer requirements.
The IID contract requires IID to purchase 56 MW of power from the Company through February 1995 and
an additional 25 "MWof power in the months of April through October during the term of the contract. On
April27, 1993, PSCo and the Company entered into an agreement whereby the Company willsell 75 MW of
capacity and associated energy to,PSCo from October 1, 1993 through September 30, 1994.

The Company furnishes firm-requirem'ents wholesale power in New Mexico to the cities of Farmington
and Gallup, TNP and Plains.'Plains may terminate its contract for 10 MW at any time with one year'
advance notice. The Company expects to receive a termination notice from Plains but cannot predict the



timing of such notice. In February 1993, the Company began a new 10 year firm power contract with the
City of GaHup. Under terms of its contract, TNP has increased its purchase, beginning January 1994, from a

peak of 25 MW to 36 MW. No firm-requirements wholesale customer accounted for more than 1.4% of the
Company's total electric operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 1993.

For other information concerning the competitive conditions affecting off-system sales, see PART II,
ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONAND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—Excess Capacity
Sales/Wholesale Power Market".

I'ources

of Power

As ofDecember 31, 1993, the total net generation capacity of facilities owned or leased by the Company
was 1,541 MW. The Company's electric generating stations in commercial, service as of December 31, 1993,

were as follows:

Tspe

Nuclear ~

Coal
Coal
Gas/Oil ~

Gas/Oil ~
.". ~....,, .

I/ Name

PVNGS (a)
SJGS (b)
Four Corners (c)
Reeves (d)
Las Vegas (d)

Location

Wintersburg, Arizona
Waterfiow, New Mexico
Fruitland, New Mexico
Albuquerque, New Mexico
Las Vegas, New Mexico

Net MW
Generation
Capably

390
785
192
154
20

1,541

~ I P ~ ~

1

(a) The Company is entitled to 10.2% of the power and energy generated by PVNGS. The Company has a

10,2% ownership interest in Unit 3 and has leasehold interests in Units 1 and 2 (see ITEM 2.—
"PROPERTIES —ELECTRIC—¹clear Plant" ).

(b) SJGS. Units 1, 2 and 3 are 50% owned by the Company; SJGS Unit 4 is 45.485% owned by the
Company.

(c) Four Corners Units 4 and 5 are 13% owned by the Company.

(d) These stations are us'ed for peaking capacity and transmission support requirements only.

- In addition,'the Company has power purchase contracts with M-S-R'for 105 MW through April 1995

and with SPS for up to 100 MW of interruptible power through April 1995"'and up to 200 MW from May
1995 through May 2011. The Company may reduce its purchases from SPS by 25 MW annually upon three
years'otice. Also, the Co'mpany has 39 MW of contingent capacity obtained from El Paso under a

transmission capacity for generation capacity trade arrangement. In addition,'he Company is interconnected
with various utilities for economy interchanges and "mutual assistance in emergencies.

Fuel and Water Supply

The percentages of the Company's generation ofelectricity (on the basis ofKWh) fueled by coal, nuclear
fuel and„gas and oil, and the average costs to the Company of those fuels (in cents per million BTU), during
the past five years were as follows:

Coal Nuclear* " 'as and Oll
Percent of Average Percent of Average "'ercent of Average

1989 . 89.3 139.3 10.3 76.3 0.4 364.1

1990 . 74.6 152.0 25.2 73.1 0.2 310.3

1991 . 67.1 167.9 32.9 - '7.9 — 216.5

1992
' ''69.2 161.7 30.5 59;8 '.3 . 239.7

1993 . . 72.9 164.7. 26.7 58.1 OA, 331.7



The estimated generation mix for, 1994 is 74.4% coal, 25.3%%uo nuclear and 0.3% gas and oil. Due to
locally available natural gas and oil supplies, the utilization oflocally available coal deposits and the generally
abundant supply of nuclear fuel, the Company believes that adequate sources of fuel are available for its
generating stations.

Coal

The coal requirements for SJGS are being supplied by SJCC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of BHP, from
certain Federal, state and private coal leases under a coal sales agreement, pursuant to which SJCC,will

supply processed coal for operation of SJGS until 2017. BHP guaranteed the obligations of SJCC under the

agreement, which contemplates the'delivery of approximately 132 million tons of coal during its remaining
term. Such amount would sup'ply substantially all the requirements'of SJGS through approximately 2017.

The primary sources of coal are a mine adjacent to SJGS and a mine located approximately 25 miles northeast
of SJGS in the La Plata area of northwestern New Mexico. The average cost of fuel, including ash disposal
and land reclamation costs, for SJGS for the years 1991, 1992 and 1993 was 183'.3 cents, 175.5 cents and

177.4 cents, respectively, per millionBTU ($36.63, $34.28 and $34.59 per ton, respectively).

Four Corners is supplied with coal under a fuel agreement between the owners and BHP, under which
BHP agreed to supply all the coal requirements for the life of the plant. BHP holds a long-term coal mining
lease, with options for renew'al, from the Navajo Nation and operates a strip mine adjacent to Four Corners
with the coal supply expected to be sufficient to supply the units for their estimated useful lives. 'She average

cost of fuel, including ash disposal and land reclamation costs, for the years 1991, 1992 and 1993 at Four
Corners was 112.6 cents, 114.3 cents and 114.9 cents, respectively, per million BTU ($ 19.94, $20.19 and

$20.11 per ton, respectively).

Natural Gas

The natural gas used as fuel for the Company's Albuquerque electric generating plant (Reeves) is

delivered by GCNM. (See "NATURALGAS OPERATIONS".) In addition to rate changes under filed
tariffs, the Company's cost of gas increases or decreases according to the average cost of gas supplied by
GCNM or other sources.

Nuclear Fuel

The fuel cycle for PVNGS is comprised of the following stages: (1) the mining and milling of uranium
ore to produce, uranium concentrates, (2) the conversion of uranium concentrates to uranium hexafluoride,
(3) the enrichment of uranium hexafluoride, (4) the fabrication of fuel assemblies, (5) the utilization of fuel
assemblies in reactors, and (6) the storage of spent fuel and the disposal thereof. The PVNGS participants
made arrangements to obtain quantities of uranium concentrates anticipated to be sufficient to meet
operational requirements through 1996. Existing contracts and options could be utilized to meet
approximately 75% of requirements in 1997 and 50% of requirements from 1998 through 2000. Spot
purchases in the uranium market willbe made, as appropriate. The PVNGS participants contracted for all
conversion services required through 1994 and for up to 65% of conversion services required through 1998,
with options to continue through the year 2000. The PVNGS participants, including the Company, have an
enrichment services contract with USEC which obligates USEC to furnish enrichment services required for
the operation of the three PVNGS units over a term expiring in November 2014, with annual options to
terminate each year of the contract with ten years prior notice. The participants exercised this option,
terminating 30% of requirements for 1996 through 1998 and 100% of requirements during the years 1999

through 2002. In addition, existing contracts will provide fuel assembly fabrication services for at least ten
years from the date of operation of each PVNGS unit and through contract options, approximately fifteen
additional years are available.

Existing spent fuel storage facilities at PVNGS have sufficient capacity with certain modiflcations to store
all fuel expected to be discharged from normal operation of all of the PVNGS units through at least the year



2005. Pursuant to the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, as amended in 1987 (the "Waste Act"), DOE is
obligated to accept and dispose of all spent nuclear fuel and other high-level radioactive wastes generated by
all domestic power reactors. The NRC, pursuant to the Waste Act, also requires operators of nuclear power
reactors to enter into spent fuel disposal contracts with DOE. APS, on its own behalf and on behalf of the
other PVNGS participants, executed a spent fuel disposal contract with DOE. The Waste Act also obligates
DOE to develop the facilities necessary for the permanent disposal of all spent fuel generated and to be
generated by domestic power reactors and to have the first such facility in operation by 1998 under prescribed
procedures. In November 1989, DOE reported that such a permanent disposal facilitywillnot be in operation
until 2010. As a result, under DOE's current criteria for shipping allocation rights, PVNGS's spent fuel
shipments to the DOE permanent disposal facility would begin in approximately 2025. In addition, APS
believes that on-site storage ofspent fuel may be required beyond the life of the PVNGS Units. APS currently
believes that alternative interim spent fuel storage methods are or willbe available on-site or oF-site for use
by PVNGS to allow its continued operation beyond 2005 and to safely store spent fuel until DOE's scheduled
shipments from PVNGS begin.

Water Supply

Water for Four Corners and SJGS is obtained from the San Juan River. (See ITEM 3.—"LEGAL
PROCEEDINGS —SAN JUAN RIVER ADJUDICATION".)BHP holds rights to San Juan River water
and has committed a portion of such rights to Four Corners. The Company and Tucson have a contract with
the United States Bureau of Reclamation for consumption of 16,200 acre feet of water per year for SJGS,
which contract expires in 2005, and in addition, the Company was granted the authority to consume 8,000
acre feet of water per year under a state permit that is held by BHP. The Company is of the opinion that
sufficient water is under contract for SJGS until 2005.

On January 29, 1993, the U.S. Fish and WildlifeService proposed a portion of the San Juan River as
critical habitat for two fish species. This designation may impact uses of the river and its flood plains and will
,require certain analysis under the Endangered Species Act of 1973 of all significant Federal actions. Renewal
of the SJGS water contract is considered a significant Federal action. The Company is currently unable to
assess any impacts to operations but is reviewing the issue and commenting to the agencies.

Sewage effiuent used for cooling purposes in the operation of the PVNGS units has been obtained under
contracts with certain municipalities in the area. The contracted quantity of effiuent exceeds the amount
required for the three PVNGS units. The validity of these efHuent contracts is the subject of litigation in state
and Federal courts. (See ITEM 3.—"LEGAL PROCEEDINGS —PVNGS WATER SUPPLY
LITIGATION".)



NATURALGAS OPERATIONS

Acquisition of Natural Gas Operations

On January 28, 1985, the Company acquired substantially all ofthe New Mexico natural gas utilityassets

of Southern Union (principally a natural gas retail distribution system operated by Southern Union as the
Gas Company of New Mexico division and now operated by the Company as GCNM) and Sunbelt acquired
all of the stock of Southern Union Gathering Company (subsequently renamed Sunterra Gas Gathering

Company), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Southern Union, in connection with the settlement of antitrust
litigation against Southern Union in which the Company and others were plaintiffs. In a separate transaction,
a wholly-owned„subsidiary of Sunbelt acquired from Southern Union all of the stock of Southern Union
Processing Company (subsequently renamed Sunterra Gas Processing Company) on December 31, 1986. In
January 1990, the Company acquired all of the common stock of Gathering Company and Processing

Company from Sunbelt and the Sunbelt subsidiary, respectiv'ely. Together with GCNM, Gathering Company
and Processing Company are referred to as the Company's natural gas operations.

Proposed Sale of Gathering and Processing Assets

On February 12, 1994, the Company, Gathering Company and Processing Company entered an

agreement to sell substantially all of their gas gathering and processing facilities. The Company believes that
the sale, which requires prior NMPUC approval, willimprove its flexibilityin accessing competitively priced,,
reliable and secure gas supplies. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONAND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—Sale ofGas Gathering
and Processing Assets".)

Gas Company of New Mexico Division

The Company distributes natural gas through GCNM to most of the major communities in New Mexico,
including Albuquerque and Santa Fe, serving approximately 371,000 customers as of December 31, 1993.

The Albuquerque metropolitan area accounts for approximately 54% of the Company's total customers. The
Company holds long-term, non-exclusive franchises with varying expiration dates in all incorporated
communities requiring franchise agre'ements. The expiration dates for the Company's franchises in
Albuquerque and Santa Fe are 1998 and 1995, respectively. GCNM's customer base includes both "sales-
service" customers and "transportation-service" customers. Sales-service customers purchase natural gas and
receive transportation and delivery services from GCNM for which GCNM receives both cost-of-gas and
cost-of-service revenues. Cost-of-gas revenues collected from sales service customers are a recovery of the
cost of purchased gas in accordance with NMPUC rules and regulations and, in that sense, do not affect the
net earnings of the Company. Transportation-service customers, who procure gas independently of GCNM
and contract with GCNM for transportation and related services, provide GCNM with cost-of-service
revenues only. Transportation services are provided both to gas marketers generally for delivery to locations
throughout GCNM's distribution systems and to natural gas producers generally for dehvery to other
interstate pipelines. "

For the twelve months ended. December 31, 1993, GCNM had throughput ofapproximately 89.6 million
decatherms, including sales of 43,5 million decatherms to sales-service customers. No single customer
accounted for more than 6.5% of GCNM's therm sales in 1993.

GCNM's total operating revenues for the year ended December 31, 1993, were approximately $235.2

million. Cost-of-gas revenues, received from sales-service customers, accounted for approximately 46% of
GCNM's total operating

revenues.'ince

a major portion of GCNM's load is related to heating, levels of therm sales are affected by the
weather. Approximately 45% of GCNM's total therm sales in 1993 occurred in the months of January,
February, November and December.
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During the 1980's, FERC and NMPUC orders relating to the nondiscriminatory transportation of gas
in certain instances, as well as other changes in the natural gas industry, led to increased competition for
sales of natural gas within New Mexico. An order issued by the NMPUC requires New Mexico gas utilities
to offer transportation service to all customers. Thus, GCNM's customers may choose to purchase natural
gas from sources other than GCNM and require transportation by GCNM, subject to the capacity of
GCNM's system. During 1993, approximately 51% of GCNM's total gas throughput was related to
transportation gas deliveries. GCNM's transportation rates are unbundled, and transportation customers only
pay for the amount of transportation service they receive from GCNM.

Gathering Company

Gathering Company is engaged in the ownership and operation of gas gathering facilities primarily in
the San Juan Basin in northwestern New Mexico, the purchase of gas from sources in the San Juan Basin,
the sale ofnatural gas to GCNM and third parties and the gathering ofnatural gas for third parties. In 1993,

Gathering Company sold approximately 13.7 million decatherms ofnatural gas to GCNM and gathered 45.8

million decatherms of natural gas'for third parties.

'n January 1990, Gathering Company entered into a natural gas sale and gathering contract with
GCNM. The contract allows Gathering Company to recover from GCNM, effective January 1988,

substantially all of its operating costs, net of its third-party revenues (including revenues received from
Processing Company), and to earn a regulated return on its investment in its operating assets. In addition,
Gathering Company'is permitted unde'r the contract to charge to GCNM all payments made arising from
take-or-pay obligations and from contract reformation.'(See "RATES AND REGULATION—Natural Gas

Supply Matters".)

Processing Company

Processing Company processes natural gas for GCNM, Gathering Company and others. The natural
gas is processed at Processing Company's plants under separate contracts. Both GCNM and Gathering
Company executed contracts with Processing Company in January 1990. The GCNM contract provides that
GCNM will reimburse Processing Company for all of its operating costs, net of its third-party revenues

(including fees from Gathering Company), an'd provides a return on Processing Company's investment in its
operating assets, in return for providing the service of processing.GCNM's natural gas. Additionally„
Processing Company. reimburses GCNM for all revenues from liquid by-products derived from GCNM's
throughput processed at the plants. Such revenues, including all third party processing fees, are ultimately
credited to GCNM's sales-service customers through the PGAC. The Gathering Company's contract with
Processing Company provides the, same service for Gathering Company and in return for such service,

Gathering Company pays Processing Company a fee per mcfof gas which is processed on behalf ofGathering
Company. Processing Company reimburses Gathering Company for all revenues from liquid by-products
derived from Gathering Company's throughput processed at the plants.

Natural Gas Supply

GCNM obtains its supply of natural gas primarily from New Mexico wells pursuant to contracts with
producers and brokers. A significant portion of GCNM's natural gas supply is provided through Gathering
Company. (See "Gathering Company".) The contracts of GCNM and Gathering Company are generally
sufficient to meet GCNM's peak-day demand.

GCNM serves certain cities which depend on EPNG or Transwestern Pipeline'Company for
transportation of gas supplies. Because these cities are not directly connected to GCNM's transmission
facilities, gas purchased from or transported by these companies is the sole supply source for those cities.
Such transportation is regulated by FERC. As a result of FERC Order 636, it is expected that GCNM's cost

for supplying those cities and for any natural gas delivered to other interconnecting points on GCNM's
system will increase. It is anticipated that such increases willnot materially affect GCNM's total cost of gas

charged to all of its sales-service customers. It is also anticipated that any increased costs would,qualify for
collection by GCNM through its PGAC.
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At the time of the Company's acquisition of GCNM and Gathering Company, GCNM, obtained its

natural gas supply generally pursuant to long-term contracts with producers that obligated GCNM and

Gathering Company to take volumes of gas in excess of GCNM's sales-service customers'nnual demand.

At that time, GCNM and Gathering Company were able to sell all excess gas to interstate pipelines. Atabout

the same time as the acquisition of the gas operations, the FERC began promulgating a series of orders that
have dramatically altered the way gas is bought, transported and sold nationwide. In essence, these orders

allowed customers of the interstate pipelines to purchase non-pipeline supplies and use the interstate pipeline's

transmission facilities to transport that gas. Since GCNM and Gathering Company traditionally had sold

off-peak excess supplies to interstate pipelines, the regulatory changes dramatically altered the Company's

ability to market these non-peak supplies. The inability of the Company to market its non-peak supplies at

competitive prices led to breach of contract claims from some producers.

GCNM and Gathering Company responded to the changes in the Federal and state regulations by
seeking reformation or termination of certain natural gas purchase contracts with producers which required

GCNM and Gathering Company to take gas in excess of demand. This effort has enabled GCNM to better

match its obligations to take gas with the demands of its sales-service customers. Virtually all of the claims

relating to natural gas contracts have been settled in recent years and those contracts have been reformed or
terminated. (See ITEM 3.—"LEGALPROCEEDINGS —Natural Gas Supply Litigation".) In addition, by
increasing supply sourcing options through the construction of new pipeline interconnects, GCNM has

created further flexibility to provide reliable supplies without incurring, for the most part, take-or-pay
contractual obligations with producers. As a result, the Company expects to have minimal exposure to
litigation resulting from the Company's 1993 natural gas purchasing activities.

During 1993 and in the future, requirements of GCNM's gas supply contracts with take-or-pay
obligations have been or willbe met through GCNM's baseload demands. By purchasing swing and peaking
supplies which do not have year-round take-or-pay obligations, GCNM will be able to meet the seasonal

demand swings associated with its predominately'residential and commercial sales-service markets. GCNM
may purchase natural gas through contracts which contain reservation fees. The NMPUC is currently
examining in GCNM's PGAC continuation filingwhether reservation fees which have been paid to suppliers
for standing ready to serve GCNM's needs during the contract's purchase period should be recovered from
sales-service customers through the PGAC or should be recovered in some other fashion. In addition, with
the implementation of FERC Order 636, GCNM could have natural gas storage and peak supply services

available that it has not had before.

Natural Gas Sales

The following table shows gas throughput by customer class:

Residential
Commercial .

Industrial
Public authorities .

Irrigation .

Sales for resale
Unbilled .

Transportation'
Spot market sale ..
Brokerage

GASTHROUGHPUT
GVIillions of decatherms)

1993 1992

28.0 27.1
10.4 10.6
0.9 0.7
2.5 4.2
1.3 1.1

1.0 2.0
(0.6) 0.6
91.8 73.6

0.9

135.3 120.8

1991

26.2
11.4
0.8
4.9
1.4

1.4

62.6
1.6

1990 1989

25.2 23.2
11.3 10.7

1.3 1.5
'.3 5.5

1.8 2.0
3.5 4.6

42.5 19.6
8. I' 11.1

'0.8

110.3 99.0 79.0



The following table shows gas revenues by customer class:

GAS REVENUES
(Thousands of dollars)

1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

Residential .. ~....
Commercial
Industrial
Public authorities
Irrigation
Sales for resale..........
Unbilled

Transportation'tqu>ds

~...... ~.......
Processing fees .

Spot market sales
Brokerage .. ~....... ~

Other

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 5 ~ ~~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ p ab, ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

$ 149,796
44,575

3,369
9,694
4,418
3,137

~ (1,573)
26,729
18,724
9,761

2,457

$ 125,313
37 222
2,063

12,313
2,713
4,460
'716

18,753
26,427

6,795
1,410

4,974

$ 137,436
46,676

2,754
17,711
4,495
3,848

16,997
30,500

5,819
1,771

9,062

$ 137,633
49,575

4,993
20,392

5,934
7,253

1

11,939
39,086
3,12/

13,880

8,292

$ 130,130
47,876

5,693
21,757

7,001
9,874

7,618
25,294

448
19,810

1,378
5,948

$271,087 '243,159 $277,069 $302,104 $282,827

Customer-owned gas.

RATES ANDREGULATION

The Company is subject to the jurisdiction of the NMPUC with respect to its retail electric, gas and
water rates, service, accounting, issuance of securities, construction of new generation and transmission
facilities and other matters. The FERC has jurisdiction over rates and other matters related to wholesale
electric sales.

January 12, 1994 Stipulation

On January 12, 1994, the Company and the NMPUC staff and primary intervenor groups (the AG, the
New Mexico Industrial Energy Consumers, the City of Albuquerque, the United States Executive Agencies
and the New Mexico Retail Association) ("interested parties") entered into a stipulation ("stipulation")
which addresses retail electric prices, generation assets and certain financial concerns of the Company. The
Company filed the stipulation with the NMPUC, recommending that electric retail rates be reduced by $30
million. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIALCONDITIONAND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—January 12, 1994 Stipulation".)

FPPCAC

The Company has electric FPPCACs covering its retail and firm-requirements wholesale customers.
There is an approximate 60-day time lag in implementation of the FPPCAC for billing purposes, except for
firm-requirements wholesale customers for which there is an approximate 30-day time lag.

On December 22, 1993, the Company and primary intervenors entered into a stipulation, agreeing to
eliminate the FPPCAC from the Company's retail billings, and set the base fuel cost (defined in the stipulation
as fuel costs plus net purchased power costs less off-system sales revenues) as a component of the cost of
service effective with the order in the Company's next general rate case. In return, the Company would be

allowed to keep any savings it achieves by efficient fuel management or increases in off-system sales revenues
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between rate cases, In future rate cases, any fuel savings achieved by the Company, or increases in off-system
sales revenues would be factored into the new rates. Based on the current relative stability, of the Company's
fuel cost, the Company does not anticipate any material, adverse impact on the Company's financial condition
or results ofoperations as a result of this change. The. Company filed testimony, in support of the stipulation
on February 24, 1994. Hearings on the case are scheduled in March 1994. The methodology for establishing
the base fuel costs has been incorporated into the cost of service filed with the January 12, 1994 stipulation.
(See PART II, ITEM 7,—"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITIONAND RESULTS OF OPERATION~anuary 12, 1994 Stipulation".) „

The Company's FPPCAC for its firm-requirement wholesale customers has been at variance with the
filed FERC tariffs. As a result, the Company filed a petition with FERC on October 28, 1993 to request
deviation from the filed FERC tariffs for the period ofJuly 1985 through January 1993. The Company's filing
indicated that the four firm-requirement wholesale customers benefitted during that time period relative to
the energy costs they would have been billed under the application of the filed FERC tariffs. The four affected
customers concur with the Company's position and have filed a certificate of concurrence with FERC. The
Company does not anticipate any material adverse impacts, on the Company's financial condition or results
of operations as a result of this issue.

Fossil-Fueled Plant Decommissioning Costs

The Company expects to incur decommissioning costs for its fossil-fueled generating stations. The
Company filed for recovery of decommissioning costs by factoring them into its depreciation rates included
in the Company's depreciation rate study filed with the NMPUC on June 30, 1993. (See Part II, ITEM7.—
"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS
OF OPERATIONS—OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—Fossil-Fueled Plant Decommissioning
Costs".)

Postretirement Benefits

The Company adopted SFAS No. 106, Employers'ccounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions, effective January 1, 1993. SFAS No. 106 requires accrual ofpostretirement benefits during the years
employees provide services. Prior to 1993, the costs of these benefits were expensed on a pay-as-you-go basis.
On December 20, 1993, the NMPUC issued a final order in a NMPUC case regarding an inquiry into SFAS
No. 106. In its final order, the NMPUC adopted a policy which provides for accrual accounting for the
postretirement benefit costs, funding requirements into an irrevocable trust and specific reporting for the
benefit costs in future rate cases. The order also provides for specific waiver provisions with respect to the
external trust funding requirements and a deferral of the benefit costs in excess of the pay-as-you-go basis.
The Company has requested recovery of the full accrual amount ofSFAS No. 106 expense in the stipulation
for its electric business unit. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIALCONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—January 12, 1994
Stipulation".) The Company will address the recovery of the amounts related to the gas business unit in a
future rate case. The Company currently intends to fund the amount of the annual costs in 1994.

Consolfdatfon Issues
t

Pursuant to a prior NMPUC order, the Company filed an application on December 21, 1993 for
NMPUC approval to combine certain customer service functions of its gas and electric utility divisions in
order to achieve cost savings. At the same time, the Company filed a separate request for a declaratory order
from the NMPUC confirming that the Company's realignment of senior corporate officers'esponsibilities
during 1993 complies with a 1984 NMPUC order placing certain organizational restrictions on the operation
of the gas and electric divisions. On February 7, 1994, the NMPUC consolidated the two proceedings because
both involve the permissible extent of the relationship between the Company's gas and electric operations.
The Company awaits a pre-hearing conference and setting of a schedule in this matter.

11



Natural Gas Supply Matters

On December 18, 1989, the NMPUC issued an order approving a stipulation relating to imbalances in
GCNM's gas supply and demand. This stipulation provides for the partial recovery ofcertain gas costs arising
from reformation of gas purchase contracts and from claims by certain producers relating to take-or-pay
obligations, contract pricing and other matters. The mechanism established by the order does not apply to
any suits not settled or for which no initial judgement on the merits had been rendered by December 31,

1993. Under the order, GCNM bears 25% of producer take-or-pay costs (including such costs paid by
GCNM to Gathering Company under" their gas sale and gas gathering contract) for claims settled. GCNM
willbe permitted to recover from its sales and transportation customers the remaining 75% of take-or-pay
costs over a period of years. The order allows GCNM to recover from its customers all take-or-pay costs

assessed by interstate pipelines. The order also provides that GCNM may recover all costs (including costs

paid by GCNM to Gathering Company under their natural gas sale and gathering contract) determined by
the NMPUC to be prudently incurred or just and reasonable (on a case-by-case basis) as the result of the
settlement or litigation of claims ("MDL contract claims") arising from certain intrastate natural gas

purchase contracts that were the subject of the antitrust litigation that resulted in the Company's acquisition
of GCNM'from Southern Union in January 1985.

On March 29, 1993, GCNM was ordered to submit testimony concerning the allocation of certain take-

or-pay settlement amounts paid to Unicon Producing Company ("Unicon"), Pioneer Exploration Company,
Oryx Energy Company and EPNG. GCNM is currently recovering 75% of approximately $ 16 million
incurred to settle the disputes with such companies. On'ctober 22 and October 26, 1993, the NMPUC staff
and the AG, respectively, filed testimony claiming that some of the amounts paid to Unicon were not for
settlement of take-or-pay claims and therefore not recoverable under the NMPUC's December 18, 1989 order.
Under the positions taken by the NMPUC staff and the AG„GCNM would be unable to collect
approximately $3 million of the amount being recovered. The hearings have been held, briefs have been

submitted and the Company now awaits the recommended decision of the hearing examiner. The Company
believes that the settlement amounts have been properly allocated to the take-or-pay claims under the
December 18, 1989 order and will vigorously defend its position that the amount it seeks to collect is all
recoverable under that order.

On July 12, 1993, the NMPUC issued an order granting motions filed by GCNM, the NMPUC staff
and the AG concerning settlenients among GCNM, Gathering Company, Amoco, Conoco, Mobil Producing
Texas an'd New Mexico, Texaco, Inc. and Texaco Production Inc. The order required'CNM to file
testimony concerning the amounts paid in the settlements, the allocation of such amounts between take-or-

pay and contract pricing issues, and the prudence of the settlements involving the contract pricing issues. On
December 15, 1993, GCNM filets testimony. The Company believes that the amounts it seeks to recover have

been, properly allocated and prudently incurred, and will vigorously pursue a final o'rder confirming and
permitting recovery. The hearing examiner has set a hearing for August 23, 1994. GCNM is seeking to
recover approximately $27.5 million as producer take-or-pay costs and $9 million for MDLcontract claims
or other contract pricing costs. Pursuant to the December 1989 order, GCNM began collecting the producer
take-or-pay costs on July 1, 1993, subject to refund.

Other Natural Gas Matters

GCNM's retail gas rate schedules contain a PGAC which provides for timely recovery of the cost of gas

purchased by GCNM for resale to its sales-service customers. On August 20, 1990, GCNM filed its biannual

application for continued use of its PGAC pursuant to NMPUC rules. On January 19, 1993, the NMPUC
issued its final order which provided for the continuation ofGCNM's PGAC substantially in its present form.
The final order also required GCNM to file its PGAC continuation filingby April20, 1993 and,specifically
ordered GCNM to explain how its,composite gas procurement strategy will be affected by the announced

intention to sell all or major portions of Gathering Company's and Processing Company's,assets. (See PART
II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIALCONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—Sale of Gas Gathering and Processing Assets".) On April 20, 1993,
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NCNM filed its application for continued use of its PGAC. A hearing is set for April26, 1994. The NMPUC,
through its review of the PGAC costs, has jurisdiction over amounts charged to GCNM by Gathering

Company and Processing Company and for gas purchases and for gathering and processing services provided

to GCNM. The NMPUC has ordered that recovery of such costs in excess of 1990/1991 levels be deferred

and examined in a separate proceeding that the Company anticipates filingby June 1994.

ENVIRONMENTALFACTORS
\

The Company, in common with other electric a'nd gas utilities, is subject to stringent regulations for
protection of the environment by both state and Federal authorities. PVNGS is subject to the jur'isdiction of
the NRC, which has authority to issue permits and licenses and to regulate nuclear facilities in order to

protect the health and safety of the public from radioactive hazards and to conduct environmental reviews

pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act. The Company believes that it is in compliance, in all
material respects, with,the. environmental laws. The Company does 'not currently expect that material

expenditures for environmental control facilities willbe required in 1994 and 1995.

The Clean Air Act amendments of 1990 (the "Act") impose stringent limits on emissions of sulfur
dioxide and nitrogen oxides from fossil-fueled electric generating plants. The Act is intended to reduce air
contamination from every sizeable source of air pollution in the nation. Electric utilities with fossil-fueled

generating units willbe affected particularly by the section of the Act which deals with acid'rain. To be in
compliance with the Act, many utilities will be faced with installing" expensive sulfur dioxide removal

equipment, securing low sulfur coal, buying sulfur dioxide emission allowances, 'or a combination of these.

Due to the existing air pollution control equipment on the coal-fired SJGS and Four Corners, the Company
believes that it willnot be faced with any material capital expenditures in order to be in compliance with the
acid rain provision of the Act. Under other provisions of the Act, the Company willbe required to obtain
operating permits for its coal- and gas-fired generating units and to pay annual fees associated with the
operating permit program. A monitoring requirement of the Act requires SJGS and Four Corners to have

flow monitors on all units by January 1, 1995. The existing continuous emission monitoring systems are being
evaluated to determine ifthey willmeet the new monitoring requirements of the Act. The Company does not
believe that the new monitoring requireinents of the Act will result in a material capital expenditure.

The 'Act also established the Grand'Canyon VisibilityTransport Commission ("Commission" ) and

charged it with assessing adverse impacts on visibilityat the Grand Canyon. The Commission broadened its
scope to assess visibility impairment, in mandatory Class I areas (parks and wilderness areas) located in the
Colorado Plateau ("Golden Circle"). The Commission must report to the EPA by November 1995 on its
findings and make recommendations regarding what actions, ifany, should be pursued in order to remedy
the visibility impairment in the Golden Circle. Depending on the recommendations of the Commission, the
EPA may require stricter controls on sources that.may be contributing to the visibility impairment, Both
SJGS and Four Corners are located near the Golden Circle. The exact nature'and cost ofadditional controls,
ifany, that may be required as a result of the recommendations cannot be estimated at this time.

For other environmental issues facing the Company, see PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS OF OPERATIONS—
OTHER ISSUES FACINGTHE COMPANY—Environmental Issues —'Gas" and "—Environmental Issue—
Electric".

i
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ITEM2. PROPERTIES

Substantially all of the Company's utilityplant is mortgaged to secure its first inortgage bonds.

ELECTRIC

Coal-Ared Plants

SJGS is located in northwestern New Mexico, and consists offour units operated by the Company. Units
1, 2, 3 and 4 at SJGS have net rated capacities of 316 MW, 312 MW, 488 MW and 498 MW, respectively.
SJGS Units 1 and 2 are owned on a 50% shared basis with Tucson. Unit 3 is owned 50% by the Company,
41.8% by SCPPA and 8.2% by Century. Century has agreed to sell its remaining 8.'2% interest to Tri-State
Generation and Transmission Association, Inc. Unit 4 is owned 45.485% by the Company, 8.475% by
Farmington, 28.8% by M-S-R, 7.2% by Los Alamos and 10.04% by Anaheim. The Company has agreed to
sell 35 MW of SJGS Unit 4 to UAMPS. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—OTHER
ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—Excess Capacity Sales/Wholesale Power Market".) The Company's
net aggregate ownership in SJGS is 785 MW. In connection with the Company's sale to M-S-R in December
1983 of a 28.8% interest in SJGS Unit 4, the Company agreed to purchase under certain conditions 73.53%
(105 MW) of M-S-R's capacity through April 30, 1995, an amount which may be reduced by M-S-R under
certain conditions. The Company also agreed to,market the energy associated with the remaining 26.47%
portion of M-S-R's capacity through April 30, 1995. This marketing arrangement may be terminated by
M-S-R at any time upon 30 days notice.

The Company also owns 192 MW of net rated capacity'derived from its 13% interest'n Units 4 and 5
of Four Corners located in northwestern New Mexico 'on land leased from the Navajo Nation and adjacent
to available coal deposits. Units 4 and 5 at Foui Corners are jointlyowned with SCE, APS,'alt River Project,
Tucson and El Paso and are operated by APS.

Nuclear Plant
h~

The Company s Interest in PVNGS. The Company is participating in the three 1,270 MW units of
PVNGS, also known as the Arizona Nuclear Power Project, with APS (the operating agent), Salt River
Project, El Paso, SCE, SCPPA. and The Department of Water and Power of the City of Los Angeles. The
Company has a 10.2% undivided interest in PVNGS, with its interests. in Units 1 and 2 held under leases. In
September 1992, the Company purchased approximately 22% of the beneficial interests in PVNGS Units 1

and 2 leases for,approximately $ 17.5 million. The Company's ownership and leasehold interests in PVNGS
amount to 130 MW per unit, or a total of 390 MW. PVNGS Units 1, 2 and 3 were declared in commercial
service by the Company in January 1986,,September 1986 and January 1988, respectively. Commercial
operation ofPVNGS requires fuH power operating licenses which were granted by the NRC. Maintenance of
these licenses is subject to NRC regulation.

Operation and Regulation. A stipulation adopted by the NMPUC on March 6, 1990 establishes a
performance standard for the operation of PVNGS. Under the performance standards, a "dead band" was
established at capacity factors of 60% through 75%, as measured by the capacity factor of all three PVNGS
units over the, fuel cycle. Within the dead band, the Company would receive no reward or penalty. The
Company would be penalized with one-half of the additional fuel costs incurred for PVNGS capacity factors
of 50% to 60% and would be rewarded with one-half of the avoided fuel costs ifPVNGS operates at capacity
factors from 75% through 85%. Capacity factors above 85% or below 50% would reward or penalize the
Company by an amount equal to the additional fuel costs avoided or incurred. During 1993, PVNGS Units
1, 2 and 3 had capacity factors ofapproximately 67.5%, 46.1% and 84.4%, respectively, for a station capacity
factor of 66.0%. These performance standards would be terminated ifthe NMPUC approves the stipulation
entered into by the Company requesting elimination of the FPPCAC. (See ITEM 1.—"RATES AND
REGULATION—FPPCAC".)
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.In July 1993, the NRC issued a Systematic Assessment of Licensee Performance ("SALP") for PVNGS

for the period March 1, 1992 through May 31, 1993. The SALP is the standard performance grading process

used by the NRC to communicate to the public in a formal manner how each nuclear plant operates. The

ratin'gs have slightly declined since the previous assessment. Overall, however, the SALP Board found the

perforniance of licensed activities at PVNGS to be acceptable and directed toward safe facility operation.

Steam Generator Tubes. For information concerning steam generator tubes, see PART II, ITEM 7.—
"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION AND ANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS

OF OPERATIONS—OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—Palo Verde Nuclear Generating

Station —Steam Generator Tubes".

Discrimination Allegations. By letter dated July 7, 1993, the NRC advised APS that, as a result of a

recommended decision and order by a Department of Labor Administrative Law Judge (the "DOLALJ")
finding that APS discriminated against, a former contract employee at PVNGS because he engaged in

"protected activities" (as defined under Federal regulations), the NRC intended to schedule an enforcement

conference with APS.

Following the DOL ALJ's finding, APS investigated various elements ofboth the substantive allegations

and the manner in which the U.S. Department of Labor (the "DOL") proceedings were conducted. As a

result of that investigation, APS determined that one of its employees had falsely testified during the

proceedings, that there were inconsistencies in the testimony ofanother employee, and that certain documents

were requested in, but not provided during, discovery. The two employees in question are no longer with
APS. APS provided the results of its investigation to the DOL ALJ, who referred matters relating to the

conduct of the two former employees ofAPS to the U.S. Attorney's oflice in Phoenix, Arizona. On December

15, 1993, APS and the former contract employee who had raised the DOL claim entered into a settlement

agreement, a part of which remains subject to approval by the Secretary of Labor.

By letter dated August 10, 1993, APS also provided the results of its investigation to the NRC, and

advised the NRC that, as a result of APS's investigation, APS had changed its position opposing the finding
of discrimination. The NRC is investigating this matter and APS is fully cooperating with the NRC in this

regard.

Sale and Leaseback Transactions ofPVNGS Units I and 2. In eleven transactions consummated in 1985

and 1986, the Company sold and leased back its entire 10.2% interest in PVNGS Units 1 and 2, together

with portions of the Company's undivided interest in certain PVNGS common facilities. In each transaction,

the Company sold interests to an owner trustee under an owner trust agreement with an institutional equity
investor. The owner trustees, as lessors, leased the interests to the Company under lease agreements having
initial terms expiring January 15, 2015,(with respect to the Unit 1 leases) or January 15, 2016 (with respect

to the Unit 2 leases). Each lease provides an option to the Company to extend the term of the lease as well as

a repurchase option. The aggregate lease payments for the Company's PVNGS leases are approximately $ 66.3

million per year. Throughout the terms of the leases, the Company continues to have full and exclusive

authority and responsibility to exercise and perform all of the rights and duties of a participant in PVNGS
under the Arizona Nuclear Power Project Participation Agreement and retains the exclusive right to sell and

dispose of its 10.2%%uo share of the power and energy generated by PVNGS Units 1 and 2. The Company also

retains responsibility for payment of its,share of all taxes, insurance premiums, operating and maintenance

costs, costs related to capital improvements and decommissioning and all other similar costs and expenses

associated with the leased facilities. On September 2, 1992, the Company purchased approximately 22% of
the beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases for $ 17.5 million. For accounting purposes, this

transaction was recorded as a purchase with the Company recording approximately $ 158.3 million as utility
plant and $ 140.8 million as long-term debt on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. The purchase is

expected to provide the Company with (1) the residual value of a certain portion of the PVNGS Units at no

cost, (2) reduced exposure to indemniflcation provisions in the lease agreements and (3) added flexibilityto
cause the retirement of the underlying lease obligation bonds ("LOBs"). (See also Notes 7 and 9 of the notes
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to consolidated financial statements.) The retirement of the LOBs would only be caused if(I)'adequategash
is available, (2) it is determined to be the best use of funds, and (3) the appropriate approvals are obtained. In
connection with the stipulation, the Company wrote down the purchased beneficial interests in PVNGS Units
1 and 2 leases to $46.7 million. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIALCONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—January 12, 1994
Stipulation.")

Each lease describes certain events, "Events ofLoss" or "Deemed Loss Events", the occurrence ofwhich
could require the Company to, among other things, (1) pay the lessor and the equity investor, in return for
such investor's interest in PVNGS, cash in the amount provided in the lease, which amount, primarily
because of certain tax consequences, would exceed such equity investor's outstanding equity investment, and
(2) assume debt obligations relating to the PVNGS lease. The "Events of Loss" generally relate to casualties,
accidents and other events at PVNGS, which would severely adversely affect the abilityof the operating agent,
APS, to operate, and the ability of the Company to earn a return on its interests in, PVNGS. The "Deemed
Loss Events" consist mostly of legal and regulatory changes (such as changes in law making the sale and
leaseback transactions illegal, or changes in law making the lessors liable for nuclear decommissioning
obligations). The Company believes the probability of such "Events of Loss" or "Deemed Loss Events"
occurring is remote. Such belief is based on the following reasons: (a) to a large extent, prevention of "Events
of Loss" and some "Deemed Loss Events" is within the control of the PVNGS participants, including the
Company, and the PVNGS operating agent, through the general PVNGS operational and safety oversight
process and (b) with respect to other "Deemed Loss Events," which would involve a significant change in
current law and policy, the Company is unaware of any pending proposals or proposals being considered for
introduction in Congress or any state legislative or regulatory body that, ifadopted, would cause any such
events.

PVNGS Decommissioning Funding. For information concerning PVNGS decommissioning funding, see
PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY-
PVNGS Decommissioning Funding".

PVNGS Liability and Insurance Matters. The PVNGS participants have insurance for public liability
payments resulting from nuclear energy hazards to the full limitof liabilityunder Federal law. This potential
liabilityis covered by primary liabilityinsurance provided by commercial insurance carriers in the amount of
$200 million and the.-balance by an industry-wide retrospective assessment program. The'aximum
assessment per reactor under the retrospective rating program for each nuclear incident occurring at any
nuclear power plant in the United States is approximately $79.3 million, subject to an annual limit of $ 10
million per incident. Based upon the Company's 10.2% interest in the three PVNGS units, the Company's
maximum potential assessment per incident is approximately $24.3 million, with an annual payment
limitation of$3 million. The insureds under this liabilityinsurance include the PVNGS participants and "any
other person or organization with respect to his legal responsibility for damage caused by the nuclear energy
hazard". The PVNGS participants maintain "all-risk" (including nuclear hazards) insurance for nuclear
property damage to, and decontamination of, property at PVNGS in the'aggregate amount of $2.75 billion
as of January 1, 1994, a substantial portion of which must be applied to stabilization and decontamination.
The Company has also secured insurance against a portion of the increased cost of genera'tion or purchased
power resulting from certain accidental outages of any of the three PVNGS units if the outage exceeds 21
weeks.

Other Electric Properties

Four Corners and a portion of the facilities adjacent to SJGS are located on land held under easements
from the United States and also under leases from the Navajo Nation, the enforcement of which leases might
require Congressional consent. The risk with respect to the enforcement of these easements and. leases is not
deemed by the Company to be material. However, the Company is dependent in some measure upon the
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I

willingness and ability of the Navajo Nation to protect these properties. (See'ART II, ITEM 7.—
"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS
OF OPERATIONS—OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—3 Transmission Rightwf-Way".)

I",

As of December 31, 1993, the Company owned, jointly owned or leased 2,781 circuit miles of electric
transmission lines, 5,218,miles of distribution overhead lines, 2,826 cable, miles of underground distribution
lines (excluding street lighting) and 215 substations.

On May 1, 1984, the'Company's board ofdirectors approved plans to p'roceed with OLE, which involves
construction of a 345 Kv'transmission,line connecting the existing Ojo 345'Kv line to the existing Norton
Station. For discussion of issues relating to OLE, see PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS OF OPERATIONS—
OTHER ISSUES FACING THE COMPANY—OLE Tr'ansmission Project".

NATURALGAS

'he property owned by GCNM, as of December 31, 1993, consisted primarily ofnatural gas gathering,
storage, transmission and distribution systems. The gathering systems consisted ofapproximately 1,184 miles
(approximately 308 miles ofwhich are leased to Gathering Company) ofpipe with compression and treatment
facilities. Provisions for storage made by GCNM include ownership and operation of an underground storage
facility located near Albuquerque and an agreement with owners of a unitized oil field located near Artesia,
New Mexico, in which GCNM has injection and redelivery rights. The transmission systems consisted of
approximately 1,355 miles ofpipe with appurtenant compression facilities. The distribution systems consisted
of approximately 9,471 miles of pipe."

GCNM leases approximately 128 miles of transmission pipe from the DOE for transportation of natural
gas to Los Alainos and to certain other communities in northern New Mexico. The lease can be terminated
by either party on 30 days'written,notice, although the Company has the right to use the facility for two
years after termination.

The property of Gathering Company includes approximately 552 miles of gathering pipe with
appurtenant compression facilities.

Processing Company owns facilities located in northwestern New Mexico having an aggregate design
capacity for processing ofnatural,gas ofapproximately 300,000 mcf per day.

The Company, Gathering Company and Processing Company have entered into an agreement" to sell
substantially all of their natural gas gathering and processing assets. (See PART II, ITEM 7.—
"MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONAND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS—Sale ofGas Gathering and Processing Assets".)

WATER

The Company's water'roperty'consists of wells, water rights, pumping and treatment plants, storage
reservoiis and transmission and distribution mains. The Company has reached agreement with the City of
Santa Fe for the sale of its water utility division, (See PART II, ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONANDRESULTS OF OPERATIONS—
Sale ofSDCS"'.) I

OTHER INFORMATION

The electric and gas transmission and distribution lines are generally located within easements and
rights-of-way on public, private and Indian lands. The Company leases interests in PVNGS Units 1 and 2
and related property, EIP and associated equipment, data processing, communication, office and other
equipment, office space, utilitypoles (joint use), vehicles and real estate. The Company also owns and leases
service and office facilities in Albuquerque and in other operating divisions throughout its service territory.
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ITEM3. LEGALPROCEEDINGS

NATURALGAS SUPPLY LITIGATION

A lawsuit was filed on August 31, 1990 in the United States District Court for the District of New
Mexico by a group of producers seeking damages under a gas purchase contract. This action was brought by
Caulkins Producing Company as the operator and Caulkins Oil Co. (collectively "Caulkins"), Louis Dreyfus
Natural Gas Corp. ("Dreyfus") and Marathon Oil Company ("Marathon" ) for alleged breach of a long-term
natural gas purchase contract by GCNM. The suit alleged that GCNM failed to take or pay for contracted
quantities of natural gas for the period of 1986 to the present, and further, that GCNM failed to take gas
ratably from the producers during the. same period of time.

In August 1993, Caulkins, Dreyfus and GCNM reached an agreement settling all disputes arising under
the contract as to those parties for $7.9 million. The parties also entered into gas purchase agreements which
are favorable to GCNM as part of the settlements. On October 14, 1993, the Company and Marathon entered
into an agreement settling all disputes between GCNM and Marathon. GCNM paid Marathon $4.9 million
on November 10, 1993 and obtained favorable terms in new gas purchase and related contracts. The Company
had previously made sufficient reserves for losses in this litigation. Pursuant to a prior order of the NMPUC,
GCNM began collecting 75% of,the amounts paid to settle this lawsuit in January 1994.

PVNGS WATER SUPPLY LITIGATION

The validity of the primary effluent contract'nder which water necessary for the operation of the
PVNGS units is obtained was challenged in a suit filed in January 1982 by the Salt River Pima-Maricopa
Indian Community (the "community'-') against the Department of the Interior, the Federal agency alleged to
have jurisdiction over the use of the effiuent. The PVNGS participants, including the Company, were named
as additional defendants in the proceeding, which is before the United States District Court for the District
of Arizona. The portion of the action challenging the effiuent contract has been stayed until the community
litigates certain claims in the same action against the Department of the Interior and other defendants. On
October 21, 1988, Federal legislation was enacted conforming to the requirements of a proposed settlement
that would terminate this case without affecting the validityof the primary effiuent contract. However, certain
contingencies are to be performed before the settlement is finalized and the suit is dismissed. One of these
contingencies is the approval of the settlement by the court in the Lower Gila River Watershed litigation
referred to below.

The Company understands that a summons served on APS in early 1986 required all water claimants in
the Lower Gila River Watershed of Arizona to assert any claims to water on or before January 20, 1987, in
an action pending in the Maricopa County Superior Court. PVNGS is located within the geographic area
subject to the summons and the rights of the PVNGS participants to the use of groundwater and effluent at
PVNGS are potentially at issue in this action. APS, as the PVNGS project manager, filed claims that-dispute
the court's jurisdiction over the PVNGS participants'roundwater rights and their contractual rights to
efHuent relating to PVNGS and, alternatively, seek confirmation of such rights. No trial date has been set in
this matter.

Although the foregoing matters remain subject to further evaluation, APS expects that the described
litigation willnot have a material adverse impact on the operation of PVNGS.
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SAN JUAN RIVER'ADJUDICATION

In 1975, the, State ofNew Mexico filed an action entitled State ofNew Mexico v. United States,,et aL, in
the District Court of San Juan County, New Mexico,, to adjudicate all water rights in the "San Juan River
Stream, System". The Company was made a defendant in the litigation in 1976. The action was expected to
adjudicate water rights used at, the Four Corners plant, at SJGS and at Santa Fe. (See.ITEM 1. "BUSINESS
—ELECTRIC OPERATIONS—Fuel and Water, Supply".) The Company cannot, at this time anticipate the
effect„if any, of any, water rights adjudication on the present arrangements for water.'at SJGS and Four
Corners, nor can it determine what eff'ect the action will have on water for Santa Fe. It is the Company's
understanding that final resolution of the case cannot be expected for several years.

'R

s'VNGS

PROPERTY TAXES

On June 29, 1990, an Arizona state, tax law was enacted; effective as of December 31, 1989, which
adversely impacted the Company's earnings in the 1990, 1991, 1992 and 1993 tax years by approximately $5

million per year, before income taxes and capitalized and deferred costs. On December 20, 1990, the PVNGS
participants, including the Company, filed a lawsuit in the Arizona Tax Court, a division of the Maricopa
County Superior Court against the Arizona Department ofRevenue, the Treasurer of the State of Arizona,
and various Arizona counties, claiming, among other things, that portions of the new tax law are
unconstitutional. In December 1992, the court granted summary judgment to the taxing authorities, holding
that the law is constitutional.""The PVNGS participants'appealed this decision to the Arizona Court of
Appeals. The Company cannot currently predict the ultimate outcome of this matter.

A
t- 4

OTHER PROCEEDINGS
t 1'

On March 31, 1993, certain individuals ("the New Mexico Plaintiffs"), formerly affiliated with Bellamah
Community Development ("BCD") whose general partners include Meadows, filed suit ("the New Mexico
suit") in the United States District Court for the District ofNew,Mexico against numerous parties, including
the Company, current and former employees of the Company or Meadows, and MCB Financial Group, Inc.,
a 'Delaware corporation (l'MCB"), 50% of which stock is owned by Meadows. The New'Mexico Plaintiffs
have not requested any monetary relief against the Company or certain current and former employees of the
Company and Meadows but have joined those parties in connection with insurance coverage and bad faith
insurance practices alleged against the insurance company which had issued a directors and officers liability
policy to various entities, including MCB and BCD. The insurance allegations are made in connection with
claims which were then threatened by the Resolution Trust Corporation ("RTC"), as receiver for Western
Savings & Loan Association ("Western" ), against the Company and others. The New Mexico Plaintiffs also
sued the RTC for a declaration that they are not liable for any claims asserted by the RTC involving Western
and BCD. The Company and the current and former employees of the Company or Meadows counterclaimed
against the New Mexico Plaintiffs and cross-claimed against the insurance company and the RTC in
connection with insurance coverage and bad faith insurance practices. In addition, the Company and the
current and former employees of the Company or Meadows cross-claimed against the RTC, seeking a

declaration of non-liability.

The RTC moved to transfer the case to the United States District Court for the District of Arizona. On
February 7, 1994, an order was entered transferring the case in its entirety. Prior to the transfer, however,
the New Mexico magistrate judge issued a proposed order which, ifaccepted by the district judge, would
require the parties to enter into mediation of all the claims. The parties have agreed to a form of order
dismissing without prejudice the claims asserted in the New Mexico suit against MCB and against the RTC,
recommending the remand of the remaining claim for declaratory relief against the insurance company to
the Federal District Court in New Mexico, and ordering the mediation of the claims asserted in the Arizona
proceeding (described below) by the RTC against all of the other parties in the New Mexico suit except the
insurance company and MCB.
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On April 16, 1993, the Company and certain current and former employees of the Company or Meadows
were named as defendants in two actions filed in the United States District Court for the District of Arizona
by the RTC, as receiver for Western. The claims related to alleged actions of the Company's employees in
connection with a loan procured by BCD from Western and the purchase by that partnership of property
owned by Western in 1987. The RTC apparently claims that the Company's liabilitystems from the actions
of a former employee who allegedly acted on behalf of the Company for the Company's benefit. The RTC is
claiming in excess of $40 million in actual damages from the BCD/Western transactions and alternatively is
claiming damages substantially exceeding that amount on a joint and several liability theory for injury to
Western from an alleged conspiracy in which the Company and the other defendants are alleged to be co-
conspirators. The conspiracy allegations involve all other transactions claimed by the RTC to have harmed
Western but to which BCD was not a party. The RTC claims the $40 million damages would be trebled
under application of Arizona law. The RTC may also seek attorneys fees and costs. In February 1994, the
RTC advised that the RTC would be seeking to amend the complaint to allege civil conspiracy, common law
fraud and aiding and abetting breach of fiduciary duties, aiding and abetting common law fraud and aiding
and abetting violation of,federal and Arizona RICO statutes against the Company and is considering claims
against, Meadows and against the Company as "successor to and alter ego" of Meadows.

j

Three of the individuals sued by the RTC have indemnity agreements with the Company.
'I

On March 3 and 4, 1994, the parties participated in a mediation session aimed at settling the litigation.
The session ended without a settlement. It is anticipated that settlement discussions willcontinue although
no dates have been scheduled yet for future meetings.

In July 1993, the Company and certain current or former employees of the Company or its subsidiaries
were also named in an action filed in Federal District Court in Arizona on behalf of a class of common
stockholders of Western. The allegations were similar to those filed in the RTC actions described above. On

'anuary24, 1994, motions to dismiss filed by the Company and certain current or former employees of the
Company or its subsidiaries were granted by the Arizona court'for lack of standing to bring the actions.
Although the plaintiffs may appeal the order of the court, the Company believes the claims are without merit.

Although the Company continues to investigate all of the relevant claims raised in all of the suits, the
Company believes that a material loss to the Company willnot likely occur as a result of claims that have
been or may be asserted by any of the parties.
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PTEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

SUPPLEMENTAL ITEM.EXECUTIVEOFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Executive officers, their ages, offices held with the Company in the past five years and initial effective

dates thereof, were as follows on December 31, 1993:

Name Age

J. T. Ackerman .. 52

B. F. Montoya .. 58
.W. M. Eglintone. 44

„'

M. H. Maerki... 53

J. E. Sterba ~ .. ~ . 38

J. L. Godwin.... 50

W. J. Real...... 45

Ottice

Chairman of the Board
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
President and Chief Executive Officer
President, Gas Company of New Mexico Division
President and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Vice President, Transition Activities
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer,

Electric and Water Operations
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer,

Electric Operations
Senior Vice President, Operations, Electric Operations
Senior Vice President, Operations
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Senior Vice President, Administration and Chief Financial

Officer
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Chief Financial Officer, Meadows Resources, Inc.
Senior Vice President, Corporate Development
Senior Vice President, Asset Restructuring
Senior Vice President, Retail Electric and Water Services

Senior Vice President, Business Development Group,
Electric and Water Operations

Vice President, Revenues Management, Electric Operations
Vice President, Revenues Management
Senior Vice President, Power Supply Resources

Vice President, Electric Supply Sourcing
Senior Vice President, Wholesale Marketing and Power

Supply
Vice„President, Electric Operations Group, Electric and

Water Operations
Vice President, Power Supply, Electric Operations
Vice President, Power Production and Manager, San Juan

Station, Electric Operations
Senior Vice President, UtilityOperations
Senior Vice President, Customer Service and Operations
Executive Vice President, Gas Operations
Vice President, Operations Gas Operations Regional Vice

President, Central Gas Operations
Regional Vice President, Central Region, Gas Company of

New Mexico Division

Iaittal Effective Date

August 1,1993

May 23, 1991

June 19, 1990

February 5, 1985

August 1, 1993

March 2, 1993

September 20, 1991

September 1, 1988

June 1, 1988

June 23, 1987

April 1, 1986

December 7, 1993

March 2, 1993

June 1, 1988

May 24, 1984
December 7, 1993

April 6, 1993

January 29, 1991

September,1, 1988

January 27, '1987

May 1, 1/86
December 7, 1993

March 2, 1993

January 29, 1991

September 1, 1988

April26, 1988

I-

June 23, 1987

December 7, 1993

March 2, 1993

June 19, 1990

September 1, 1988

January 28, 1986

21



Name

M. P. Bourque....

P. T. Ortiz..... ~ .

J. A. Zanotti .....

M. D. Christensen.

W. M. Eglinton

Age Olnce

46 Senior Vice President, Marketing and Customer Services
Senior Vice President, Marketing and Energy Management
Senior Vice President, Gas Management Services
Vice President, Gas Supply, Gas Company of New Mexico

Division
43 Senior Vice President, Regulatory Policy, General Counsel

and Secretary
Senior Vice President, Public Policy and General Counsel

and Secretary
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate

Secretary
Senior Vice President and General Counsel

53 Vice President, Human Resources
Senior Vice President, Human Resources and

Communications
Vice President, Human Resources and Staff Services, Gas

Company of New Mexico Division
District Vice President, Southwest, Gas Company of New

Mexico Division
Director, Public Affairs, Gas Company of New Mexico

Division
45 Vice President, Public Affairs

Vice President, Communications
"~

~

retired effective December 31, 1993.

InitialEffectiv Date

December 7, 1993
March 2, 1993
June 19, 1990

March 2, 1987

December 7, 1993

March 2, 1993

February 4, 1992
October 14, 1991

March 2, 1993

July 26, 1990

September 1, 1988

April26, 1988

July 15, 1980
December 7, 1993

July 22, 1991

Allofficers are elected annually by the board of directors of the Company.

Allof the. above executive officers have been'employed by the Company and/or its subsidiaries for more
than five years in executive or management positions, with the exc'eption of P. T.'Ortiz, M.'. Christensen
and B. F. Montoya. Prior to employment with the Company, P.'. Ortiz was employed by U S WEST
Communications during the period of January 1988 to October 1991 as Chief Counsel —New Mexico and
during the period ofJune 1985 to January 1988, as an attorney by U S WEST Communications (then known
as Mountain Bell). The principal business of U S WEST Communications is telecommunications. Prior to
employment with the Company, M. D. Christensen was employed with Southern California Gas since 1978.
During the period 1990 through 1991, M. D. Christensen was Vice President of Planning and for the period
1987 through 1990, M. D. Christensen was Vice President ofPublic Affairs. Prior to 1987, M. D. Christensen
held various management positions relating to marketing and legislative services. Prior to employment with
the Company, B. F. Montoya was employed with Pacific Gas and Electric Company ("PG&E") since 1989.
In 1991, he was promoted to Senior Vice President and General Manager of the Gas Supply Business Unit of
PG&E. Prior to his employment with PG&E, B. F. Montoya spent 31 years in the Civil Engineer Corps of
the U.S. Navy, performing a wide range of management and utility-related assignments. B. F. Montoya
achieved the rank of Rear Admiral when he became Commander, Naval Facilities Engineering Command
and Chief of Civil Engineers.
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PART II

ITEM5. MARKETFOR THE COMPANPS COMMONEQUITYANDRELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The Company's common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange. Ranges of sales prices of

the Company's common stock, reported as composite transactions (Symboh PNM) for 1993 and 1992, by

quarters, are as follows:

Quarter Ended

1993:
December 31.
September 30
June 30
March 31.

Fiscal Year .

1992:
December 31.
September 30
June 30 .

March 31

Fiscal Year .

Range of
Sales peeees

High Low

11'/r 9'/a
137/s 10'/s

. - 13s/4 11s/s

12>/s 97/e

137/s 9i/a

13'/r 12
14'/s 12'/r
13'h 11

117/e 93/s

, "'14'/s,. 93/s

On January 31, 1994, there were 24,469 holders of record of the Company's common stock.
I 's ' ~ ~

Cumulative Preferred Stock,

While isolate sales of the Company's cumulative preferred stock have occurred in the past, the

Company is not'ware '.of any active trading market for its cumulative preferred stock."Quarterly cash

dividends were paid on "each 'series'of the Company's cumulative preferred stock at their stated rates during
1993 and 1992.

e

For a discussion of dividend restrictions on the Company's common and preferred stock, see Note 3 of
notes to consolidated financial 'statements and ITEM 7.—"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION'ND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIA'LCONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—LIQUIDITYAND
CAPITALRESOURCES —Financing Capability and Dividend Restrictions".

~ '

~
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIALDATA

$ 11.250 $ 12.375 '9.75 $ 8.375 $ 14.625

$ 17.36 S 18.02

41,774 41,774
(1.3)% 9.5%

41,774
(10.7)%

34.8% 38.6% 45.8% 44.8% 45.3%

3.0
48.2

1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

Qn thousands ezcept per share amounts and ratios)
Total Operating Revenues»............... S 873,878 $ 851,953 $ 857,168 $ 881,186 '. '929,817
Net Earnings (Loss).. $ (61,486)'» $ (104,255)t $ 22,960 $ 442 S 82,593
Earnings (Loss) per Common Share ... ~... S (1.64)»» S (2.67)t'" 0.32 "

S (0.23) S 1.73
Total Assets . $2,212,189 $2,375,582 $2,344,332 $2,313,709 $2,387,005
Preferred Stock with Mandatory

Redemption Requirements............. $ 24,386 $ 25,700 S 26,982 $ 45,581 $ 49,268
Long-Term Debt, less Current Maturities... $ 957,622 $ 911,252 $ 786,279 $ 790,126 $ 801,706
Common Stock Data:
Dividends paid per common share......... $ — S — $ — $ — $ '.38
Dividend pay-out ratio .................. , 22.0%
Market price per common share

at year end .

Book value per common share
at year end ~.... $ 13.29 $ 15.00 $ 17.69

Average number of common shares
outstanding . 41,774 41,774

Return on Average Common Equity....... (15.0)% 1.8%
Capitalization:

Common stock equity .................
Preferred stock:

Without mandatory redemption
requirements..................... 3.7 3.6

" 3.7 3.6 3.5
With inandatory redemption

requirements.................... =- 1.5 1.6 1.7 2.8
Long-'term debt, less current maturities... 60.0 t 56.2 " 48.8 48.8

100.0% 100.0% 100.0% ~ 100.0% 100.0%

'I
II

~ " ~o ~ ~ 3
As discussed, in note 1 to consolidated financia statements, the .Company changed its method of
accounting for unbilled revenues in 1992.

Includes the write-down of the 22go beneficial;interests in PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases'purchased by
the Company, the write-of of certain regulatory assets and'other deferr'ed costs and th'e write-off of
certain PVGNS Units 1 and 2 common costs, aggregating $ 108.2 million, net of taxes',($ 2.59 per share).

Includes the write-down of the Company's investment in PVNGS Unit 3 and the provision for loss
associated with the M-S-R power purchase contract, aggregating $ 126.2 million, net of taxes ($3.02 per
share).

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, the
notes to consolidated financial statements and Management's Discussion 'and Analysis ofFinancial Condition
and Results of Operations.

"~
~ \
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT'SDISCUSSION ANDANALYSISOF FINANCIALCONDITIONAND

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

'I

The following'is'anagement's assessment of the Company's financial condition and the significant

factors affecting the results of ope'rations, This discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company's

consolidated financial statemehts'.

On January 11, 1993, the Company announced specific actions which were determined to be necessary

in order to accelerate the Company's preparation for the new challenges in the competitiye,electric energy

market. Included in the announcement was the Company's intention to file a plan ("framework filing") with

the NMPUC designed to lower electric prices by consolidating certain gas and electric functions,

restructuring assets and reducing operation and maintenance expenses by $25 millionannually. The Company

separated the gas and electric customer service consolidation issues from the balance of the framework filing

and filed for necessary approvals for the consolidation of the customer service functions on December 21,

1993.'On January 11, 1993, the Company also announced its intention to dispose of the Company's natural

gas gathering and natural gas processing assets and SDCW. (See "Sale of Gas Gathering and Processing

Assets" and "Sale ofSDCP"'.)

January 12, 1994 Stipulation
V

f

On January 12, 1994, the Company and the NMPUC staff,and primary intervenor groups (AG, the New

Mexico Industrial Energy Consumers, the City of Albuquerque, the United States Executive Agencies and

the New Mexico Retail Association) ("interested parties") entered into a stipulation ("stipulation") which

addresses retail electric prices, generation assets and,certain financial concerns of the Company. The

Company filed the stipulation with the NMPUC, recommending that electric retail rates be reduced by $30

million. This redu'ction is accomplished primarily through the write-down of the 22% beneficial interests in

the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases purchased by the Company, the write-offof certain regulatory assets and

other deferred colts, the write-off of certain PVNGS Units 1 and 2 common costs and the Company's

previously announced cost reduction efforts. In connection with'the stipulation, the Company has charged

approximately $ 108.2 million, after-tax, to the 1993 results of operations. Such after-tax charge resulted in

the Company continuing to have a deficit in retained earnings as of December 31, 1993. As a result, the

Company is unable to,'resume payment of dividends on its common stock. The Company evaluated the

possibility of a quasi-reorganization but does not intend to implement a quasi-reorganization at this time.

(
4

The stipulation contains provisions which call for PVNGS Units 1 and 2 to be confirmed as "used and

useful" for New Mexico customers pursuant to tests previously set forth by the NMPUC. The stipulation

also establishes transition and gain allocation mechanisms to be implemented ifgeneration assets are sold or
otherwise removed from rates. The interested parties acknowledged that restructuring of the Company's

generation mix may result in benefits to both customers and stockholders and future generation asset sales

may need to include,a mix ofPVNGS and coal-fired generation. Ifany PVNGS unit included in rates is sold,

subleased, assigned, or removed from full cost of service recovery for any reason, the difference between the

cost of PVNGS units included in rates and its sale price shall continue to be recovered through rates. The

Company's ability to record this difference as a regulatory asset, for financial reporting purposes, will be

subject to the continued determination that the regulated portion of its electric operations meets the

provisions of SFAS No.71;'Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types ofRegulation.'he interested parties

also agreed that the reduction in cost of service resulting from any future refinancing or restructuring of the

PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases shall be allocated 60% to shareholders and'40% to customers. The stipulation

affirms the Company's right to recover all fair, just and reasonable costs arising from the decommissioning of
its fossil-fueled generating plants in service, including demolition, waste disposal, environmental and site

restoration. The stipulation also resolves the issues ofdecertification and decommissioning of the Company's

three retired fossil-fueled generating stations resulting in the Company foregoing recovery of the first $24.4

million of decommissioning costs associated'with these stations. The interested parties also agreed to use a
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targeted capital structure in the cost of service filed with the stipulation, which recognized the Company's
need to move toward investment grade guidelines.

In the stipulation, the Company expressed its intent not to seek general rate changes and the interested
parties expressed their intent not to cause the filingofgeneral rate changes before January 1, 1998. However,
should unforeseen circumstances occasion the need for a review of general rate levels before January 1, 1998,
the interested parties willmeet before seeking a change in rates.

The stipulation is subject to NMPUC approval. The Company believe's that the approval of the
stipulation would result'in 'a reduction of competitive risk and regulatory uncertainty. However, there can be
no assurance that the stipulation willbe approved by the NMPUC. Ifthe stipulation is not approved in its
entirety, unless otherwise agreed to by'll interested parties, the stipulation shall be null and void.

On January 3, 1994, the NMPUC issued an order establishing investigations of rates for both the
Company and SPS. The order required the Company to file a general rate case no later than July 1, 1994.
However, at the prehearing conference held on February 23, 1994, regarding the stipulation, the NMPUC
vacated the requirements of its original request and willallow the stipulation to satisfy their requirements.
Hearings on the stipulation have not been scheduled; however, the Company and interested parties are
scheduled to file testimony on April 18, 1994. The NMPUC confirmed the oral rulings in a written order
issued on March 7, 1994.

On March 7, 1994, the Albuquerque City Council deadlocked on endorsing the Mayor's signing of the
stipulation. The Company is currently unable to determine what impact, ifany, the City Council's action
might have on the stipulation. However, the Company remains committed to the process and willmeet with
the other parties who signed the stipulation to evaluate this new development. The Company believes that
the stipulation willcontinue through the hearing process being established by the NMPUC.

*

Sale ofGas Gathering and Processing Assets

On January 11, 1993, the Company announced its intention to dispose, of the Company's natural gas
gathering and natural gas processing assets. A purchaser has now been selected following a co'mpetitive
bidding process. i I,

'n

February 12, 1994, an agreement was executed with'illiams Gas Processing —Blanco, Inc.
("Williams"), a subsidiary of the Williams Field Services Group, Inc. of Tulsa, Oklahoma, for the sale of
substantially all of the assets of Gathering Company and Processing Company, and for the sale of the
Northwest and Southeast gas gathering and processing facilities of GCNM. The agreement provides for a
cash selling price of $ 155 million, subject to certain adjustments. In addition, the Company and Williams
entered into agreements for gas gathering and processing services, which the Company believes to be
competitively priced, to be provided by Williams on the facilities being sold for a period up to 15 years. The
transaction is subject to applicable waiting periods under the Federal Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976 and subject to approval by the NMPUC. Ifapproved, the closing is expected to
take place in 1995. The closing is also subject to other customary closing conditions, such as obtaining
necessary material consents from lenders and other third parties.

Under the sale agreement, the Company agreed to retain certain liabilities pertaining to the assets being
sold, including certain environmental liabilities. Such retained environmental, liabilities include liabilities
under environmental laws as of closing associated with (i) the mercury. meter remediation project, (ii)
identified friable asbestos, (iii) environmental permits required by various agencies, and (iv) pits at certain
abandoned compressor, sites. The Company's retained environmental liabilities also include liabilities
associated with certain unlined disposal pits subject to an existing New Mexico Oil Conservation Division
("OCD") order. The Company has also agreed to retain liabilityfor, a portion of potential liabilities relating
to a contaminated landfill that has been declared a Federal superfund site. Further, the Company agreed to
indemnify Williams against other third party environmental claims arising from pre;closing ownership,
operations or conditions and for, breaches of environmental representations and warranties for a period of
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five years after closing in an amount up to $ 10.6 million. The Company's retained environmental liabilities

described above are not subject to the $ 10.6 million cap. The Company has evaluated the potential impact of

the above retained environmental liabilities. The Company believes, after consideration of established

reserves, that the ultimate outcome of these environmental issues willnot have a material adverse effect on

the Company's financial condition or results of operations (see "OTHER ISSUES FACING THE

COMPANY—Environmental Issues —Gas"). The Company intends to offset costs associated with the

environmental liabilities with proceeds from the sale to the maximum extent possible.

Under the agreement, the Company also agreed to indemnify Williams, subject to equal sharing of the

first $ 1.5 million, (i) against third party claims (other than environmental) arising from pre-closing ownership,

operations and conditions for a period of two years after closing, (ii) for breaches of other customary

representations and warranties for a period of two years from the date of closing, and '(iii) for 30 days past

the applicable statute of limitations for breaches of the Company's tax representations. The Company also

agreed to indemnify Williams for three years after closing for third party claims relating to certain property

rights. Under the agreement, the Company will,subject to prior NMPUC approval, guarantee the obligations

of its subsidiaries which are parties to the agreement.

The book value of the facilities being sold, plus regulatory assets and deferred charges, is expected to be

approximately $85 million. In addition, the Company expects approximately $8 million to be incurred for

transaction and other ascertainable costs prior to closing. The Company anticipates that a significant amount

of income tax willbecome payable as a result of this transaction.

Also, the NMPUC will determine the allocation of the resulting gain between the Company's gas

customers and shareholders. Therefore, the Company is not able at this time to estimate the amount of any

gain that would be allocated to shareholders.
s +

The Company believes that the sale of these assets will'impr'ove its flexibility to take advantage of
changing market conditions while maintaining continued access to competitively priced, reliable and secure

long-term gas supplies.

Sale of
SDCW'n

July 29, 1993, Santa Fe city officials announced a verbal agreement under which the City of Santa

Fe (the "City") would purchase SDCW. Under the verbal agreement, the Company would receive

approximately $48 million for its water utility division. The proposed agreement excluded from the sale

certain Santa Fe area real estate which the Company would either sell or trade separately. The Company

would also continue to operate the.,water utilityfor up to four years for a fee under a proposed contract with
the City. On September 3, 1993, a nonbinding memorandum ofunderstanding was entered into with the City,
which contains the general principles for 'the sale of the Company's water utility division. The Company's

board of directors authorized the sale on January 11, 1994. On February 23, 1994, the City Council
authorized the transaction and the Company and the City signed a purchase and sale agreement on February

28, 1994. The Company anticipates filing for regulatory approvals in March 1994. Consummation of a sale

willrequire approval by the NMPUC. The Company expects to consummate the sale by the end of 1994.

LIQUIDITYAND CAPITALRESOURCES

The Company's ability'to generate„sufficient amounts of cash to-meet its operating and capital cash

requirements ("liquidity") is a function of the rates it is allowed to charge and its ability to access the credit
markets. The Company's filed stipulation and potential longer-term effects of a more competitive energy

market are expected to affect the Company liquidity through 'reductions in the level of rates charged for the

Company's electric operations, partially mitigated by the Company's cost reduction effort and anticipated

proceeds from sales of assets. The Company currently anticipates that cash generated from internal sources

willbe sufficient to meet the capital requirements during the 1994 through 1998 period.
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Capital Requirements J 1

,Total capital requirements include construction expenditures as well as other major capital requirements.
Construction projects of significance, include upgrading generating systems, upgrading and expanding the
electric and gas transmission and distribution systems and purchasing nuclear fuel. Total capital requirements
for 1993 and projections for 1994-1998 are shown below:

1993 1994 199$ 1996 1997 '998'n millions)
Construction Expenditures:

Generation/Environmental/Production .................
Distribution
Transmission
Nucleai'uel t ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

Common &General/Other

Total Construction Expenditures~~...,..............
Contributions in aid ofconstruction & retirements ........
Other Major Requirements~~~

Total Capital Requirements .....

$ 21 $ 27 $ 20 $ 20 $ 17 $ 20
42 45 42 42'2 43
10 25 504 24 12 '16
12 11 11 11 11 1.1

12 21 18 20 18 "19

97'29 141 117 ,100 .109

. (9) (3) (5) (5) (5) " (5)
92 71 29 29 46 20

$ 180 $ 197 $ 165 $ 141 $ 141 $ 124

Includes expenditures for construction of OLE.
Total construction expenditures do not include expenditures for SDCW after 1993 and for Gathering
Company and Processing Company after 1994. (See "Sale of Gas Gathering and Processing Assets" and
"Sale ofSDCW".)

~" Other major capital requirements include bond maturities/sinking funds, debt retirement and preferred
stock redemptions/preferred stock dividends. Requirements for 1993 also include payments for gas

'contract settlements and the severance program. Requirements for 1994 and ]997 include retirement of
approximately $45 million and approximately $ 15 million 'of first mortgage bonds, respectively.

These estimates are under continuing review and subject to on-going adjustment.

Liquidity Ut

In addition to cash flow from operations, the Company received cash proceeds from certain asset sales
and an asset securitization during 1993. On, August 3, 1993, the Company received $ 60 million from the
securitization relating to amounts being recovered from gas customers relating to certain gas contract
settlements. On August 12, 1993, the Company also received $55 million from the sale ofa 10.04% undivided
interest in SJGS Unit 4 to Anaheim. Proceeds therefrom were used to pay offshort-term debt and to establish
short-term investments. Also during 1993, pollution control revenue bonds totaling $ 182 million and EIP
Secured Facility Bonds totaling $51.3 millionwere refunded and replaced. The refundings willprovide pre-tax
interest savings of approximately $5.5 million per year and $.4 million in reduced lease payments.

In addition, in 1993, the Company entered into a $ 100 million secured revolving credit facility
("Facility") and the Company entered into an additional $40 million credit facility collateralized by the
Company's electric customer accounts receivable (the "Accounts Receivable Securitization"). The Accounts
Receivable Securitization has a term of five years. Together with $ 11 million in local lines of credit, the
Company thus has $ 151 million in liquidity arrangements.

The Company currently estimates a total of $768 million for its capital requirements for the period of
1994 through 1998. The Company expects that such cash requirements are to be met primarily through
internally-generated cash. However, to cover diflerences in the amounts and timing of cash generation and
cash requirements, the Company intends to utilize short-term borrowings under its liquidity arrangements,
including the Facility.
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The 'Fac'dity has an expir'ation'"date~of:June 13o'1995'and'contains'a~provision'thab'could prevent

additional borrowings'in the event of a<material adverse. change in'h'e'condition (financial or otherwise);

results'of operations, assets, business or'prospects of~ the Company. In respect" to! the total debt to total

capitalization'test urider the Facility and'the letter. of'credit issued to support~certain pollution control bonds;

the Company is allowed to exclude from'he calculation'of total"capitalization up to $200 million in pre-'tax

write-offs resulting from the Company's restructuring efforts. The Company was. allowed to exclude, from

the calculation, approximately $ 180'million in pre-tax write-offs resulting from the stipulation. The maximum

allowed ratio of the Company's total debt to total capitalization under the Facility and the letter of credit is

72%. As of December, 31; 1993, such ratio was,68.3%.,

,-The Company. also expects to receive cash proceeds from additional asset sales during 1994 and 1995.

,,The Company is seekiiig to,close the UAMPS transaction in the first half of 1994. The purchase price for the
'35'MW of SJGS Unit 4 is approximately $40 million. Iri a'ddition, the Company exp'ects to consu'inmate,'the

sale, of the Company,,',s water division to'the City of Santa Fe for approximately $48 million in the second'half

of 1994. The Company, along with'its"subsidiaries, Gathering Compan'y'and Processing, Company,"'also

anticipates to receive approxi'mately'$1'55 million from the sale'of certain'atur'al'gas"gathering and proces'sing

a'ssets. Ifthese sales are consummated; the proceeds from these sales which the Company'is'allowed to retain

after tax payments and sharing of the gains could be used to retire long-term debt. The sale of these assets, as,

well'as the amount'f proceeds the'Compariy 'would ultimately retain and the use of~those.proceeds will
be'ubjectto a number of coriditions and.various regulatory.appro'vals.« ',.

'2
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f'inancingCapability and Dividend Restrictions

The Company's ability to raise external, capital.and the cost of such funds depend on, among other

things, its results of operations, credit ratings, regulatory approvals 'and financial market conditions. During
1993, the Company's securities which,were not,already rated below "investment grade" were downgraded to

below "inve'stment grade" by the major,r'ating agencies. Th'e immediate effect of.'the r'eduction in the

Company's'redit. ratings,,by'the major" rating agencies was to increase the'Company's cost of short-teim
bor'rowings u'nder th'e Facility and the cost of the letter of credit supporting $37.3 milhon'ollution contr'ol

reveriue bonds. The Com'pany believes that',the downgrade of the abo've securities does not affect materially
tlie Company's'curr'ent, financial condition and results of

operatioris.','"'ne

impact of the Company's current ratings, together with covenants in the Company's PVNGS Unit
1 and „Unit 2 lease agreements (see PART I, ITEM 2.—"PROPERTIES —Nuclear Plant"), is to limit the
Company's'ability','without"consent"of the "owner'participants and~bondholders in the leas'e transactions, (i)
to enter info any"merg'er'r'onsolidatio'n,'.or (ii)except'in connection with normal dividend

policy,'to'convey,'ransfer,

lea'se or dividend more than 5% of its assets, including c'ash,'n any'single transactio'n or series of
related transactions. The Facility and the Reimbursement Agreemeiit impose similar"restrictions irrespective'f

credit ratings.

The issuance of first mortgage bonds by the Company is subject to earnings coverage and bondable

property provisions of the,Company's first mortgage indenture.'he Company has the capability under the

mortgage indenture, without regard to the earnings test but subject to other conditions, to'issue first mortgage
bonds on the'basis of certain'previously retired bonds. The Company currently has no requirements for

long-'erm'financingduring the 1994 through 1998 period. However, during this period, th'e Company could
enter'into

long-term financings for the purpose of strengthening its balance sheet and reducing its cost of capital."

In'1994;-the Company plans'to redeem $45 million of its 10'/s% first mortgage bonds due" 2004. '"""'

I'he

Company's board of directors, which reviews'the Company's'dividend policy on a continuing basis,

has not declared dividends on its common stock since January 1989. As of December 31; 1993, th'e Company
had a deficit in retained earnings of $ 120.8 million and is currently unable to resume payment of dividends

on its common stock.'he resumption ofcommon dividends is dependent. upon a number'f factors'including
the outcome of the stipulation discussed herein, earnings and financial condition of the. Company.and'ma'rket

29.



Application ofSFAS No. '71; to the Company's firm-requirement wholesale customers, (5)-write-downs of$2.2
;million for-various'non-utility properties,"'(6) a write-offof $2.2 million relating',fo.a canceled transmission
,project,»'(7) additional transaction privilege taxes of $2.1 million, 'and (8) a number.'of, other. miscellaneous
items of $2;3 million. Partially offsetting such charges were the cumulative effect of»the change in the method
ofaccounting for unbilled revenues of $ 12.7 million (see note l„ofnotes to consolidated. financial statements)
and the gain of.$2:3 million recognized from. the sale"of an investinent., <«>, tv ~>»>,,

> ' I'0 f

Significant 1991 items, net of taxes, included the following: (1) additional shareholder litigation expenses
of $ 7.'1 million,.(2) an additional»provision'or loss of $2.5 niillion for disputes related to gas purchase
contracts, (3) losses of $2.4>million'related'.to the >M-S-R energy brokerage agreement caused by the poor
wholesale. power. market and (4) the write-offof AFUDQ and'depreciation related to Four Corners of $2.2
million. Partially offsetting such charges was'the.recapture of damage payinents of.$2.8 million related to the
Company's exit from diversificatio'n activities.a:". l""'»

Net'interest;charges>incr'eased: $ 12!4 million>in.1993 due primarily to: (1) recording'long-term debt of
$ 141 million for the purchase ofapproximately 22% of the beneficial'interests in the PVNGS Units 1 and 2
lea'ses in Septembe'r.1992, (2) the'recording of the. interest component of the p'rovision for loss on the M-S-R
power purchase>contract which.was»recorded in '1992;,and (3) interest resulting from the'IRS examination
settlement. Net interest charges increased $7.7 million in 1992 compared to'1991 primarily due to the interest
expense resulting from"the purchase of approximately 22% of the beneficial interests'n the PVNGS Units 1

and 2 leases; interest owed to PGAC customers and the interest payment related to.the settleinent ofPVNGS
transaction privilege'taxes."» ' >,~ ""> "' "', «,... » i, -.,

»n»'n'i»n i'

„,,OTHER;ISSUES:FACING THE COMPANY
t ''

~t

Excess Capacity Sales/Wholesale Power Market

In its January 11, 1993 announcement,')the Company stated its intention to dispose of excess electric
generating capacity not needed by New Mexicans including, ifpossible, some or all of the Company's share
of PVNGS. Excess electric generating capacity includes excluded capacity, as well, as excess capacity which
is currently in New Mexico jurisdictional>rates and excess'capacity associated with the firm-requirement
wholesale customers. As of December 31, 1993, the Company's excluded capacity consists of 130 MW of
PVNGS Unit 3, 80'MW.ofSan Juan Unit 4 and the 105 MWM-S-R power'urchase contract. The 105 MW
purchase from >M-'S-R expires April 30, 1995.< '«,

II »
'' 4»

;In connection with the. determination to.sell PVNGS,Unit 3, the Company, has, 'made on-going
assessments of its net.realizable value,Q'he Company continues to evaluate its estimates of'suchamounts on
an on-going basis but,currently does>not anticipate additional write-downs or write-.offS'elating>to PVNGS
,Unit 3; The, Company continues",to seek prospective buyers. ', » ni',t ~ I > I>

„>'>o >g»» > ' »»s. ~ > u

On May 27,, 1993,.)he Company, executed a purchase and participation agreement "with UAMPS to sell
not less than 6.024% (30 MW) and.up,to 8.03% (40 MW) undivided ownership interest in SJGS Unit 4.0n
September„ 1, 1993,ithe,Company,and,UAMPS„amended the purchase and participation agreement-,to
establish the, UAMPS purchase,of„excluded SJGS,Unit 4 capacity at 35.MW for approximately, $40'million.
On November 19, 1993, the Company, filed an application with the. NMPUC,for approval of, this sale. On
January 21, 1994, the Company,'he NMPUC Staff and the New Mexico Industrial Energy Consumers
entered into a stipulation requesting'approval of th'e sale. 'Hearings were held-February 15," 1994, and the
Company is awaiting a recommended decision; In addition, the Company made three. filings with the FERC
associated with the sale and has received.approval ori two and is awaiting the outcome of the, remaining filing.
Closing of the transaction willdepend on the fulfillmentof, numerous closing conditions and,quill be subject
to regulatory approvals from the NMPUC and the<FERC;;if. approved, the, Company, anticipates,that'the
closing of,the sale willbe in the first half of 1994." i." ."o
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Until such tiine as excess electric generating resources can be disposed of, the Company continues to be

dependent on the wholesale power market for the recovery of its costs associated with the excluded portion
of these excess resources. The Company has experienced price competition in the wholesale market due to
the availability of surplus capacity from other utilities, projected natural gas fuel prices and the existence of
cogeneration, independent power producers and self-generation as competing energy sources, and expects

such availability to continue. The Company has committed most of its excess capacity to off-system sales

during the 1994 to 2001 timeframe.

On October 27, 1993, SDG&E filed a complaint with the FERC against the Company, alleging that
certain charges under its 1985 power purchase agreement are unjust, unreasonable and unduly
discriminatory. SDG&E is requesting that the FERC investigate the rates charged under the agreement and
establish a refund date effective as ofDecember 26, 1993. The relief, ifgranted, would reduce annual demand
charges paid by SDG&E by up to $ 11 million per year from the effective refund date through April 2001,

subject to certain limitations if the'FERC has not acted within 15 months. The Company responded to the
complaint on December 8, 1993,'nd SDG&E and the Company filed subsequent pleadings. The Company
believes'that the complaint is without merit, and the Company intends to vigorously resist the complaint.

PIGS Decommissioning Funding

The Company has a program for funding its share of decommissioning costs for PVNGS. Under this
program, the Company makes'a 'seiies of annual'deposits to an external trust fund over the estimated useful
life of each unit, and tlie trust funds are being invested under a plan which allows the accumulation of funds
largely on a tax-deferred basis through the use of life insurance policies on certain current and former
employees. The annual trust deposit, approved by the NMPUC in 1987, is currently $396,000 per unit. The
NMPUC jurisdictional share of this amount related to PVNGS Units 1 and 2 is currently included in retail
rates. The results of the 1992 decommissioning cost study indicate that the Company's share of the PVNGS
decommissioning costs will be approximately $ 143.2 million, an increase from $94.2 million based on the
previous study (both amounts are stated in 1993 dollars). The Company has determined that a supplemental
investment program wiH be needed as a result of both the cost increase and the under performance of the
existing investment program. However, a supplemental funding program will not be established until
clarification and/or possible revisions to a FERC order issued in October 1993 regarding restricted
investment vehicles for nuclear decommissioning trusts are obtained. Although a supplemental program will
not be established pending resolution from the FERC, the Company has requested recovery of the increased
decommissioning costs in the stipulation. The market value of the existing trust at the end of 1993 was
approximately $ 11.0 million, including cash surrender value of th'e policies.

I

2 Transmission Right-of-Way

The Company has easements for right-of-way with the Navajo Nation for portions of two transmission
lines'that emanate from SJGS and connect with Four Corners and with a switching station in the
Albuquerque area. One grant of easement for approximately 4.2 miles of right-of-way for two parallel 345
Kv transmission lines expired on January 17, 1993. The Company'has been negotiating with the Navajo
Nation to renew the grant and in light of the expiring grant of easement, requested the development of an
interim agreement under which the parties would operate until a long-term solution could be reached.

)

On January 6, 1994, the Navajo Nation and the Company executed an agreement whereby the Navajo
Nation agreed not to object to the Company's operating and maintaining the facilities on the easement for
right-of-way until July 17, 1994 in return for a cash payment and transfer of title to land located, near the
Navajo, Nation. Additionally, the Navajo Nation and the Company agreed to exert a good faith effort to reach
a long-term right-of-way renewal agreement prior to July 17, 1994. In pursuit of resolution of this issue, the
Navajo Nation sent the Company on February 4, 1994 a letter identifying non-monetary items the Navajo
Nation would be willing to negotiate as consideration for the grant of easement. On February 11, 1994, the
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Navajo Nation and the Company met to establish a schedule for conducting their negotiations. Additionally,
the meeting was conducted for the purpose of the Navajo Nation's presentation of their consultant's findings
on the value of the easement but did not represent these findings to be the Navajo Nation's position for
compensation for renewal of the easement. The Company is evaluating the consultant's findings and has

committed to submitting a proposal to the Navajo Nation by mid-March. The Company continues to assess

its options but is not pursuing other alternatives unless it receives indications that settlement cannot be

reached in a satisfactory manner. The Company is currently unable to predict the outcome of the negotiations
or the costs resulting therefrom.

OLE Transmission Proj ect

In May 1984, the Company's Board of Directors approved plans to construct OLE, a 345 Kv
transmission line connecting the existing Ojo 345 Kv line to the existing Norton Station. The Company has

incurred approximately $ 15 million of costs associated with OLE as of December 31, 1993, and it currently
estimates that project costs will total approximately $48 million. OLE is designed to provide a needed

improvement to the northern New Mexico transmission system and to allow greater" delivery of power from
SJGS, Four Corners and PVNGS into the Company's two largest service territories, the greater Albuquerque
area and the Santa Fe/Las Vegas area. The Company obtained right-of-way permits from two of the three
Federal agencies having authority over the lands involved in the project. Federal district and appellate courts
upheld the record ofdecision on the OLE environmental impact statement. However, OLE faces considerable

opposition by persons concerned primarily about the environmental impacts of the project.

On March 11, 1991, the Company filed for NMPUC approval for construction of OLE. Hearings have

been held and final briefs were filed in December 1992. Until final approvals are received, the Company will
use interim measures to continue to provide reliable service. The Company is awaiting a final decision from
the NMPUC and has no indication of when a decision willbe made.,

Environmental Issues —Gas

The Company has evaluated the potential impacts of the following environmental issues. The Company
believes, after consideration of established reserves, that the ultimate outcome of these environmental issues

willnot have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation'and LiabilityAct ("CERCLA")
Two CERCLA 104(e) orders were received from the EPA in late December 1993, requesting information

regarding shipment of wastes to the Lee Acres Landfill, located on BLM land near the city of Bloomfield in
San Juan County, New Mexico. The landfill is currently listed on the National Priorities List as a superfund
site. GCNM and Gathering Company have assessed their records and other information to determine whether
wastes were ever shipped from their facilities to the landfill during the period when they owned and operated
the natural gas facilities. GCNM and Gathering Company's assessment indicated that no hazardous wastes

or cause of such wastes were shipped from their facilities to the landfill during this time period. Nonetheless,

GCNM and Gathering Company could be determined to be potentially responsible parties if the EPA
determines GCNM and Gathering Company shipped wastes to the site, and could be asked or compelled to
provide funds for site cleanup. GCNM and Gathering Company prepared and submitted their response to
the EPA on March 8, 1994.

Toxic Substances Control Act ("TSCA ")

TSCA requires manufacturers and importers of organic chemicals, including natural gas substances, to
report a listing and quantity of certain toxic chemicals to the EPA every four years. Naturally occu'rring

substances such as crude oil and unprocessed natural gas need not be reported. Due to the natural gas

industry's interpretation on when unprocessed natural gas becomes a reportable substance, GCNM and

Processing Company did not report TSCA 'substances to the EPA in prior reporting years of 1986 and 1990.

As a result of the EPA's clarification on the limited scope of the exemption, GCNM and Processing Company
now have filed their reports for 1986 and 1990 and will report such substances to the EPA in the 1994

reporting year. The companies may be subject to administrative fines/penalties for their failure to report in
1986 and 1990. The maximum penalty allowed under the statute is $25,000/day for every day the report has

not been filed.



Gas Wellhead Pit Remediation

Effective September 1992, the OCD issued a ruling which affects GCNM and Gathering Company's
natural gas gathering facilities located in the northwestern part of New Mexico. The ruling prohibits the
further discharge of fluids associated with the production of natural gas into unlined open pits in certain
areas deemed environmentally sensitive due to their proximity to fresh water supplies. In addition to the
cessation of the discharge of fluids, the ruling requires that GCNM and Gathering Company remediate the
areas where discharges have contaminated fresh water supplies. GCNM has submitted generic closure plans
for the pits, which have been approved by OCD and the BLM.

AirPermits

A recent environmental audit, associated with the Company's proposed sale ofcertain gas assets, brought
to light certain discrepancies regarding required air permits associated with certain natural gas facilities. The
audit identified a total of thirteen fa'cilities containing discrepancies. The vast majority of the discrepancies
are minor in nature and include discrepancies in record keeping, equipment identification and inaccurate
information in air permit applications. The discrepancies at three of the facilities involve permit issuance and
modification and are more serious in nature. The Company is subject to'administrative fines/penalties by the
New Mexico Environment Department ("NMED")for these discrepancies.

f

The Company plans to meet with the NMED in March 1994 to discuss the nature of the permit
discrepancies and to propose methods and schedules to resolve the discrepancies. The resolution process will
include the filing of p'ermit applications, modifications and revisions where necessary. After reviewing the
applications, NMED will determine whether to grant the application, modification or revision and make a

determination whether to impose any fines/pe'nalties.
F , 'I

The CERCLA, air permits and gas wellhead pit remediation issues previously discussed are part of the
retained environmental liabilities under the sale agreement with Williams (see Sale of Gas Gathering and
Processing Assets).

Environmental Issue —Electric

The Company's current estimate to decommission its retired fossil-fueled plants (see "Fossil-Fueled
Plant Decommissioning Costs" ) includes approximately $ 17.2 million for a groundwater remediation
program at Person Station. The Company, in compliance, with a New Mexico Environment Action Directive,
has determined that ground water contamination exists in the deep and shallow water aquifers. The Company
is required to delineate the extent of the contamination and remediate the contaminant in the ground water.
The extent of the contaminant plume in the deep water aquifer is not currently known, and the estimate
assumes that the deep ground water plume can be easily delineated with a minimum number of monitoring
wells. As part of the financial assurance requirements of the Person Station Hazardous Waste Permit, the
Company posted a $ 3.7 million performance bond with a trustee. The remediation program continues on
schedule. The Company does not anticipate any material adverse impact on its financial condition or the
results of operations with respect to the remediation program.

Fossil-Fueled Plant Decommissioning Costs

The Company's six owned or partially owned, in service and retired, fossil-fueled generating stations ar'

expected to incur dismantling and reclamation costs as they are decommissioned. The Company's share of
decommissioning costs for all of its fossil-fueled generating stations is.projected to be approximately $ 126
million stated in 1992 dollars, including approximately $24 million for Person, Prager and Santa Fe Stations
which have been retired.

In June of 1993, the Company filed for recovery of all estimated decommissioning costs by factoring
them into its depreciation rates included in'the Company's depreciation rate study filed with the NMPUC.
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As previously discussed, the Company and the interested parties entered into the January 12, 1994
stipulation. The stipulation affirms the Company's right to recover all fair, just and reasonable costs arising
from the decommissioning of its 'fossil-fueled generating plants in service, including demolition, waste
disposal, environmental and site restoration. The stipulation also resolves the issues of decertification and
decommissioning of the Company's three retired fossil-fueled generating stations resulting in the Company
foregoing recovery'of the first $24.4 million of decommissioning costs associated with these stations. The
stipulation is subject to NMPUC approval.

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station—Steam Generator Tubes

On December 26, 1993, PVNGS Unit 3 returned to service at approximately 85% power following a
mid-cycle outage during which APS inspected Unit 3's steam generators. APS has informed the NRC that
the inspection did not reveal the type of tube degradation (axial cracking in upper bundle) experienced in
Unit 2's steam generators; however, the inspection did reveal another more common type of tube degradation
(circumferential cracking at tubesheet) in Unit 3's steam generators which has occurred in similarly-designed
steam generators at other plants. The next regular refueling outage for Unit 3 is scheduled to begin in March
1994, at which time APS plans to inspect and chemically clean that unit's steam generators.

On January 8, 1994, APS removed Unit 2 from service to inspect and chemically clean its two steam
generators during a mid-cycle outage. The inspection revealed additional tube degradation of the type (axial
cracking in upper bundle) previously found in that unit's steam generators. The inspection has also revealed
the common type of tube degradation (circumferential cracking at tubesheet) which has occurred in similarly-
designed steam generators at other plants. Based on these findings, APS expanded the scope'of the inspection
of the Unit 2 steam generators and the planned duration of the outage until late March. However, because
APS's analysis of Unit 2's steam generators is ongoing, APS cannot predict with certainty the timing of the
restart of Unit 2. APS is currently evaluating the need for an additional mid-cycle outage for Unit 2 during
1994.

Unit 1 and Unit 3 continue to operate at approximately 85% power since each unit returned to service
in November 1993 and December 1993, respectively, after outages during which each unit's steam generators
were inspected.

4

APS has performed, and is continuing, certain corrective actions including, among other things, chemical
cleaning, operating the units at reduced temperatures, and, for some period, operating the units at
approximately 85% power. As a result of these corrective actions, all three units should be returned to 100%
power by mid 1995, and one or more of the units could be returned to 100% power during the course of
1994. So long as the three units are involved in mid-cycle outages and are operated at approximately 85%
power, the Company will incur replacement power costs and reduced wholesale sale incentives of
approximately'5.7 million during'1994, approximately 75% of which will 'be recovered through the
Company's FPPCAC.

El Paso Electric Company

The Company owns or leases a 10.2% interest in PVNGS and'owns a 13% interest in Four Corners
Units 4 and 5, which are operated by APS. El Paso owns or leases a 15.8% interest in PVNGS and owns a

7.0% interest in Four Corners Units 4 and 5.
V

On January 8, 1992, El Paso filed a voluntary petition.to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. On September 8, 1992, El Paso filed a plan of reorganization with the bankruptcy
court, which was later amended pursuant to an October 26, 1992 filing with the court. On May 4, 1993, El
Paso and Central and South West Corporation ("CSW") announced a plan for merger in connection'with El
Paso's Chapter 11 reorganization, under which El Paso would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSW.
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A modified amended El Paso —CSW plan and disclosure statement dated August 27, 1993 has been filed
with the bankruptcy court and was approved December 8, 1993. In order for the merger to be implemented,
CSW and El Paso must receive appropriate regulatory approvals, including approval of the NRC and the

FERC. In the El Paso —CSW FERC proceedings, the Company has intervened to protect its interests relative

to the various transmission issues raised by the El Paso —CSW filings. The Company's regulatory filings in
the FERC proceeding address reliability and potential system impacts that may result to the Company from
the merger. At this time the Company is unable to predict the result of these regulatory proceedings.

'In"addition to approving -the El. Paso —CSW plan, the bankruptcy'court approved the Cure'and
Assumption Agreement between El Paso and the PVNGS participants, which provides for (i) various'mutual

releases and (ii)'the execution of a release by El Paso and any alleged claims regarding the 1989-90 PVNGS
outages. All such releases will be effective on the effective date of the El Paso —CSW plan. The Cure and

Assumption Agreement also provided for payment in full to the PVNGS participants of pre-petition monies

owed by El Paso. El Paso has made the payment contingent upon its completion of the merger with CSW.

The bankruptcy court also approved the assumption by El Paso of several wheeling agreements that El
Paso and the Company agreed to extend as part of a 120 day transition agreement. In connection with the
assumptions, El Paso paid the Company approximately $2.3 million owed for pre and post-petition wheeling
services. Although the transition agreement has expired by its terms, the parties have signed an agreement in
principle for near-term and longer-term wheeling services. The agreement would provide El Paso with a total
of 80 MW of transmission service until such time as El Paso installs a phase shifting transformer ("PST")
which is expected to be late 1995. The agreement would provide El Paso with 20 MW of service after the
PST is installed in exchange for payment by El Paso of proportional costs incurred by the Company for
generation support of the transmission as well as wheeling charges. The Company and El Paso have also

agreed to negotiate both near-term and longer-term operating procedures, which may include transfer by the
Company of operating agent status for the Southern New Mexico Transmission System to El Paso. The
Company will continue to retain its transmission rights (presently 75 MW) in southern New Mexico. The
wheeling agreement willbe subject to regulatory approval at FERC and willalso be reviewed by the NMPUC
in connection with several regulatory filings ofEl Paso, both predating and in connection with the El Paso-
CSW merger.

Albuquerque Franchise Issues

The Company's non-exclusive electric service franchise with the City of Albuquerque (the "City")
expired in early 1992. The franchise agreement provided for the Company's use of City property for electric
service rights-of-way. The Company continues service to the area, which contributed 46% of the Company's
total 1993 electric operating revenues. The absence of a franchise does not change the Company's right and
obligation to serve those customers under state law. In November 1991, the NMPUC issued an order
concluding, among other things, that the City could bid for services to its own facilities (Albuquerque
municipal loads generated approximately $ 17.0 million, $ 16 million and $ 17 million in annual revenue for
1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively), but not for service to other customers. In reaching this conclusion, the
NMPUC noted that New Mexico law reflects a legislative choice to vest the NMPUC with exclusive control
over utility rates and services. The NMPUC also noted that the Company's obligation to serve its customers
in Albuquerque willcontinue irrespective of whether the municipal franchise is renewed. The City appealed
the NMPUC's order to the New Mexico Supreme Court (the "Court"). On April21, 1993, the Court issued
its decision on the City's appeal of the NMPUC order. The Court ruled that a city can negotiate rates for its
citizens in addition to its own facility uses. The Court also ruled that any contracts with utilities for electric
rates are a matter of statewide concern and subject to approval, disapproval or modification by the NMPUC.
In addition, the Court reaffirmed the NMPUC's exclusive power to designate providers of utility service
within a municipality and confirmed that municipal franchises were not licenses to serve but rather to provide
access to public rights-of-way.
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In 1992, representatives of the Company and the City met in attempts to resolve the franchise renewal
issue. Currently, the franchise renewal meetings are in abeyance due to the City's interest in the outcome of
the retail wheeling legislation which was introduced in the 1993 state legislative session. The Company
continues to pay franchise fees to the City.

I

Retail Wheeling

During 1992, open access to transmission grids in the electric wholesale market, as mandated by the
National Energy Policy Act, stimulated interest in the retail wheeling concept in New Mexico, resulting in
the introduction of legislation in the 1993 New Mexico state legislature. On March 6,.1993, the New Mexico
State Senate passed Senate Memorial 54, which calls for the concept of retail wheeling to be studied by the
Integrated Resource Planning Committee which is an interim legislative committee, with a report to be made
to the 1995 legislature. The Company has been providing information for the study eQ'ort. The study is

anticipated to be completed by,December 1994.
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MANAGEMENT'SRESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIALSTATEMENTS
tl

The management of Public Service Company of New Mexico is responsible for the preparation and

presentation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements

have been prepared in conformity, with generally accepted accounting principles and include amounts that
are based on informed estimates and judgments of management.

Management maintains a system of internal accounting controls which it believes is adequate to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are executed in accordance with management

authorization and the financial records are reliable for preparing the consolidated financial statements. The

system of internal accounting controls is supported by written,policies and procedures, by a staff of internal
auditors who conduct comprehensive internal audits and by the selection and training of qualified personnel.

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee comprised entirely of outside directors, meets

periodically with management, internal auditors and the Company's independent auditors to discuss auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters. To ensure their independence, both the internal auditors and

independent auditors have full and free access to the Audit Committee.

The independent auditors, Arthur Andersen 2 Co., are engaged to audit the Company's consolidated

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board ofDirectors and the Stockholders of
Public Service Company of New Mexico:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and statement of ca ital' fP bl'capiaizationo u ic

and the related con
p y ew Mexico (a New Mexico corporation) and subsidiaries 'as of D b 31 1993

ted consolidated statements of earnings (loss), retained earnings (deficit), and cash flows for the
year then ended. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financ'al tat ts h I

e nancial statement schedules V, VI and IX for the year ended December 31, 1993. These financial

res onsibilit is to
statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibilit of the Com an

'esponsii ity is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial'state t h d 1 bmen sc e ues ased

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted. auditin standards. Th
r uire that we lan a

i ing s n ar s. ose standards
eq

'
a we p an and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the fin 1

statements are freree of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
w e er e ancia

supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing t e
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairl in all '
n air y, in a materia respects, the

the results
nancia position of Public Service Company of New Mexico and subsidiaries as of D b 31 1993 decem er,, an

accountin rinci I
of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformit with e 11n rmi y wi genera y accepted

relation to th

'
princip es. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules h 'd d

'

basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects,
, w en consi ere in

the information set forth therein. These financial statement schedules t d fe u es are presente or purposes ofcomplying
wit the Securities and Exchange Commissions rules and are not art of the b 1'dp o e asic conso i ated financial

t

As explained in Notes 1 and 6 to the financial statements, effective Janua 1 1993 the C
ado ted Statement ofP Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, Employers'ccounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions, and No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes.

ARTHUR ANDERSEN 4 CO.

Albuquerque, New Mexico
February 25, 1994
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Independent Auditors'eport

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Public Service Company of New Mexico:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet and statement of capitalization of Public Service

Company of New Mexico and subsidiaries as of December 31, 1992, and the related statements of earnings

(loss), retained earnings (deficit) and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December
31, 1992. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the
financial statement schedules V, VI and IX for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31,
1992. These consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance ab'out whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,"on' test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

.In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Public Service Company of New Mexico and subsidiaries as of December
31, 1992, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period
ended December 31, 1992, in conformity with generally accepted ac'counting principles. Also in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all materiaL respects, the information set forth therein.

The Company has substantial excess electric generating capacity, the cost and amount ofwhich continue
to negatively impact financial condition and results of operations as well as the level of New Mexico retail
rates. The Company has adopted certain plans and is evaluating other options to address the negative effects
related to its excess capacity. Because the ultimate outcome of these matters, including NMPUC regulatory
responses thereto, is not presently determinable, the recovery of (i) the Company's remaining direct
investment in Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station (PVNGS) Unit 3, and (ii) its lease costs related to
PVNGS Units 1 and 2, is uncertain. Accordingly, neither a provision for any additional loss related to
PVNGS Unit 3 nor any provision for loss related to PVNGS Units 1 and 2 has been recognized in the
accompanying 1992 consolidated financial statements.

As discussed in note 1 of notes to consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method
of accounting for unbilled revenues in 1992.

Albuquerque, New Mexico
March 11, 1993

KPMG PEAT MARWICK
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOAND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (LOSS)

Operating Revenues (note 1):
Electric .

Gas;
Water.

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses:
Fuel and purchased power (note 1)
Gas purchased for resale

.Other operation expenses.
Maintenance and repairs .

Depreciation and amortization
Taxes, other than income taxes
Income taxes (note 5).

0

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Other Income and Deductions:
Allowance for equity funds used during construction . ~...... ~....
Write-down of PVNGS Unit 3 and the provision for loss associated

with the M-S-R power purchase contract (note 2) ..............
Write-down of PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases, regulatory assets and

other deferred costs (note 2)
Other .

Income tax benefit (note 5)

Net other income and deductions.

Income (loss) before interest charges

Interest Charges:
Interest on long-term debt
Other interest charges
Allowance for borrowed funds used during construction ....... ~

Net interest charges

Net Earnings (Loss) .

Preferred Stock Dividend Requirements ...........
Net Earnings (Loss) Available for Common Stock

$589,728
271,087

13,063

873,878

i

$ 596,323 $568,486
243,159 277,069

12,471 11,613

'851,953 857,168

140,674
125,940
274,023

56,821
77,326
40,089
25,721

740,594

133,284

177,325
98,517

273,141
54,309
79,256
40,579
16,891

164,711
131,479
282,418

52,229
76,053
39,214
13,811

740,018 759,915

111,935 '97,253

"
68 1,105

(221,324)

(178,954)
(12,792) (28,895) (13,284)
82,799 " 107,371 3,618

(108,947) (142,780) (8,561)

24,337 (30,845) 88,692

72,525
13,719

(421)

85,823

(61,486)
6,829

63,826 59,928
10,735 ',608
(1,151) '1,804)
73,410 65,732

(104,255), 22,960
7,105 9,474

$ (68,315) $(111,360) $ 13,486

Year Ended December 31,,
"<'993

1992 1991

gn thousands except per share amounts)

Average Number of Common Shares Outstanding. 41,774 41,774 41,774

Net Earnings (Loss) per Share of Common Stock

Dividends Paid per Share of Common Stock .

$ (1.64) $ (2.67) $ 0.32

$ — $ — $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOAND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTOF RETAINED EARNINGS 6)EFICIT)

Year Ended December 31,

Balance at Beginning of Year .

Net earnings (loss) .

Redemption of cumulative preferred stock
Dividends:

Cumulative preferred stock
Common stock

Balance at End of Year .

1993 1992

gn thousands)

$ (52,533) $ 60,189
(61,486) (104,255)

(1,362)

(6,829) (7,105)

$ (120,848) $ (52,533)

1991

$46,703
22,960

(9,474)

$ 60,189

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPA'NY OF NEW MEXICOAND'SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATEDBALANCESHEET
December 31,

ASSETS 1993 1992

Qn thousands)
UtilityPlant, at original cost except PVNGS Unit 3 and the 22% beneficial interests in

PVNGS Units 1 &2 leases (notes 1, 2, 3 and 7):
Electric plant in service
Gas plant in service
Water plant in service
Common plant in service
Plant held for future use

$ 1,789,100
511,527

54,325
47,581

375

$ 1,985,197
485,637

55,819
'6,510

1,258

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .

Construction work in progress .
Nuclear fuel, net of accumulated amortization of $30,425 and $25,476. ~.........

Net utilityplant.
Other Property and Investments:

Non-utility property, at cost, net of accumulated depreciation, partially pledged...
Other investments, at cost, partially pledged

Total other property and investments.
Current Assets:

Cas h ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

Temporary investments, at cost .
R<xeivables
Income taxes receivable.
Fuel, materials and supplies, at average cost.
Gas in underground storage, at average cost.
Other current assets.

Total current assets.

Deferred charges

CAPITALIZATIONAND LIABILITIES
Capitalization (note 3):

Common stock equity:
Common stock outstanding~1,774,083 shares.
Additional paid-in capital
Excess pension liability,net of tax (note 6) .
Retained earnings (deficit) since January 1, 1989

Total common stock equity .
Cumulative preferred stock without mandatory redemption requirements ..
Cumulative preferred stock with mandatory redemption requirements.....
Long-term debt, less current maturities .

Total capitalization .

Current Liabilities:
Short-term debt .
Accounts payable
Current maturities of long-term debt (note 3).
Accrued interest and taxes
Other current liabilities .

Total current liabilities
Deferred Credits:

Accumulated deferred investment tax credits (note 5)
Accumulated deferred income taxes (note 5) .
Other deferred credits .

Total deferred credits
Commitments and Contingencies (notes 2 and 6 through 11) .

2,402,908
846,234

1,556,674
109,333
37,925

2,564,421
812,737

1,751,684
87,547
37,830

1,703,932 1,877,061

6,489
27,477

33,966

9,369
31,683

41,052

20,510
47,850

147,223
10,400
48,086

8,599
11,347

21,080
185

135,847
9,225

51,308
9,014
7,039

$ 208,870
470,149

(2,795)
(120,848)
555,376

59,000
24,386

957,622

208,870
470,149

(52,533)
626,486

59,000
25,700

911,252

1,596,384 1,622,438

116,905
18,903
29,992
51.364

51,550
170,644

13,524
29,361
36,596

217,164 301,675

78,462
47,283

272,896

86,783
98,141

266,545

398,641 451,469

$ 2,212,189 $ 2,375,582

294,015 233,698

180,276 223,771

$2,212,189 $2,375,582

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year Ended December 31,

1993 1992 1991

Qn thousands)
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net earnings (loss) .
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash flows from operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortization .

Allowance for equity funds used during construction .."........"...'."....
Accumulated deferred investment tax credit.
Accumulated deferred income tax
Write-down of PVNGS Unit 3 and the provision for loss associated

with the M-S-R power purchase contract .

Gain on sale of utilityproperty .

Gain on sale of other property and investments
Write-down of PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases, regulatory assets and other

deferred costs .

Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Receivables .

Fuel, materials and supplies
Deferred charges.............................................
Accounts payable .

Accrued interest and taxes.
Deferred credits.
Other .

Other, net

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Utilityplant additions.
Palo Verde lease purchase .

Utilityplant sales
Other property additions
Other property sales .

Temporary investments, net .

Net cash flows from investing activities .

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Redemptions and repurchases of preferred stock.
Bond refinancing costs .
Proceeds from asset securitization.
Repayments of long-term debt
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt
Dividends paid.

Net cash flows from financing activities.....
Increase (Decrease) in Cash
Cash at Beginning of Period

Cash at End ofYear .

$ (61,486) $(104,255) $22,960

95,415

(8,321)
(63,393)

(7,350)
(12,394)

178,954

100,510 97,226
(68) (1,105)

(21,390) (8,323)
(88,664) 25,539

221,324

(4,346)

(12,551)
3.222

20,936
(53,973)

631
(7,137)
10,571
14,181

97,305

(29,224)
621

(31,427)
13,671

(155)
38,997
10,654
7,612

118,206

(78
(3,916

(27,312
29,592
(1,401)

(17,372)
2,602

107,043

(100,784)

49,302
(2,554)
19,912

(47,665)

95,009)
17,523)

(79,894)

(8,564) (6,827)
68 15,878

3,920 (2,061)

(81,789) (117,108) (72,904)

(600)
(8,960)
60,475
(8,842)

(51,550)
(6,609)

(16,086)

(570)
21,080

(19,067)

(2,456)
38,550
(7,750)

9,277

10,375
10,705

(3,462)

(12,938)
(2,000)
(9,622)

(28,022)

6,117
4,588

$ 10,705$ 20,510 $ 21,080

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Interest paid

Income taxes paid .

$ 83,248 $ 72,630

$ 13,978 $ 11,848

$66,200

$ 2,065

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and financing activities: ll

On September 2, 1992, the Company acquired approximately 22% of the lessors'nterests in the PVNGS Units 1

and 2 leases. In conjunction with the acquisition, long-term debt was recorded as
follows.'tility

plant acquired . $ 158,282
Cash paid for beneficial interests and transaction costs .................. (17,523)

Long-term debt recorded................................. " $ (140,759)

Cash consists of currency on hand and demand deposits.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAPITALIZATION

December 31,

1993 1992

(In thousands)
Common Stock Equity (note 3):

Common Stock, par value $5 per share .

Additional paid-in capital
Excess pension liability, net of tax (note 6).
Retained earnings (deficit) since January 1, 1989 .....;„.

Total common stock equity

Shares
Stated Outstanding at
Value December 31, 1993

Current
Redemption

Price

$ 208,870 $ 208>870
470,149 470,149

(2,795)
(120,848) (52,533)

555,376 626,486

Cumulative Preferred Stock (note 3):
Without mandatory redemption requirements:

1965 Series, 4.58% ~................ $ 100
8.48% Series . '00
8.80% Series . 100

130,000
200,000
260,000

590,000

$ 102.00 13,000 13,000
100.00 20,000 20,000
100.00 26,000 26,000

59,000 59,000

With mandatory redemption requirements:
8.75% Series
Redeemable within one year .........

Long-Term Debt (note 3):

256,861
13,Xb ',

243,86 1'

102.90 25,686
1,300

24,386

26,286
586

25,700

Issue and Final Maturity

First mortgage bonds:
1997
1999 through 2002 .................
2004 through 2007 .................
2008
Pollution control revenue bonds:
1993 through 2023 .................
2022

Total first mortgage bonds.......
Pollution control revenue bonds:

2003 through 2013 .................
Lease obligation bonds of First PV Funding

Corporation:
1996 through 2016 ............... ~ .

Asset securitization.
Other, including unamortized premium and

(discount) .

Total long-term debt ......... ~.....
Less current maturities.

Long-term debt, less current maturities.
Total Capitalization

Interest Rates

57/8%
7i/4% to 8'/s%
8'/s% to 10'/s%

9%

5.9% to 7/4%
Variable rate

10%%uo to 10/4%

8.95% to 10.3%

15,400
44,639
92,461
57,386

537,045
37,300

15,551
44,978
92,766
57,386

437,045
37,300

784,231 685,026

100,000

137,164
56,137

140,759

(1,007) (1,009)

976,525
18,903

924,776
13,524

957,622 911,252

$ 1,596,384 $ 1,622,438

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Systems ofAccounts

The Company maintains its accounts for utility operations primarily in accordance with the uniform

systems of accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") and the National

Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners'"NARUC"), and adopted, by the New Mexico Public

UtilityCommission ("NMPUC").

Principles ofConsolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and subsidiaries in which it
owns a majority voting interest. Allsignificant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated.

UtilityPlant

Utilityplant, with the exception of Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("PVNGS") Unit 3 and the

Company's purchased 22% beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases, is stated at original cost,

which includes capitalized payroll-related costs such as taxes, pension and other fringe benefits, administrative

costs and an allowance for funds used during construction ("AFUDC").Utilityplant includes certain electric

assets not subject to NMPUC regulation. The results of operations of such electric assets are included in

operating income. (See note 2.)
C

It is Company policy to charge repairs and minor replacements of property to maintenance expense and

to charge major replacements to utilityplant. Gains or losses resulting from retirements or other dispositions

of operating property in the normal course of business are credited or charged to the accumulated provision

for depreciation.

Depreciation and Amortization

Provision for depreciation and amortization ofutilityplant is made at annual straight-line rates approved

by the NMPUC. The average rates used are as follows:

Electric plant .

Gas plant...
Water plant.
Common plant

1993

2.98%
3.12%
2.62%
4.90%

1992 1991

2.94% 2.90%
2.91% 3.13%
2.62% 2 58%
4.92% 6.53%

The provision for depreciation of certain equipment is charged to clearing accounts and subsequently

allocated to operating expenses or construction projects based on the use of the equipment.

Depreciation of non-utility property is computed on the straight-line method. Amortization of, nuclear

fuel is computed based on the units of production method.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction

As provided by the uniform systems of accounts, AFUDC, a noncash item, is charged to utilityplant.

AFUDC represents the cost ofborrowed funds (allowance for borrowed funds used during construction) and
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OP NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSI'ATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(1) Summary of Signiflcant Accounting Policies —(Continued)

a return on other funds (allowance for equity funds used during construction). The Company capitalizes
AFUDCon construction work in progress and nuclear fuel in the process ofenrichment to the extent allowed
by regulatory commissions. With the January 11, 1993 announcement, the Company determined that
beginning with the fourth quarter of 1992, it would suspend recording AFUDC on construction work in
progress pending the outcome of the framework filing (see note 2). The Company did record AFUDC on
nuclear fuel in process during this time.

AFUDC is computed using the maximum rate permitted by the FERC. The total AFUDC rates used
were 4.37%, 5.27%, and 8.96% for 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively, compounded semi-annually.

Fuel, Purchased Power and Gas Purchase Costs

The Company uses the deferral method of accounting for the portion of base fuel costs (defined as fuel
costs plus net purchased power costs less oiF-system sales revenues) and gas purchase costs which is reflected
in subsequent periods under fuel and purchased power cost adjustment clauses and gas adjustment clauses.
Future recovery of these costs is based on orders issued by the regulatory commissions.

Amortization ofDebt Discount, Premium, and Expense

Discount, premium and expense related to the issuance and retirement of long'-term debt are
amortized'ver

the lives of the respective issues. Costs associated with retirement of long-term debt related to the
Company's NMPUC jurisdictional customers were written off as part of the January 12, 1994 stipulation.
(See note 2.)

Income Taxes

Certain revenue and expense items in the consolidated statement of earnings (loss) are recorded for
financial reporting purposes in years different from those in which they are recorded for income tax purposes.
Customers under NMPUC jurisdiction are charged currently for the tax effects ofcertain of these differences
(normalization). However, the income tax effects of certain other differences result in reductions of income
tax expense for ratemaking purposes in the current year as required by the NMPUC (flow-through). This
flow-through method is used primarily for minor differences between book and tax depreciation. A 1990
NMPUC order in an electric rate case required reversal of the flow-through treatment previously accorded
the premiums on retirement of first mortgage bonds and losses on hedging transactions, and retroactively
required tax normalization of these items. Additional tax normalization is required by generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP")for all temporary difFerences not subject to NMPUC rate regulation.

Deferred income taxes are recorded to reflect tax normalization using the liabilitymethod. Deferred tax
liabilities are computed using the enacted tax rates scheduled to be in effect when the temporary differences
reverse. For regulated operations, any changes in tax rates applied to accumulated deferred income taxes may
not be immediately recognized because of ratemaking and tax accounting provisions contained in the Tax
Reform Act of 1986. For items accorded flow-through treatment under NMPUC orders, defer'red income
taxes and the future ratemaking efFects ofsuch taxes, as well as corresponding regulatory assets and liabilities,
are recorded.

Effective January 1, 1993, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. SFAS No. 109 requires the use of the liability method for



PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO,AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—'(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies —(Continued)

recording deferred income, taxes on temporary differences between income tax and financial reporting using

the enacted tax rates at which such difFerences are expected to reverse. The Company had previously adopted

SFAS No. 96, which also required the use of the liabilitymethod. For that reason, the adoption ofSFAS No.

109 had no material effect upon 1993 operating results.

The Revenue Reconciliation Act of 1993, enacted in August of 1993, contains a provision which raises

the corporate Federal income tax rate from 34 to 35 percent, retroactive to January 1, 1993. The effects of
this change were, recorded during 1993. Neither this nor any other provision of this Act is expected to have

any material impact on the Company's financial condition or its results of operations.

t

Change in Accounting for Unbilled Revenues

Prior to January 1, 1992, the Company„recognized utility revenues when billed. To provide a better

matching of the Company's revenues from sales with the related costs, effective January 1, 1992, the Company

changed its method of accounting to record estimated revenues from sales of utility services provided

subsequent to monthly billingcycle dates but prior to the end of the accounting period. The cumulative effect

of this accounting change as of January 1, 1992, net of taxes, was $ 12.7 million or $ .30 per common share

and was included in 1992 net earnings as,a component of other income and deductions. The effect of the

accounting change on 1992 net income, exclusive of the cumulative effect, was to increase net earnings and

net earnings per common share by $ 1.7 million and $ .04, respectively. Had the accrual method been applied

in 1991, net earnings for that year would not have been materially different from that shown in the

consolidated statement of earnings. The effect of this accounting change has resulted in a decrease in net

earnings and net earnings per common share by $ 1.0 million and $.02, respectively, for the twelve months

ended December 31, 1993.

(2) Electric Operations Stipulation and Write-Offs
'n

January 11, 1993, the Company announced specific actions which were determined to be necessary

in order to accelerate the Company's preparation for the new challenges in the competitive electric energy

market. Included in the announcement was the Company's intention to file a plan ("framework filing") with
the NMPUC designed to lower electric prices by consolidating certain gas and electric functions,

restructuring assets and reducing operation and maintenance expenses by $25 millionannually. The Company

separated the gas and electric customer service consolidation issues from the balance of the framework filing.

In its January 11, 1993 announcement, the Company also stated its intention to dispose of excess electric

generating capacity not needed by New Mexicans including, ifpossible, some or all of the Company's share

of PVNGS. Excess electric generating capacity includes excluded capacity, as well as excess capacity which

is currently in New Mexico jurisdictional rates and excess capacity associated with the firm-requirement

wholesale customers. As of December 31, 1993, the Company's excluded capacity consists of 130 MW of
PVNGS Unit 3, 80 MW of San Juan Generating Station ("SJGS") Unit 4 and the 105 MW M-S-R Public

Power Agency ("M-S-R")power purchase contract. As a result of the Company's decision to attempt to sell

PVNGS Unit 3, the Company estimated the net realizable value of PVNGS Unit 3 and the M-S-R power

purchase contract and recorded an after-tax loss of $ 126.2 million at December 31, 1992. The Company

continues to evaluate its estimate of such amounts on an on-going basis but currently does not anticipate

additional write-downs or write-offs of PVNGS Unit 3 and the M-S-R power purchase contract. The

Company continues to seek prospective buyers for the PVNGS units.



PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOAND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(2) Electric Operations Stipulation and Write-Offs—(Continued)

On January 12, 1994,- the Company and the NMPUC staff and primary intervenor groups (the New
Mexico Attorney General, the New Mexico Industrial Energy Consumers, the City of Albuquerque, the
United States Executive Agencies and the New Mexico Retail Association) ("interested parties") entered into
a stipulation ("stipulation") which addresses retail electric prices, generation assets and certain financial
concerns of the Company. The Company filed the stipulation with the NMPUC, recommending that electric
retail rates be reduced by $30 million. This reduction is accomplished primarily through the write-down of
the 22% beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases purchased by the Company, the write-offof
certain regulatory assets and other deferred costs, the write-off of certain PVNGS Units 1 and 2 common
costs and the Company's previously announced cost reduction efforts. In connection with the stipulation, the
Company has charged approximately $ 108.2 million, after-tax, to the 1993 results of operations. Such after-
tax charge resulted in the Company continuing to have a deficit in retained earnings as ofDecember 31, 1993.
As a result, the Company is unable to resume payment of dividends on its common stock. The Company
evaluated the possibility of a quasi-reorganization but does not intend to implement a quasi-reorganization at
this time.

The stipulation is subject to NMPUC approval. The Company believes that the approval of the
stipulation would result in a reduction ofcompetitive risk and regulatory uncertainty. However, there can be
no assurance that the stipulation willbe approved by the NMPUC. Ifthe stipulation is not approved in its
entirety, unless otherwise agreed to by all interested parties, the stipulation shall be null and void.

On January 3, 1994, the NMPUC issued an order establishing investigations of rates for both the
Company and Southwestern Public Service Company ("SPS"). The order required the Company to file a
general rate case no later than July 1, 1994. However, at the prehearing conference held on February 23,
1994, regarding the stipulation, the NMPUC vacated the requirements of its original request and willallow
the stipulation to satisfy their requirements. Hearings on the stipulation have not been scheduled; however,
the Company and interested parties are scheduled to file testimony on April 18, 1994. The NMPUC
confirmed the oral rulings in a written order issued on March 7, 1994.

On March 7, 1994, the Albuquerque City Council deadlocked on endorsing the Mayor's signing of the
stipulation. The Company is currently unable to determine what impact, ifany, the City Council's action
might have on the stipulation. However, the Company remains committed to the process and willmeet with
the other parties who signed the stipulation to evaluate this new development. The Company believes that
the stipulation willcontinue through the hearing process being established by the NMPUC.
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991
4

(3) Capitalization

Changes in common stock, additional paid-in capital and cumulative preferred stock are as follows:

Cumulative Preferred Stock

Common Stock

Number of Aggregate
Shares Par Value

Without Mandatory
Redemption

Requirements

Additional Aggregate
Paid-In Number Stated
Capital of Shares Value

With Mandatory
Redemption

Requirements

Aggregate
Number Stated
of Sharc's" Value

Balance at December 31, 1990 .".

Redemption of preferred stock .

Redemption within one year...
Balance at December 31, 1991 ..

Redemption of preferred stock .

Redemption within one year ~ ..
Balance at December 31, 1992 ..

Redemption of preferred~stock .

Redemption within one year...
Balance'at December 31, 1993 ..

„(Dollars in thousands)

41,774,083 $208,870 $469,688 590,000 $59,000
135

629,163
(12,642)

(346,700)

41,774,083 208,870

41,774,083 208,870

469,823 590,000, 59,000
326

470,149 590,000 59,000

269,821
(6,960)
(5,861)

257,000
(139)

(13,000)

41,774,083 $208,870 $470,149 590,000 $59,000 243,861

$45,581

(1,264)
o7,335)

26,982
(696)
(586)

25,700
(14)

(1,300)

$24,386

Common Stock

The number of authorized shares of common stock with par value of $5 per share is 80 million shares.

'he payment of cash dividends on the common stock of the Company is subject to certain restrictions,
including those contained in the Company's mortgage indenture, which effectively'prevent the payment of
dividends on common stock unless the Company has positive retained earnings. The Company's board of
directors, which reviews the Company's dividend policy on a continuing basis, has not declared dividends on
its common stock since January 1989. As of December 31, 1993, the Company had a deficit in retained
earnings of $ 120.8 million and is, therefore, currently unable to resume payment of dividends on its common
stock. The resumption of common dividends is dependent upon a number of factors including the outcome
of the stipulation discussed in note 2, earnings and financial condition of the Company and market conditions.

Cumulative Prefened Stock

The number of authorized shares of cumulative preferred stock is 10'million shares. The earnings tests
in the Company's Restated Articles of Incorporation currently restrict the issuance of preferred stock.

The Company, upon 30 days notice, may redeem the cumulative preferred stock at stated redemption
prices plus accrued and unpaid dividends. Redemption prices are at reduced premiums in future years. On
February 10, 1992, the Company redeemed all 346,700 shares of its Cumulative Preferred Stock, 12.52%
series, $50.00 stated value at a redemption price of $52.97 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends.

The Company evaluated its ability to continue paying dividends on its preferred stock under restrictions
imposed by the Federal Power Act due to the Company's negative retained earnings. By letter dated April7,
1993, the Company advised. the FERC staff of the Company's position that payment of preferred stock
dividends would not be in violation of the Federal Power Act. As a result, the Company continued, to declare
and pay dividends on its preferred stock on scheduled dates.-



PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(3) Capitalization —(Continued)

Mandatory redemption requirements for 1994 through 1998 are $ 1.3 million annually. During any
period that the Company is unable to pay preferred dividends, ifthat should occur, the Company would be
prohibited by its Articles of Incorporation from making future mandatory redemption payments.

tt

Long-Term Debt

Substantially all utility plant is pledged to secure the Company's first mortgage bonds. A portion of
certain series of long-term debt will be redeemed serially prior to their due dates. The issuance of first
mortgage bonds by the Company is subject to earnings coverage and bondable'property provisions of the
"Company's first mortgage indenture. The Company has the capability under the mortgage indenture, without
regard to the earnings test b'ut subject to other'conditions,'to issue first mortgage bonds on the basis of certain
previously retired bonds.

In November 1992, pollution control revenue refunding bonds, 1992 Series A, in the principal amount
of $37.3 million, were issued. Such bonds are supported by a letter of credit ("LOC") and are collaterally
secured by certain first mortgage bonds issued by the Company. The LOC willexpire on November 26, 1995,
unless extended or renewed, and prior thereto may be terminated or replaced by an alternate LOC or alternate
security. As the Company believes it has the ability to extend the LOC, the $ 37.3 million is not included in
the aggregate maturities.

The aggregate amounts (in thousands) of maturities 'for 1994 through 1998 on long-term debt
outstanding at December 31, 1993 (including estimates of remittance of collections for the Asset
Securitization discussed below) are as follows:

1994 . \ ~ ~ ~ t ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

1995 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

1996 .

1997 .

1998 .

$ 18,903
$20,608
$21,090
$37,582
$ 12,432

On August 3, 1993, the Company received $60 million from the securitization relating to amounts being
recovered from gas customers relating to certain gas contract settlements. Proceeds were used to pay down
short-term debt. Pollution control revenue bonds totaling $ 182 million and EIP Secured Facility Bonds
totaling $51.3 million were refunded and replaced during 1993. The refundings willprovide pre-tax interest
savings of approximately $5.5 million per year and $A million in reduced lease payments.

Fair .Value ofFinancial Instruments

Effective January 1, 1992, the Company adopted SFAS No. 107, Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments, which requires the disclosure of the fair value of all financial instruments: As of
December 31, 1993, the fair value of the Company's long-ter'm debt and preferred stock (including current
maturities) is estimated to be approximately $986 million and $75 million, respectively, based on market
quotes obtained from the Company's investment bankers.



PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO'ANDSUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(4) Revolving Credit FaciHty and Other Credit Facilities

AtDecember 31, 1993, the Company had a $ 100 millionsecured revolving credit facility (the "Facility")
with the expiration date of June 13, 1995. The Company must pay commitment fees of .5% per year on the
total amount of the Facility. The Company also has a $40 million credit facility, collaterialized by the
Company's electric customer account receivable (the "Accounts Receivable Securitization"). Such credit
facility has a term of five years. Together with $ 11 million in local lines of credit, the Company has $ 151

million in liquidityarrangements. As ofDecember 31,1993, there were no borrowings outstanding under the
Facility, the Accounts Receivable Securitization or any of the local lines of credit.

(5) Income Taxes

Income taxes consist of the following components:

1993 1992 1991

Current Federal income tax .

Current State income tax .
'eferredFederal income tax

Deferred State income tax .

Investment tax credit carryforward .

Amortization of accumulated investment tax credits ..........., . ~ .,
Recognition of accumulated deferred investment tax credits relating to

PVNGS Unit 3 (1992) and other utilityproperty (1993) ~... ~..... ~

Total income taxes ... ~.........

$ 12,502

(52,827)
(8,433)

(5,036)

gn thousands)

$ 19,285
3,292

(76,808)
(14,859)

1,036
(6,113)

(3,284) (16,313)

$ (57,078) $ (90,480)

$ (436)
4

16,494
2,453

(2,240)
(6,082)

$ 10,193

Charged to operating expenses.................. ~ ..,, . ~ ~ ~ .. ~ . ~ . ~ ~ $ 25,721 $ 16,891 $ 13,811
Charged (credited) to other income and deductions ..... ~ ~....... ~ ~ ~ . (82,799) (107,371) (3,618)

Total income taxes . $ (57,078) $ (90,480) $ 10,193

The Company's provision for income taxes differed from the Federal income tax computed at the
statutory rate for each of the years shown., The differences are attributable to the following factors:

Federal income tax at statutory rates.
Investment tax credits... ~ .

Depreciation of flow-through items ... ~ . ~ ~ ~ . ~ ~.... ~... ~ ..'.
Gains on the sale and leaseback of PVNGS Units 1 and 2 ....
Reversal of basis difference resulting from sale of investment ..
State income tax .

Write-down ofPVNGS Unit 3 .

Gain on sale of utilityproperty
Federal income tax rate change to 35% .. ~........ ~ ..
Other

Total income taxes... ~ . ~ . ~ ~.......

1993 1992

gn thousands)

$(41,497) $(66,210)
(5,036) (6,1 13)
1,719 2,027
(514) (49 1)

(5,585) (9,249)
(9,529)

(3,169)
(2,527)

(469) (915)

$ (57,078) $(90,480)

1991

$ 11,272
(6,082)
2,367
(491)

1,328
1,582

217

$ 10,193



PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOANDSUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(5) Income Taxes —(Continued)

Deferred fuel costs .

Depreciation and cost recovery .

Write-down of PVNGS Unit 3 .

Loss provision for the M-S-R power purchase contract
Contributions in aid of construction
Unbilled revenues.
Alternative minimum tax in excess of regular tax
Net operating losses utilized (carryforward) .

PVNGS decommissioning
Write-down of interests in PVNGS Units 1 and 2
Hedge loss write-off..........
Loss on reacquired debt write-oF
Gain on sale of utilityproperty .

Contribution to 401(h) plan ...
PVNGS decontamination
Reserve for litigation .............
Other

Deferred income taxes result from certain differences between the recognition of income and expense for
tax and financial reporting purposes, as described in note 1. The major sources of these differences for which
deferred taxes have been provided and the tax effects of each are as follows:

1993 1992 1991

9th thousands)

$ 4,549 $ 10,938 $ 6,380
17,668 14,632 14,489

(62,259)
6,335 (15,464)

(4,491) (2,435) (1,932)
11,136 (2,036)

(13,808) 526 2,696
15,067 (38,565) 4,066
(3,962) (2,925) (652)

(51,585)
(3,908)
(5,561)

(11,321)
(3,226)

(2,590)
(1,979)
(5,038) (4,661) (4,064)

, Total deferred taxes provided .....................'....... $ (61,260) $ (91,667) $ 18,947

The gross accumulated deferred income tax liability as of December 31, 1993 was $303.9 million and
consisted principally of $265.1 million relating to accelerated tax depreciation. The gross accumulated
deferred income tax asset was $256.6 million, the largest element of which was $ 84.4 million relating to
unutilized net operating loss carryforwards, the balance being comprised primarily of numerous items
previously recognized as expenses for financial accounting purposes which had not been deducted for tax
purposes. In addition, the balance of deferred income taxes at December 31, 1993 includes amounts for
temporary differences related to deferred gains on sale and leaseback transactions, settlements of gas contract
disputes, deferred investment tax credits and regulatory assets and liabilities.

At December 3,1, 1993, the Company had net operating loss carryforwards for Federal income tax
purposes of $21.6 million, $ 133.9 million, $ 15.1 million, and $46.6 million which expire in 2003, 2004, 2005
and 2007, respectively. For purposes of New Mexico state income tax, these carryforwards, ifunused, would
expire in 2003, 2004, 2005 and 1997, respectively. New Mexico law provides a five-year carryforward for all
net operating losses incurred after 1990. The Company anticipates that all of these carryforwards willbe fully
utilized before expiration, and the financial statements reflect that expectation.

The application ofSFAS No. 109 to regulated enterprises results in the creation of regulatory assets and
liabilities. At December 31, 1993 and 1992, deferred charges included regulatory assets of $75.2 million and
$65.9 million, respectively, and deferred credits included regulatory liabilities of $69.9 million and $73.1

million, respectively.
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The Company defers investment tax credits related,to utility assets and amortizes them over the

estimated useful lives of those assets. Investment tax credits related to non-utility assets have been flowed

through in earlier years.

In 1993, the Company reached a settlement with the Internal Revenue Service regarding income taxes

for the years 1990 through 1991. The primary effect of the settlement is an acceleration of certain previously
deferred items into current income tax expense.

(6) Employee and Post-Employment Benefit

Pension Plan
3

The Company and its subsidiaries have a pension plan covering substantially all of their employees,

including officers. The plan is non-contributory and provides for benefits to be paid to eligible employees at
retirement based primarily upon years of service with the Company and their average of highest annual base

salary for three consecutive years. The Company's policy is to fund actuarially-determined contributions.
Contributions to the plan reflect.benefits attributed to employees'ears of service to date and also for services

expected to be provided in the future. Plan assets primarily consist of common stock, fixed income securities
(United States government obligations), cash equivalents and real estate.

The components ofpension cost (in thousands) are as follows:

1993 1993 1991

Service cost .

Interest cost.
Actual return on plan assets

Asset gain deferred (amortized)
Other

Net periodic pension cost
Curtailment loss .

$ 7,263
16,849

(18,148)
(167)
(711)

5,086
1,657

$ 7,701
15,537
(7,547)

(10,466)
(1,130)

4,095

$ 6,027
13,204

. (35,903)
20,422
(1,130)

2,620

Total pension expense $ 6,743 $ 4,095 $ 2,620
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(6) Employee and Post-Employment Benefits—(Continued)

The following sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts (in thousands) at December 31, 1993 and
1992:

1993 1992

Vested benefits ~.........". ~............... ~.....' . ~................. ~ ..
Non-vested benefits

Accumulated benefit obligation
Effect of future compensation levels..........................................
Projected benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Projected benefit obligation in excess of assets ~.....
Unrecognized prior 'service cost
Net unrecognized loss from past experience different from assumed and the effects of

changes in assumptions .'

Unamortized asset at transition, being amortized through the year 2002 ...........
'Additional liability(unfunded accumulated benefits in excess ofaccrued pension cost) .

9

Accrued pension liability...... ~............. ~ . ~ ..

258,600
212,475

46,125
(282)

204,946
192,660

12,286
(364)

(54,876) (17,768)
9,306 '0,470
1,352

$ 1,625 $ 4,624

$205,909" $ 160,304
8,191 6,222

214,100 166,526
44,500 38,420

The weighted average discount rate used to measure the projected benefit obligation was 7.0% for 1993
and 8.0% for 1992 and the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets was 9.0% for 1993 and 9.5% for
1992. The rate of increase in future compensation levels based on age-related scales was 4.1% for 1993 and
5.0% for 1992.

As of December 31, 1993, the Company recognized $2.8 million, net of tax, as a separate component of
common stock equity, for the amount ofadditional pension liabilityin excess of the unrecognized prior service
cost in accordance with SFAS No. 87, Employers'Accounting for Pensions.

Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company adopted SFAS No. 106, Employers'ccounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
'Pensions, effective. January 1, 1993 ~ The Company provides medical and dental benefits to eligible retirees.
Currently, retirees are offered the same benefits as active employees after reflecting Medicare coordination.
The components of postretirement benefit cost (in thousands) for 1993 are as follows:

Service cost
Interest cost
Actual return on plan assets .

Transition obligation amortization

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost
Curtailment loss .

Total postretirement benefit expense

$ 1,175
2,974

(56)
1,857

5,950
4,295

$ 10,245



PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991
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The following sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts (in thousands) at December 31, 1993:

$24,007
1,120

22,144

47,271
2,118

(45,153)
. 3,956
34,525

$ (6,672)

Accumulated benefit obligations for:
Retirees
Fully eligible employees .

Active employees

Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets .

Funded status ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ J 0

Net unrecognized loss." ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

Unrecognized transition obligation'(being amortized through the year 2012) .

Accrued postretirement liability ... ~.........,....., .

Prior to 1993, the costs of these benefits were expensed on a pay-as-you-go basis. The cost of providing
these benefits was $ 1,531,000 and $ 1,139,000 for 1992 and 1991, respectively. As ofDecember 31, 1993, the
discount rate used to measure the postretirement benefit obligation was 7.0% and the health care cost trend
rate was 6%. The effect of a 1% increase in the health care trend rate assumption would increase the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of December 31, 1993 by approximately $ 10.2 million and
the aggregate service and interest cost components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for 1993 by
approximately $ 1.0 million. On December 20, 1993, the NMPUC issued a final order in a NMPUC case

regarding an inquiry into SFAS No. 106. In its final order, the NMPUC adopted a policy which provides for
accrual accounting for the postretirement benefit costs, funding requirements into an irrevocable trust and
specific reporting for the benefit costs in future rate cases. The order also provides for specific waiver
provisions with respect to the external trust funding requirements and a deferral of the benefit costs in excess
of the pay-as-you-go basis. The Company has requested recovery of the full accrual amount of SFAS No.
106 expense in the stipulation for its"electric business unit (see note 2). The Company willaddress the recovery
of the amounts related to the gas business unit in a future rate case. The Company currently intends to fund
the full amount of these costs in 1994.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Effective January 1, 1989, the Company adopted an Employee Stock Ownership Plan covering
substantially all of its employees. Under',the plan, the Company makes cash contributions which are utilized
to purchase the Company's common stock on the open market. Contributions to the plan were approximately

„$5.3 million in 1989. No contributions or accruals were made in 1990, 1991 and 1992 and effective March 1,

1993, the plan has been cancelled.

Performance Stock Plan

As approved by the Company's shareholders on May 25, 1993, the Company adopted a nonqualified
stock option plan (Performance Stock Plan) 'covering a group of management employees. Under the terms of
the plan which became effective on July, 1,~1993, options. to purchase shares of the Company's common stock
are granted with an exercise price'equal to the fair market value of the stock at the date of grant. On July 1,

1993, the Company granted 370,000 shares to the covered employees under the plan at an exercise price of
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$ 13.75 per share. The remaining 1,630,000 shares approved under the plan are reserved for future grants.
Options may be exercised following vesting as described in the plan. Currently no options are eligible for
exercise.

Executive Retirement Program

In addition, the Company had an executive retirement program for a group of management employees.
, The program was intended to attract, motivate and retain key management employees. The Company's
projected benefit obligation for this program, as of December 31, 1993, was $ 18.5 million, of which the
accumulated and vested benefit obligation was $ 17.4 million. In addition, in 1993, the Company recognized
an additional liabilityof $7.2 million for the amount of unfunded accumulated benefits in excess of accrued
pension costs. The net periodic pension cost for 1993, 1992 and 1991 was $2.1 million, $2.0 million and $ 1.8
million, respectively. In 1989, the Company established an irrevocable grantor trust in connection with the
executive retirement program. Under the terms of the trust, the Company may, but is not obligated to,
provide funds to the trust, which was established with an independent trustee, to aid it in meeting its

„obligations under such program. Funds in the amount of approximately $ 12.7 million (fair market value of
$ 13.0 million) were provided to the trust in 1989. No additional funds have been provided to the trust.

(7) Construction Program and Jointly-Owned Plants

It is estimated that, the Company's construction expenditures for 1994 will be approximately $ 129
million, including expenditures on jointly-owned projects.

The Company's proportionate share of expenses for the jointly-owned plants is included in operating
expenses in the consolidated statement of earnings.

AtDecember 31, 1993, the Company's interest (including leasehold interests in PVNGS Units 1 and 2
for power'entitlement) and inves'tm'ents in jointly-owned generating facilities are:

48.5%
10.2%
13.0%%uo

Construction
Plant in Accumulated Work in Composite

Station (Fuel Type) ge iee Desreetetton Progress Interest

Gn tnonsengs)

San Juan Generating Station (Coal). $762,437 $285,818 $ 8,026
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station (Nuclear)......... $ 174,873» $ 28,159» $ 17,556»
Four Corners Generating Station Units 4 and 5 (Coal)..... $ 114,230 $ 32,490 $ 3,324

'ncludes the Company's interest in PVNGS Unit 3, the Company's interest in common facilities for all
PVNGS units and the 22% beneficial interests in PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases purchased on September 2,
1992.

San Juan Generating Station

The Company operates and jointly owns SJGS. At December 31, 1993, SJGS Units 1 and 2 are owned
on a 50% shared basis with Tucson Electric Power Company ("Tucson" ), Unit 3 is owned 50% by the
Company, 41.8% by Southern California Public Power Authority and 8.2% by Century Power Corporation
("Century" ), (Century has agreed to sell its remaining 8.2% interest to Tri-State Generation.and

F-20
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Transmission Association, Inc.). Unit 4 is owned 45.485% by the Company, 8.475% by the City of
Farmington, 28.8% by M-S-R, 7.2% by the County of Los Alamos and 10.04% by the City of Anaheim,

California.

On May 27, 1993, the Company executed a purchase and participation agreement with Utah Associated

Municipal Power Systems ("UAMPS") to sell not less than 6.024% (30 MW) and up to 8.03% (40 MW)
undivided ownership interest in SJGS Unit 4.„'On September 1, 1993, the Company and UAMPS amended

the purchase and participation agreement to establish the UAMPS purchase at 35 MW for approximately

$40 million. On November 19, 1993, the Company filed an application with the NMPUC for approval of this

sale. On January 21, 1994, the Company, the NMPUC staff, and the New Mexico Industrial Energy

Consumers entered into a stipulation requesting approval of the sale. Hearings were held February 15, 1994,

and the Company is awaiting a recommended decision. In addition, the Company made three filings with the

FERC associated with the sale and has received approval on two and is awaiting the outcome of the remaining

filing. Closing of the transaction will depend on the fulfillmentof numerous closing conditions and willbe

subject to regulatory approvals from the NMPUC and the FERC. Ifapproved, the Company anticipates that
the closing of the sale willbe in the first half of 1994.

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

The Company has a 10.2% interest in PVNGS. Commercial operation commenced in 1986 for Unit 1

and Unit 2 and 1988 for Unit 3. In 1985 and 1986, the Company completed sale and leaseback transactions

for its undivided interests in Units 1 and 2 and certain related common facilities.
I

On September 2, 1992, the Company purchased approximately 22% of the beneficial interests in PVNGS
Units 1 and 2 leases for approximately $ 17.5 million. For accounting purposes, this transaction was recorded

as a purchase with the Company. recording approximately $ 158.3 million as utility plant (written down to
$46.7 million as a result of the stipulation, see note 2) and $ 140.8 million as long-term debt on the Company's
consolidated balance sheet.

The PVNGS participants have insurance for public liability payments resulting from nuclear energy
hazards to the full limitof liabilityunder Federal law. This potential liability is covered by primary liability
insurance;provided by commercial insurance carriers in the amount of $200 million and the balance by an

industry wide retrospective assessment program. The maximum assessment per reactor under the

retrospective rating program for each nuclear incident occurring at any nuclear power plant in the United
States is approximately $79.3 million, subject to an annual limitof $ 10 million per incident. Based upon the

Company's 10.2% interest in the three PVNGS units, the Company's maximum potential assessment per
incident is approximately $24 million, with an annual payment limitation of $3 million. The insureds, under

this liability insurance include the PVNGS participants and "any other person or organization with respect

to his legal responsibility for damage caused by the nuclear energy hazard".

The PVNGS participants maintain "all-risk" (including nuclear hazards) insurance for nuclear property
damage to, and decontamination of, property at PVNGS in the aggregate amount of $2.75 billion as of
January 1, 1994, a substantial portion of which must first be applied to stabilization and decontamination.
The Company has also secured insurance against a portion of the increased cost of generation or purchased

power resulting from certain accidental outages of any of the three PVNGS units ifsuch'outage exceeds 21

weeks.
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The Company has a program for funding its share of decommissioning costs for PVNGS. Under this
program, the Company„will make a series of annual deposits to an external trust fund over the estimated
useful life of each unit, and the trust funds are being invested under a plan which allows the accumulation of
funds largely on a tax-deferred basis through the use of life insurance policies on certain current and former
employees. The annual trust deposit, approved by the NMPUC in 1987, is currently $396,000 per unit. The
NMPUC jurisdictional share of this amount related to PVNGS Units 1 and 2 is currently included in retail
rates. The results of the 1992 decommissioning cost study indicate that the Company's share of the PVNGS
decommissioning costs will be approximately $ 143.2 million, an increase from $94.2 million based on the
previous study (both'mounts are stated in 1993 dollars). Additional expense associated with the
decommissioning cost increase has been included in the cost of service filed with the NMPUC'n the
stipulation (see note'2). The Company has determined that a supplemental investment program willbe needed
as a result ofboth the cost increase and the underperformance of the existing investment program. However,
a supplemental funding program.,will not be established until clarification and/or possible'revisions to a
FERC order issued in October 1993,regarding restricted investment vehicles for nuclear decommissioning
trusts are obtained. The market value of the existing trust at the end of 1993 was approximately $ 11.0 million,
including cash surrender value of the insurance policies. II

El Paso Electric Company

The Company owns or leases a 10.2% interest in PVNGS and owns a 13% interest in the Four Corners
Power Plant ("Four Corners" ) Units 4 and 5, which are operated by Arizona Public Service Conipany
("APS"). El Paso Electric Company ("El Paso" ) owns or leases a 15.8% interest in,PVNGS and owns a
7.0% interest in Four Corners Units 4 and 5.

On January 8, 1992, El Paso filed a voluntary petition to reorganize under Chapter 11 of the United
States Bankruptcy Code. On September 8, 1992, El Paso filed a plan of reorganization with the bankruptcy
court, which was.later amended pursuant to an October 26, 1992 filing with the court. On May 4, 1993, El
Paso and Central and South West Corporation ("CSW") announced a plan for merger in connection with El
Paso's Chapter 11 reorganization, under which'El Paso would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of CSW.
A modified amended El. Paso —CSW plan and disclosure statement dated August 27, 1993 has been filed
with the bankruptcy court and was approved December 8, 1993. In order for the merger to be implemented,
CSW and El Paso must receive appropriate regulatory approvals, including approval of the NRC and the
FERC. In the El Paso —CSW FERC proceedings, the Company has intervened to protect its interests relative
to the various transmission issues raised by the El Paso —CSW filings. The Company's regulatory filings in
the FERC proceeding address reliability and potential system impacts that may result to the Company from
the merger. At this time the Company is unable to predict the result of these regulatory proceedings.

In addition to approving the El Paso-CSW plan, the bankruptcy court approved the Cure and
Assumption Agreement between El Paso and the PVNGS participants, which provides for (i) various mutual
releases and (ii) the execution of a release by El Paso and any alleged claims regarding the 1989-90 PVNGS
outages. All such releases will be eQ'ective on the efi'ective date of the El Paso-CSW plan.'The Cure and
Ass'umption Agreement also provided for payment in full to the PVNGS participants of pre-petition monies
owed by El Paso. El Paso has made the payment contingent upon its completion of the merger with CSW.

The bankruptcy court also approved the assumption by El Paso of several wheeling agreements that El
Paso and the Company agreed to extend as part of a 120 day transition agreement. In connection with the
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assumptions, EI Paso paid the Company approximately $2.3 million owed for pre and post-petition wheeling
services. Although the transition agreement has expired by its terms, the parties have signed an agreement in
principle for near-term and longer-term wheeling services. The agreement would provide El Paso with a total
of 80 MW of transmission service until such time as El Paso installs a phase shifting transformer ("PST")
which is expected to be late 1995. The agreement would provide El Paso with 20 MW of service after the
PST is installed in exchange for payment by El Paso of proportional costs incurred by the Company for
generation support of the transmission as well as wheeling charges. The Company and El Paso have also

agreed to negotiate both near-term and longer-term operating procedures, which may include transfer by the
Company of operating agent status for the Southern New Mexico Transmission System to El Paso. The
Company willcontinue to retain its transmission rights (presently 75 MW) in southern New Mexico. The
wheeling agreement will be subject to regulatory'approval by the FERC and will also be reviewed by the
NMPUC in connection with several regulatory filings of El Paso, both predating and in connection with the
El Paso-CSW merger.

(8) Long-Term Power Contracts and Franchises Y

The Company entered into contracts for the purchase of electric power. Under a contract with M-S-R,
which expires in early 1995, the "Company is obligated to pay certain minimum amounts and a variable
component representing the expenses associated with the energy purchased and debt service costs associated
with capital improvements. Total payments under this contract amounted to approximately $42 million for
1993, and approximately $40 million and $41 million for each of the years 1992 and 1991, respectively. The
minimum payment for 1994 under this contract is $26.7 million, with a minimum of $9.0 million for the first
four months of 1995, at which time this contract expires. The Company, based on the January 11, 1993
announcement, recorded a provision for loss associated with the M-S-R power purchase contract in its 1992
results of operation. (See note 2.)

The Company has a long-term contract with SPS to purchase interruptible power which began in June
1991. Total payments under this contract amounted to approximately $ 10.8 million in 1993. Minimum
payments under the contract amount to approximately $7.0 million for 1994 and approximately $ 11.7 million
and $ 14 million for each of the years 1995 and 1996, respectively. In addition, the Company willbe required
to pay for, any energy purchased under the contract. The amount of minimum payments after 1995 will
depend on whether the Company exercises certain options'o either reduce or increase its purchase
obligations.

The Company holds long-term, non-exclusive franchises of varying durations in all incorporated
communities except for the City of Albuquerque (the "City"). The Company's non-exclusive electric service
franchise with the City expired in early 1992. The franchise agreement provided for the Company's use of
City property for electric service rights-of-way. The Company continues service to the area, which
contributed 46.0% of the Company's total 1993 electric operating revenues. The absence of a franchise does
not change the Company's right and obligation to serve those customers under state law. In November 1991,
the NMPUC issued an order concluding, among other things, that the City could bid for services to its own
facilities (Albuquerque municipal loads generated approximately $ 17 million, $ 16 million and $ 17 million in
annual revenues for 1993, 1992 and 1991, respectively), but not for service to other customers. In reaching
this conclusion, the NMPUC noted that New Mexico law reflects a legislative choice to vest the NMPUC
with exclusive control over utilityrates and services. The NMPUC also noted that the Company's obligation
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to serve its customers in Albuquerque will continue irrespective of whether the municipal franchise is
renewed. The Ci'ty appealed the NMPUC's order to the New Mexico Supreme Court ("Court") solely on the
grounds of the City's authority to bid for rates for its citizens. On April21, 1993, the Court issued its decision
on the City's appeal of the NMPUC order. The Court ruled that a city can negotiate rates for its citizens in
addition to its own facility uses. The Court also ruled that any contracts with utilities for electric rates are a
matter ofstatewide concern and subject to approval, disapproval or modification by the NMPUC. In addition,
the Court reaffirmed the NMPUC's exclusive power to designate providers of utility service within a
municipality and confirmed that municipal franchises were not licenses to serve but rather to provide access

to public rights-of-way.
II

In 1992, representatives of the Company and the City met in attempts to resolve the franchise renewal
issue. Currently,=the franchise renewal meetings are in abeyance due to the City's interest in the outcome of
the retail wheeling legislation which was introduced in the 1993 state legislative session. The Company
continues to pay franchise fees to the City.

During 1992, open access to transmission grids in the electric wholesale market, as mandated by the
National Energy Policy Act, stimulated interest in the retail wheeling concept in New Mexico, resulting in
the introduction of legislation in the 1993 New Mexico state legislature. On March 6, 1993, the New Mexico
State Senate passed Senate Memorial 54, which calls for the concept of retail wheeling to be studied by the
Integrated Resource Planning Committee, which is an interim legislative committee, with a report to be made
to the 1995 legislature. The Company has been providing information for the study effort. The study is
anticipated to be completed by December 1994.

(9) Lease Commitments

The Company classifies its leases in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The
Company leases Units 1 and 2 of PVNGS, transmission facilities, office buildings and other equipment under
operating leases. The aggregate lease payments for the PVNGS leases are $66.3 million per year over base
lease terms expiring in 2015 and 2016. Prior to 1992, the aggregate lease payments for the PVNGS leases
were $ 84.6 million per year over the base lease terms; however, this amount was reduced by the purchase of
approximately 22%%uo of the beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units 1 and 2 leases (see note 7). The 1992
aggregate lease payments for the PVNGS leases were approximately $76.4 million. Each PVNGS lease
contains renewal and fair market value purchase options at the end of the base lease term. For regulatory
purposes, these leases continue to be classified as operating leases and costs continue to be recovered in
NMPUC jurisdictional rates.

f

Future minimum operating lease payments (in thousands) at December 31, 1993 are:

1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
Later years

Total minimum lease payments .

$ 76,039
'6,550

76,474
76,402
76,321

1,254,248

$ 1,636,034
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Operating lease expense, inclusive ofPVNGS, was approximately $ 80.6 million in 1993, $91.1 million in
1992 and $96.8 million in 1991. The aggregate minimum payments to be received in future periods under
noncancelable subleases are approxiniately $7.6

million.'10)

Environmental Issues and Fossil-Fueled Plant Decommissioning Costs

The Company has evaluated the potential impacts of the following environmental issues. The Company
believes, after consideration of established reserves, that the ultimat'e outcome of these environmental issues

willnot hav'e a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition or result's of operations.

Environmental Issues —Gas

Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and LiabilityAct ("CERCLA")

Two CERCLA 104(e) orders were received from the United States Environmental Protection Agency
("EPA") in late December 1993 requesting information regarding shipment of wastes.to the.Lee Acres
Landfill, located on Bureau of Land Management ("BLM")land near the city of Bloomfield in San Juan
County, New Mexico. The landfill is currently listed on the National Priorities List as a superfund site. Gas
Company ofNew Mexico, a division of the Company ("GCNM")and Sunterra Gas Gathering Com'pany, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company ("Gathering Company" ) have assessed their records and'other
information to determine whether wastes were ever shipped from their facilities to the landfill during the
period when they owned and operated the natural gas facilities. GCNM and Gathering Company's
assessment indicated that no hazardous wastes or cause of such wastes were shipped from their facilities to
the landfill during this time period. Nonetheless, GCNM and Gathering Company could be determined to be
potentially responsible parties ifthe EPA determines'GCNM and Gathering Company shipped wastes to the
site, and could be asked or compelled to provide funds for site cleanup. GCNM and Gathering Company
prepared and submitted their response to the EPA on March 8, 1994.

Toxic Substances. Control Act ("TSCA ")

TSCA requires manufacturers and importers of organic chemicals, including natural gas substances, to
report a listing and quantity of certain toxic chemicals to the EPA every four years. Naturally occurring
substances such as crude oil and unprocessed natural gas need not be reported; Due to the natural gas
industry's interpretation on'hen unprocessed natural gas becomes a reportable substance, GCNM and
Processing Company did not report TSCA substances to the EPA in prior reporting years 1986 and 1990. As
a result of the EPA's clarification on the limited scope of the exemption, GCNM and Processing Company
now have filed their reports for 1986 and 1990 and will report such substances to the EPA in the 1994
reporting year. The maximum penalty allowed under the statute is $25,000/day for every day the report has
not been filed. The companies may be subject to administrative fines/penalties for their failure to report in
1986 and 1990.

Gas Wellhead Pit Remediation

Effective September 1992, the New Mexico Oil Conservation Division ("OCD") issued a ruling which
affects GCNM and Gathering Company's natural gas gathering facilities located in the northwestern part of
New Mexico. The ruling prohibits the further discharge of fluids associated with the production of natural
gas into unlined open pits in certain areas, deemed environmentally sensitive due to their proximity to fresh
water supplies. In addition to the cessation of the discharge of fluids, the ruling requires that GCNM and
Gathering Company remediate the areas where discharges have contaminated fresh water supplies. GCNM
has submitted generic closure plans for the pits, which have been approved by OCD and the BLM.,
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December 31, 1993,-1992 and 1991

(10) Environmental Issues and Fossil-Fueled Plant Decommissioning Costs —(Continued)

AirPermits

A recent environmental audit, associated with the Company's proposed sale ofcertain gas assets, brought
to light certain discrepancies regarding required air permits associated with certain natural gas facilities. The
audit identified a total of thirteen facilities containing discrepancies. The vast majority of the discrepancies
are minor in nature and include discrepancies in record keeping, equipment identification and inaccurate
information in air permit applications. The discrepancies at three of the facilities involve permit issuance and
modification and are more serious in nature. The Company is subject to administrative fines/penalties by the
New Mexico Environment Department ("NMED")for these disciepancies.

The Company plans to meet with the NMED in March 1994 to discuss the nature of the permit
discrepancies and to propose methods and schedules to resolve the discrepancies. The resolution process will
include the filing of permit applications, modifications and revisions where necessary. After reviewing the
applications, NMED willdetermine whether to grant the application, modification or revision and make a
determination whether to impose any fines/penalties.

The CERCLA, air permits and gas wellhead pit remediation issues previously discussed are part of the
retained environmental liabilities under the sale agreement with Williams Gas Processing —Blanco, Inc.
("Williams"), a subsidiary of the Williams Field Services Group, Inc. ofTulsa, Oklahoma. (See note 11.)

Environmental Issu'e —Electric

Included in the estimate of $24.4 million to decommission the Company's retired fossil-fuel plants is
approximately $ 17.2 million for a groundwater remediation program at Person Station. The Company, in
compliance with a New Mexico Environment Action Directive, has determined that ground water
contamination exists in the deep and shallow water aquifers. The Company is required to delineate the extent
of the contamination and remediate the contaminant in the ground water. The extent of the contaminant
plume in the deep water aquifer is not currently known, and the estimate assumes that the deep ground water
plume can be easily delineated with a minimum number ofmonitoring wells. As part of the financial assurance
requirements of the Person Station Hazardous Waste Permit, the Company posted a $3.7 millionperformance
bond with a trustee. The remediation program continues to be on schedule and the Company does not
anticipate any material adverse impact on its financial condition or the results of operations with respect to
the remediation program.

Fossil-Fueled Plant Decommissioning Costs

The Company's six owned or partially owned in service and retired fossil-fueled generating stations are
expected to incur dismantling and reclamation costs as they are decommissioned. The Company's share of
decommissioning costs for all of its fossil-fueled generating stations is projected to be approximately $ 126
million stated in 1992 dollars, including approximately $24 million for the Person, Prager and Santa Fe
Stations, which have been retired.

In June of 1993, the Company filed for recovery of 'all estimated decommissioning costs by factoring
them into its depreciation rates included in the Company's depreciation rate study filed with the NMPUC.

As previously discussed, the Company and the interested parties entered into the January 12, 1994
stipulation. The stipulation affirms the Company's right to recover all fair, just and reasonable costs arising

F-26



PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOANDSUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS—(Continued)

December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

(10) Environmental Issues and Fossil-Fueled Plant Decommissioning Costs —(Continued)

from the decommissioning of its fossil-fueled generating plants in service, including, demolition, waste

disposal, environmental and site restoration. The stipulation also resolves the issues of decertification and

decommissioning of the Company's three retired fossil-fueled generating stations resulting in the Company
foregoing recovery of the first $24.4 million of decommissioning costs associated with these stations. The
stipulation is subject to NMPUC approval.

(11) Asset Sales

Sale ofGas Gathering and Processing Assets

On January 11, 1993, the Company announced its intention to dispose of the Company's natural gas

gathering and natural gas processing assets. A purchaser has now been'selected following a competitive
bidding process.

On February 12, 1994, an agreement was executed with Williams for the sale of substantially all of the
assets of Gathering Company and Sunterra Gas Processing Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and for the sale of the Northwest and Southeast gas gathering and processing facilities of GCNM.
The agreement provides for a cash selling price of $ 155 million, subject to certain adjustments. In addition,
the Company and Williams entered into agreements for gas gathering and processing services, which the
Company believes to be competitively priced, to be provided by Williams on the facilities being sold for a

period up to 15.years. The transaction is subject to applicable waiting periods under the Federal Hart-Scott-
Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 and subject to approval by the NMPUC. If approved, the
closing is expected to take place in 1995. The closing is also subject to other customary closing conditions,
such as obtaining necessary material consents from lenders and other third parties.

F

II

Under the sale;agreement, the Company agreed to retain certain liabilities pertaining to the assets being
sold, including certain environmental liabilities. Such retained environmental liabilities include liabilities
under environmental laws as of closing associated with (i) the mercury meter remediation project, (ii)
identified friable asbestos, (iii) environmental permits required by various agencies, and (iv) pits at certain
abandoned compressor site's. The,Company's retained environmental liabilities also include liabilities
associated with certain unlined disposal pits subject to an existing New Mexico Oil Conservation Division
order. The Company has also agreed to retain liability for a portion of potential liabilities relating to a

contaminated landfill that has been declared a Federal superfund site. Further, the Company agreed to
indemnify Williams against other third party environmental claims arising from pre-closing ownership,
operations or conditions and for breaches of environmental representations and warranties for a period of
five years after closing in an amount up to $ 10.6 million. The Company's retained environmental liabilities
described above are not subject to the $ 10.6 million cap. The Company has evaluated the potential impact of
the above retained environmental liabilities. The Company believes, after consideration of established
reserves, that the ultimate outcome of these environmental issues willnot have a material adverse effect on
the Company's financial condition or results of operations. The Company intends to offset costs associated
with the environmental liabilities with proceeds from the sale.

Under the agreement, the Company also agreed to indemnify Williams, subject to equal sharing of the
first $ 1.5 million (i) against third party claims (other than environmental) arising from pre-closing ownership,
operations and conditions for a period of two years after closing, (ii) for breaches of other customary
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(11) Asset Sales —(Continued)

representations and warranties for a period of two years from< the date of closing, and (iii) for 30 days past

the applicable statute of.limitations for breaches of the Company's tax representations. The Company also

agreed to indemnify Williams for three years after closing for third party claims relating to certain property
rights. Under the agreement, the Company will,subject to prior NMPUC approval, guarantee the obligations

of its subsidiaries which are parties to the agreement.

The book value of the facilities being sold, plus regulatory assets and deferred charges, is expected to be

approximately $85 million. In addition, the Company expects approximately $ 8 million to be incurred for
transaction and other ascertainable costs prior to closing. The Company anticipates that a significant amount

of income tax willbecome payable as a result of this transaction.

Also, the NMPUC will'determine the allocation of the resulting gain between the Company's gas

customers and shareholders. Therefore, the Company is not able at this time to estimate the amount of any

gain that would be allocated to shareholders.

The Company believes that the sale of these assets will improve its flexibility to take advantage of
changing market conditions'while maintaining continued access to competitively priced, reliable and secure

long-term gas supplies.

Sale ofSangre de Crt'sto Water Company

On July 29, 1993, Santa Fe city officials announced a verbal agreementwnder which the City of Santa

Fe ("Santa Fe") would purchase the Sangre de Cristo Water Company ("SDGW"); a division of the

Company. Under the verbal agreement, the Company would receive approximately $48 million for its water

utilitydivision. The proposed agreement excluded from the sale certain Santa Fe area real estate which the

Company would either sell or trade separately. The Company would also continue to operate the water utility
for up to four years for a fee under a proposed contract with Santa'Fe. The Company's board of directors

authorized the sale on January 11, 1994. On February "23, 1994, the Santa Fe City Council authorized the

sales transaction, and the Company and Santa Fe signed a purchase and sale agreement on February 28,

1994. The Company anticipates filing for regulatory approvals in March 1994. Consummation of a sale will
require approval by the NMPUC. The Company expects to consummate the sale by the end of 1994.
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(12) Segment Information

The financial information pertaining to the Company's electric, gas (see note 1) and other operations for
the years ended December 31, 1993, 1992"'and 1991 are as follows:

'teettte'ee Other Total

Go tholoeollet

1993:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses excluding income taxes .

Pre-tax operating income
Operating income tax .

Operating income
r I

'epreciation and amortization expense

Construction expenditures

$ 589,728
467,659

122,069
19,184

$ 271,087 r $ 13,063
239,859 7,355

31,228 5,708
5,347 1,190

S 4,518

S 1,169

$ 2,847

$ 102,885 S 25,881

$ 59,298 S 16,859

$ 67,886 $ 26,593

$ 873,878
714,873

159,005
25,721

$ 133,284

$ 77,326

$ 97,326

Identifiable assets:
Net utilityplant.
Other .

$ 1,324,110 $ 333,862 $ 45,960 $ 1,703,932
257,153 240,908 10,196 508,257

Total assets

1992:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses excluding income taxes .

Pre-tax operating income
Operating income tax

Operating income

Depreciation and amortization expense

$ 1,581,263

$ 596,323
513,919

82,404
7,138

$ 75,266

$ 61,832

$574,770

$243,159
203,129

40,030
7,879

$ 32,151

$ 16,290

$56,156

$ 12,471
6,079

6,392
1,874

$ 4,518

$ 1,134

$2,212,189

$ 851,953
723,127

128,826
16,891

$ 111,935

$ 79,256

Construction expenditures

Identifiable assets:

Net utilityplant
Other .

Total assets

$ 51,924

$ 1,513,224
~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 275o775

$ 1,788,999

$ 25,461

$ 317,341
210,791

$ 528,132

$ 17,410

$ 46,496
11,955

$ 58,451

$ 94,795

$ 1,877,061
498,521

$2,375,582

1991:
Operating revenues
Operating expenses excluding income taxes .

Pre-tax operating income
Operating income tax ~

Operating income ........
Depreciation and amortization expense

Construction expenditures

$ 568,486 $277,069 $ 11,613 $ 857,168
503,428 236,403 6,273 746,104

65,058 40,666 5,340
2,114 10,222 1,475

111,064
13,811

$ 62,944 $ 30,444 $ 3,865 $ 97,253

$ 59,469 S 15,452 $ 1,132 $ 76,053

$ 54,431 $ 24,620 $ 8,520 $ 87,571

Identifiable assets:
Net utilityplant
Other .

Total assets

$ 1,554,776
254,157

$ 1,808,933

$ 306,655 $ 43,882 $ 1,905,313
167,669 17,193 439,019

$ 474,324 $ 61,075 $2,344,332

~ Includes the resources excluded from NMPUC regulation (see note 2).
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(12) Segment Information—(Continued)

On January 11, 1993, the Company announced its intention, to dispose of SDCW and all or major
portions of the natural gas gathering and natural gas processing assets (see note 2). Such sales require
NMPUC approval.

(13) Supplemental Income Statement Information

'Taxes, other than income taxes, charged to operating expenses were as follows:

1993 1992 1991

Ad valorem ..
City franchise
PayroH
Other

Total

gn thousands)

$20,413,$ 21,211 $ 19,809
7,457 7,242 6,983
8,807 7,736 7,938
3,412 4,390 4,484

$40,089 $40,579 $39,214

Amortization of intangibles, royalties, and advertising costs were less than 1% of revenues in each of
the above periods.,

H C
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SCHEDULE V—PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Classitlcatlon
December 31, 1993

Years Ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991
Balance at Other Changes
Beginning Additions
of Year at Cost Retlrcmcnts Add Deduct

gn thousands)

Balance at
End of Year

Utilityplant:
Electric plant in sevice:

Intangible .

Production . ~....... ~

Transmission
Distribution . ~.......
General

, Acquisition adjustment

,...$ 28,344
',208,465

220,074
416,726

70,988
40,600

$ 1,757
15,079

6,892
1,180

$ 3,012

611

$ 2,134
177,644

3,913
120

4,323
29,288

$ 24,955
1,045,900

216,161
422,927

67,845
11,312

Gas plant in service:
Intangible ~..... ~... ~

Production .

Natural gas storage . ~ .

Transmission
Distribution .

, General ........... ~ .

1,985,197

14,939
113,638

4,804
74,101

234,335
43,820

485,637

24,908

187
1,126

3,881
15,692
5,493

26,379

3,623

5

100
154
572

831

40 217,422 1,789,100

240
193

93

15,366
114,952

4,804
77,883

249,874
48,648

435 93 511,527

Water plant in service:
Intangible
Source of supply plant..........
Pumping plant ...... ~ .. ~......
Water treatment plant ~.........
Transmission and distribution....
General,.... ~ .,,........ ~ ....

151
9,400
3,599
4,038

36,476
2,155

1

34

,. 68
1,221

226
14

151
9,332
2,378
4,039

36,284
2,141

'55,819 35 1,529 54,325

Common plant in service:
Intangible ... ~ ..
General .

Construction work in progress .......
Electric plant held for future use ~....
Nuclear fuel .

Total utilityplant .. ~ ~.....'. ~
'.

Non-utilityproperty................
Total property, plant and

equipment . ~ ~.............

11;152
25,358

36,510

87,547
1,258

63,306

2,715,274
10,266

7,230
2,180

9,410,

23,953

11,801

96,451
875

736

736

6,694

11,884
8

2,397

2,397

1,494
255

4,656

17,646
29,935

47,581

3,661 109,333
1,138 375

~ 63 68,350

223,906 ',580,591
3,535 7,598

II

$2,725,540 $97,326 $ 11,892 $4,656 $227,441 $2,588,189

Description of other changes

Transfers between accounts
Write-down of PVNGS Units 1 and 2 Purchased .

Sale of SJGS Unit 4 (50MW) to City of Anaheim...
Miscellaneous corrections and adjustments.

$4,059

597

$4,656

$ 4,059
, 156,196

59,810
7,376

$227,441

(cott tinued)
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SCHEDULE V—PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991.

Classlilcation
December 31, 1992

Utilityplant:
Electric plant in service:

Intangible
Production .................
Transmission................
Distribution ..... ~..........
General .

Acquisition adjustment .......

$ , 29,265
1,264,361

221,&92
402,733

72,531

$ 706
10,683

316
18,670

845

Balance at
Beginning Additions

of Year at Cost Retirements

gn thousands)

$ , 374
8,581

'71

2,504
1,461

$ 1,383
142,847

220
378
158

40,600

$ 2,636
'00,845

1,583
2,551
1,085

Other Changes

Add Deduct
Balance at

End of Year

$ '28,344
1,208,465

220,074
416,726

70,988
'40,600

1,990,782 31,220, 13,691 185,586 208,700 1,985,197

Gas plant in service:
Intangible
Production ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

'

~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~

Natural gas storage ~ ~..... ~ ..
Transmission................
Distribution ............. ~ ..
General

14,835
111,068

4,804
68,476

223,108
43,183

54
2,911

5,678
12,186
2,448

1

438

69
934

1,788

51
108

16

30
25
53

14,939
113,638

4,804
74,101

234,335
43,820

465,474 23,277 3,230 205 89 485,637

Water plant in service:
Intangible
Source of supply plant........
Pumping plant ..............
Water treatment plant........
Transmission and distribution ..
General

190
8,729
2,402
4,038

35,620
2,190

632
1,197

'92

26

53,169 2,747

37
61

98

39
39

39

151
9,400
3,599
4,038

36,476
2,155

55,819

Common plant in service
Intangible .

General
12,284
25,425

37,709

Construction work in progress ... 75,007
Electric plant held for future use . 1,258
Nuclear fuel . 76,367

Total utilityplant.......... 2,699,766
Non-utilityproperty.......... ~ ~ .. 11,896

Total property, plant and

6,384
2,290

8,674

18,850

9,651

94,419
376

equipment.............. $2,711,662 $94,795

Description of other changes

Transfers between accounts .

Transfers ofexpired contract deposits to plant in service ....

7,515
2,759

10,274

'2,712

50,005
22,

403

403

186,234
2,678

6,310

215,140
4,662

11,152
25,358

36,510

87,547
1,258

63,306

2,715,274
10,266

$50,027

~ ~

Purchase of 22% beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units 1'nd 2 leases,
Write-down of PVNGS Unit 3
Write-down of non-utility property .

Miscellaneous corrections and adjustments.
8

$ 514

184,424

3;974

$ 514
2,258

210,722
3,418
2,890

$ 188,912 $219,802

(continued)

$ 188,912 $219,802 $2,725,540



PUBLIC SERVICE'COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO ANDSUBSIDIARIES

Classttlcatlon
December 31, 1991

SCHEDULE V—PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

Balance at
Beginning Additions Balance at
of Year . at Cost Rettretaeats Add Deduct Eadof Year

gn thousands)

Utilityplant:
Electric plant in sevice:

Intangible
Production .

Transmission
Distribution . ~

General .

$ 31,024
1,235,215

215,430
390,470

66,104

$ 1,862
28,015

7,068
15,326
6,420

$ 26
1,099

666
2,628

277

1,938,243 58,691 4,696

$ 4
2,230

141
215
303

2,893,

$3,599 $ 29,265
1,264,361

81 221,892
650 402,733

19 72,531

4,349 1,990,782

I
c

o ~ o

Gas plant in service:
, Intangible ............
Production .

Natural gas storage ........
Transmission
Distribution

'eneral. ~............

9,479
110,189

4,761
66,969

214,717
39,699

5,362
679

1,023
8,920
3,994

445,814 19,978

315

161
1,622

711

2,809

5

515
43

645
1,093

201

2,502

14,835
111,068

4,804
68,476

223,108
43,183

11 465,474

Water plant in service:
Intangible ...
Source of supply plant ~........
Pumping plant
Water treatment plant.........
Transmission and distribution...
General .

151
7,510

, 2,375
4,038

33,721
2,151

39
938

27

1,975
39

75

281
190

8,729
2,402
4,038

35,620
2,190

49,946 '3,018 75 281 1 53,169
Common plant in service:

Intangible
General

18,364 1,661
21,721 . 4,093

40,085 5,754

7,741
356

8,097

12,284
33 25,425

33 37,709
Construction work in progress .........
Electric plant held for future use .......
Nuclear fuel

Total utilityplant..... ~........
Non-utilityproperty.

Total. property, plant and
equipment... ~

86,127 (11,120)
1,258

77,475 9,981

2,638,948
10,687

86,302
1,269

8,019

23,696
207

75,007
1,258

47 3,117 76,367

5,723 „, 7,511 2,699,766
665 518 11,896

$2,649,635 $ 87,571 $23,903 $ 6,388 $ 8,029 $2,711,662

Description of other changes

Transfers between accounts
Transfers of expired contract deposits to plant in service
Transfers of termination fees to deferred debits ........
Miscellaneous corrections and adjustments.

$ 32 $ 32
496

2,685
6,356 4,816

$6,388 $ 8,029
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOANDSUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE VI—.ACCUMULATEDDEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Years Ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

Description
December 31, 1993

AddMons

Balance at Charged to Charged to
Beginning Operating Other
of Yeso 8saeoses Accoaaes Reaeemeale

Ga Thoosssds)

Other Changes

Add Deduct

Balance
at End
of Year

Utilityplant:
Accumulated provision for

depreciation of utilityplant:
Electric plant in service.....
Gas plant in service ........
Water plant in service ......
Common plant in service....

$599,256
173,617

12,437
7,998

793,308

$55,698
14,351

1,338
755

72,142

$ 619
1,037

43
1,309

3,008

$ 719
772

$ 186 $41,744 $ 613,296
1,022 459 188,796

4 13,814
324 — 10,386

1,491 1,532 42,207 826,292

Accumulated provision for
amortization of intangible
assets —franchises and
computer software ....... ~ ..

Accumulated provision for
amortization of nuclear fuel ..

Retirement work in progress.....
Total utilityplant........

Non-utilityproperty............

Other .

20,208 6,135

25,476
(779)

838,213
897

78,277

$ 839,110 78,277

(951)

$77,326

11,643

14,651
218

$ 14,869

3,747

6,694
(8)

11,924
8

$ 11,932

624 2,441 20,779

30,425
68 (839)

2,156 44,716 876,657
3 — 1,110

$2,159 $44,716 $ 877,767

Description of other addMons and changes

Depreciation and amortization of equipment charged to
clearing accounts for distribution in accordance with use .

Amortization of nuclear fuel charged to fuel and
purchased power

Depreciation of non-utility property charged to other
income and deductions.

Transfers between accounts.
Write-down of PVNGS Units 1 & 2 purchased ........
Sale of SJGS Unit 4 (50 MW) to City of Anaheim......
Miscellaneous corrections and adjustments............

$ 3,008

11,643

218

$ 14,869

1,349

810

$2,159

1,349
24,629
17,783

'955

$44,516

(continued)
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SCHEDULE VI—ACCUMULATEDDEPRECIATION ANDAMORTIZATION
OF PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT—(Continued)

Years Ended December„31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

Description
December 31, 1992

AddMons

Charged
Balance at to Charged
Begh3nh3g Operating " to Other
of Year Expenses Accounts Retirements

Qn thousands)

Other Changes

Add Deduct

Balance at
End of
Year

Utilityplant:
Accumulated provision for

depreciation of utilityplant:
Electric plant in service .....
Gas plant in service.........
Water plant in service.......
Common plant in service ~...

$556,954 $58,165
163,034 12,378

11l197 1,310
13,068 1,203

744,253 73,056

$ 583
797

43

797

2,220

$ 13,727
2,558

115

7,096

23,496

$27,374 $30,093 «$ 599,256
34 173,617

2 — 12,437
74 48 7,998

27,450 30,175 793,308
Accumulated provision for
amortization of intangible
assets —franchises and
computer software.........,.

Accumulated provision for
, amortization of nuclear fuel . ~ .

Retirement work in progress .. ~ . ~

Total utilityplant ......
Non-utility property ............

Other.

34,273
(1,920)

794,453
856

$795,309

79,610

79,610

(354)

$79,256

17,847 6,554

13,915

16,165
41

$ 16,206

22,712
(1,302)

49,101

$49,101

30 4,195 28

3 164

20,208

25,476
(779)

27,453 30,367 838,213
897

$27,453 $30,367 $ 839,110

Description of other additions and changes

Depreciation and amortization of equipment charged to
clearing accounts for distribution in accordance with use .

Amortization of nuclear fuel charged to fuel and
purchased power .........

Depreciation of non-utility property charged to other in-
come and deductions .

Purchase of 22% beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units
1 and 2 leases .

Write-down of PVNGS Unit 3 .

Transfers between accounts.
Miscellaneous corrections and adjustments............

$ 2,250

13,915

$ 16,206

„26,565
29,397

351 351
537 619

$ 27,453 $ 30.367

(eonfinued)
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE VI—ACCUMULATEDDEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION
OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT—(Continued)

Years Ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

Description
December 31, 1991

Additions

Charged
Balance at to Charged
Beginning Operating 'o Other
of Year Expenses Accounts Retirements

Qn thousands)

Other Changes

Add 'educt
Balance at

End of
Year

Utilityplant:
Accumulated provision for

depreciation of utilityplant:
Electric plant in service . ~.....
Gas plant in service...........
Water plant in service.........
Common plant in service ......

$506,490 $ 55,108
149,132 12,796

9,722 1,251
10,930 1,880

676,274 71,035

$ 552 $ 4,690 $ 1,600 $2,106 $556,954
934 (207) — 35 163,034

43 79 282 22 11,197
624 357 12 21 13,068

2,153 4,919 1,894 2,184 744,253
Accumulated provision for
amortization of intangible
assets —franchises and
computer software.............

Accumulated provision for
amortization of nuclear fuel... ~ .

Retirement work in progress .......
Total utilityplant ........

Non-utility property ..... ~........

Other

20,196 5,430 119 7,767

26,743
1,274

724,487
818

76,465

15,549

17,821
41

8,019
3,194

23,899
.3

$23,902$725,305 76,465 $ 17,862

(412)

$76,053

29 160 17,847

34,273
(1,920)

1,923 2,344 794,453
856

$ 1,923 $2,344 $795,309

Description of other additions and changes

Depreciation and amortization of equipment charged to
clearing accounts for distribution in accordance with use...

Amortization of nuclear fuel charged to fuel and
purchased power

Depreciation of non-utility property charged to other in-
come and deductions

Transfers between accounts
Miscellaneous corrections and adjustments............, .

$ 2,272

15,549

41

$ 17,862
"

21 21

1,902 '2,323

$ 1,923 $2,344
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOANDSUBSIDIARIES

SCHEDULE IK—SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Years Ended December 31, 1993, 1992 and 1991

Category ofAggregate Short-Term Borrowings

AVcfghted Maxhnum
Avcragc Amount

Balance at Intcrcst Outstanding
End of Rate at End During the
Year of Year Year

Average
Amount

Outstanding
During the

Year

Average
Interest

Rate
During the

Year

December 31, 1993:
Notes payable to banks

December 31, 1992:
Notes payable to banks

December 31, 1991:
Notes payable to banks .

tDollars in thousands)

$ 109,000 $51,090 4.75%%uo

$51,550 4.46% $ 75,000 $45,908 5.03%

$ 13,000 6.05% $ 37,300 $24,324 "7.63%

The average amount outstanding during the year is calculated by using average monthly balances. The
average interest rate during the year is calculated by dividing average interest expense by the average amount
outstanding during the year.
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PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEKICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

QUARTERLYOPERATING RESULTS

The unaudited operating'results by quarters for 1993 and 1992 are as follows:

1993:

Operating Revenues .

Operating Income
Net Earnings (Loss) (1) .

Net Earnings (Loss) per Share (1)

1992:(2)
Operating Revenues.—.
Operating Income
Net Earnings'(Loss) (3) .

*

Net Earnings (Loss) per'Share (3)

$248,558 $ 190,828 $203,751 $ 230,741
$ 26,351 $ 30,679 $ 37,895, $ ,. 38,359
$ 11,960 $ 5,653 $ 23,946 '(103,045)
$ 0.25 $ 0.09, $ 0.53, $ . (2.51)

$236,778 $ 189,452
$ 32,047 $ 20,855
$ 16,183 $ 5,081
$ 0.34 $ 0.08

$206,273 '219,450
$ 29,094 $ ,29,935
$ 8,482 $ (134,001)
$ 0.16 $ (3.25)

Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Gn thousands ezcept per share amounts)

In the opinion ofmanagement of the Company, all adjustments (consisting ofnormal recurring accruals)

necessary for a fair statement of the results of operations for such periods have been included.

(1)

(2)

(3)

On January 12, 1994, the Company and the NMPUC staff and the interested parties entered into a

stipulation which addresses retail electric prices, generation assets and the financial concerns of the

Company. The Company filed the stipulation with the NMPUC, recommending that electric retail rates

be reduced by $30 million. This reduction is accomplished primarily through the write-down of the 22%
beneficial interests in the PVNGS Units 1 &2 leases purchased by the Company, the write-offof certain

regulatory assets and other deferred costs, the write-offof certain PVNGS Units 1 8c 2 common costs

and the Company's previously announced cost reduction efforts. In connection with the stipulation, the
Company has charged approximately $ 108.2 million, after-tax, to the 1993 results of operations. (See

PART II, ITEM 7. —"MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITIONAND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS—January 12, 1994 Stipulation".)

To provide a better matching of the Company's revenues from sales with the related costs, effective

January 1, 1992, the Company changed its method ofaccounting to record estimated revenues from sales

of utility services provided subsequent to monthly billing cycle dates but prior to the end of the

accounting period. The cumulative effect of this accounting change as of January 1, 1992, net of income

taxes, was $ 12.7 million and has been reflected in the above schedule in the quarter ended December 31

in its entirety. The effect of this change has not been reflected in each quarter as it would not cause a

material difference. See note 1 ofnotes to consolidated financial statements.

On January 11, 1993, the Company announced specific actions which were determined to be necessary

in order to accelerate the Company's preparation for the new challenges in the competitive energy

market. One element of the January 11, 1993 announcement was the decision to attempt to sell PVNGS

Unit 3. As a result of such decision the Company has estimated the net realizable value of PVNGS Unit
3 and the M-S-R power purchase contract, and recorded an after-tax loss of $ 126.2 million at December

31, 1992. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 1992, the Company recorded a write-down of other

charges, aggregating $ 15.9 million, net of taxes. (See PART II, ITEM 7. —"MANAGEMENT'S
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF

OPERATIONS".)

F-38



iv

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICO AND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPARATIVEOPERATING STATISTICS

1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

Electric Service
Energy Sales —KWh (in thousands):

Residential
Commercial ....
Industrial ~ ~ .

Other ultimate customers .......

1,683,213
2,398,725
1,145,369

219,481

1,650,491
2,353,152
1,087,357

267,246

1,606,993
2,299,213
1,025,420

208,328

1,575,622
2,270,380

999,823
203,005

1,527, 108

2,203,037
961,251
218,196

Total sales to ultimate
customers ......... ~ . ~ ~ ..

Sales for resale ...............
5,446,788 5,358,246
3,375,216 3,685,418

5,139,954
3,091,541

5,048,830
3,497,506

4,909,592
3,832,016

Total KWh sales .......
Electric Revenues (in thousands):

Residential ..
Commercial
Industrial .

Other ultimate customers .....

8,822,004 9,043;664 8,231,495

$ 163,131 $ 158,190 $ 155,162
218,263 211,086 207,929

74,157 69,590 67,031
15,548 16,521 14,472

8,546,336

$ 147,059
200,041

66,351
14,054

8,741,608

$ 141,465
192,273
64,519
15,387

Total revenues to ultimate
customers ........... ~....

Sales for resale .

Total revenues from energy
sales

Miscellaneous electric revenues .

471,099
99,8954

570,994
18,734

455,387
123,291

578,678
17,645

444,594
107,636

552,230
16,256

427,505
122,431

549,936
17,446

" 413,644
204,763

618,407
16,481

Total electric revenues. ~ .. $ 589,728 $ 596,323 $ 568,486 $ 567,382 $ 634,888

Customers at Year End:
Residential
Commercial .........
Industrial
Other ultimate customers .......

Total ultimate customers......
Sales for Resale ............ ~ ..

Total customers ...... ~ .. ~...

278,357
33,568

381
576

312,882
37

312,919

271,155
32,504

386
537

304,582
47

304,629

264,425
31,666

385
499

296,975
33

297,008

259,546
31,295

392
454

291,687
34

291,721

254,864
31,402

393
415

287,074
33

287,107

Reliable Net Capability—KW .....
Coincidental Peak Demand —KW
Average Fuel Cost per MillionBTU;
BTU per KWh of Net Generation ..

1,541,000 1,591,000 1,591,000
1,104,000 1,053,000 1,018,000

$ 1.3844 $ 1.3263 $ 1.3696
11,036 11,039 11,086

1,591,000
1,051,000

$ 1.3384
11,181

1,591,000
1,006,000

$ 1.3445
11,034

Water Service
Water Sales —Gallon (in thousands) 3,414,950 3,224,271 2,996,587 3,001,391 3,179,711
Revenues (in thousands) . ~........ $ 13,063 $ 12,471 $ 11,613 $ 11,700 $ 12,102
Customers at Year End.... ~ . ~ ~... 22,743 22,098 21,522 21,134 20,565

Due to the provision for the loss associated with the M-S-R contingent power purchase contract recognized in 1992,
operating revenues were reduced by $20.5 million. (Sce Note 2 of the notes to consolidated financial statements.)

Note: In 199l, the Company implemented a FERC order requiring classification ofeconomy sales as operating revenues.
Prior period amounts have been reclassified for- comparability purposes.
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PUBLIC'SERVICE COMPANY OF NEW MEXICOAND SUBSIDIARIES

COMPARATIVEOPERATING STATISTICS

1993 1992 1991 1990 1989

Gas Service
Gas Throughput —Decatherms (in thousands)
GCNM:

Residential
Commercial .

Industrial
Public authorities .

Irrigation
Sales for resale
Unbilled
Brokerage

GCNM sales.
Transportation throughput
GCNM throughput

Gathering Company:
Spot market sales.
Transportation throughput

Total gas throughput

Gas Revenues (in thousands)
GCNM:

Residential .
Commercial .

Industrial
Public authorities.
Irrigation
Sales for resale
Unbilled
Brokerage
Revenues from gas sales
Transportation
Other
GCNM gas revenues

Gathering Company:
Spot market sales .
Transportation

Processing Company:
Sales of liquids "

Processing fees

Total gas revenues .

Customers at Year End
GCNM:

Residential ~

Commercial
Industrial .

Public authorities
Irrigation .

Sales for resale .

Transportation .
Brokerage

GCNM customers
Gathering Company:

Off-system sales
Transportation

Processing Company .

Total customers .

28,031
10,428

923
2,473
1,259
1,041
(636)

43,519
46,059

89,578

45,754

135,332

27,063
10,590

707
4,199
1,134
2,035

649

46,377
48,674

95,051

858
24,889

120,798

26,237
11,375

766
4,951
1,374
1,357

46,060
38,976

85,036

1>624
23,631

110,291

25,190
11,344

1,278
5,300
1,780
3,539

48,431
31,717

80,148

8,112
10,785

99,045

23,253
10,730

1,478
5,492
2,010
4,557

776

48,296
16,041

64,337

11,081
3,597

79,015

$ 149,796
44,'575

3,369
9,694
4,418
3,137

(1,573)

213,416
19,376
2,453

$ 125,313
37 222

2,063
12,313
2,713
4,460

716

184,800
14,861
4,974

$ 137,436"
46,676

2,754
17,711
4,495
3,848

212,920
13,386
9,062

$ 137,633
49,575

4,993
20,392

5,934
7 253

225,780
10,246
8,292

$ 130,130
47,876

5,693
21,757

7,001
9,874

1,378

223,709
6,788
5,948

4
7,353

1,410
3,892

1,771
3,611

13,880
1,693

19,810
830

18,724
9,761

26,427
6,795

30,500, 39,086
5,819 3,127

25,294
448

$271,087 $243,159 $277,069 $302,104 $282,827

337,768
30,151

72
1,958

951
3

37

'370,940

1

21
25

370,987

329,385
29,765

61
2,004
1,012

4
43

362,274

2
16
22

362,314

320,546
29,608

72
2,153
1,043

7
41

353,470

13
8

21

353,512,

312,899
29,305

81
2,125
1,224

4
40

345,678

12
9

20

345,719

306,604
28,949

103
2,242
1,252

7
28

1

339,186

13
5

23

339,227

235>245 204,635 235,368 244,318 236,445
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ITEM9. CHANGES INANDDISAGREEMENTS WITHACCOUNTANTS ONACCOUNTINGAND
FINANCIALDISCLOSURE

On January 5, 1993, the Company notified its certifying accountants, KPMG Peat Marwick ("KPMG"),
that the client-auditor relationship between the Company and KPMG willbe terminated effective with-the

completion of the 1992 financial audit. Additionally, the Company announced its new certifying accountants,

Arthur Andersen &, Co., to serve'as independent accountants for fiscal year 1993. The decision to change

accountants was recommended by management and the Audit Committee and approved by the Company's

board of directors, and was ratified at the Company's annual meeting of stockholders held on May 25, 1993.

The information required by Item 304 of Regulation S-K has been "previously reports",'s that term is

defined in Rule 12b-2, in a Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 8, 1993.

PART III

ITEM10. DIRECTORS ANDEXECUTIVEOFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Reference is hereby made to "Election of Dir'ectors" in the Company's Proxy Statement relating to the

annual meeting of stockholders to be held on April27, 1994 (the "1994 Proxy Statement" ) and to PART I,
SUPPLEMENTAL ITEM—"EXECUTIVEOFFICERS OF THE COMPANY".

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
I

Reference is hereby made to "Executive Compensation" in the 1994 Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY,OWNERSHIP OF CERTAINBENEFICIALOWNERS ANDMANAGEMENT

Reference is hereby made to "Voting Information", "Election of Directors" and "Stock Ownership of
Certain Executor Officer" in the 1994 Proxy Statement.

ITEM13. CERTAINRELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Reference is hereby made to the 1994 Proxy Statement for such disclosure, ifany, as may be required by
this item.

„PART IV

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIALSTATEMENTSCHEDULES, ANDREPORTS ON FORM 8-K

(a) —1. See index to Financial Statements under Item 8.

(a) —2. The following consolidated financial information for the years 1993, 1992, and 1991 is
submitted under Item 8.

Schedule V —Property, plant and equipment.
Schedule VI—Accumulated depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment.
Schedule IX—Short-term borrowings.

All other schedules are omitted for the reason that they are not applicable, not required or the
information is otherwise supplied.



(a) —3-A. Exhibits Filed: V

Exhfblt"
No.

2.1

2.2

'.2

Descrlpuon

Purchase and Sale Agreement By and Among Public Service Company ofNew Mexico, sunterra
Gas Gathering Company, Sunterra Gas Processing Company (Sellers) and Williams Gas
Processing —Blanco, Inc. (Buyer)

A'greement to Purchase and Sell Between City ofPanta'Fe, New Mexico and Public Service
Company of New Mexico

4

Bylaws of Public Service Company of New Mexico With AllAmendments to and Including
March 1, 1994

10.50 Public Service Company ofNew Mexico Section 415 Plan

10.51

10.52

First Amendment to the Public Service Company of New Mexico Executive Retention Plan

First Amendment to the Public Service Company of New Mexico Performance Stock Plan

10.53 January 12, '1994 Stipulation

10.54

10.55

10.56

10.57

10.58

10.59'0.61

10.62

23.1

Employment, Retirement and Release Agreement By and Between the Public Service Company of
New Mexico and William M. Eglinton

Receivable Purchase Agreement Dated as of August 2, 1983 Among Public Service Company of
New Mexico (Seller) 'and CXC Incorporated (Purchaser) and Citicorp North America,'nc. (Agent)

U.S. $40,000,000 Receivables Purchase Agreement Dated December 21, 1993 Among Public
Service Company of New Mexico (Seller) and Corporate Receivables Corporation (Investor) and
Citicorp North America, Inc. (Agent)

U.S, $ 100,000,000 Revolving Credit Agreem'ent Dated as of December 14, 1993 Among Public
Service Company of New Mexico (Borrower) and The Banks Named Herein (Banks) and
Chemical Bank and Citibank, N.A. (Co-Agents)

Amendment No. 8 effective September 12, 1983, to the Arizona Nuclear Power Project
Participation Agreement (refiled)

Amended and Restated Lease dated as of September 1, 1993, between The First National Bank of
Boston, Lessor, and the Company, Lessee. (EIP Lease)

Participation Agreement dated as of June 30, 1983 among Security Trust Company, as Trustee,
the Company, Tucson Electric Power Company and certain financial institutions relating to the
San Juan Coal Trust (refiled).

Agreement of the Company pursuant to Item'01(b)(4)(iii) ofRegulation S-K (refiled).

Consent of Arthur Andersen 8c Co.

23.2 Consent of KPMG Peat Marwick.

(a) —3-B. Exhibits Incorporated By Reference:

In addition to those Exhibits shown above; the Company hereby incorporates the, following Exhibits
pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 12b-32 and Regulation 201.24 by reference to the filings set forth below:



Exhibit
No. Description

Articles of Incorporation and By-laws...
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Company,'as

amended through May 10, 1985.

Filed as Exhibit: File Ne.

4-(b) to Registration Statement 2-99990
No. 2-99990 of the Company.

Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders, Including Indentures
Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of /rust dated as of 4-(d) to Registration Statement
June 1, 1947, between the Company and The Bank of No, 2-99990 of the Company.
New York (formerly Irving Trust Company), as

Trustee, together with the Ninth Supplemental
Indenture dated as of January 1,'1967, the Twelfth
Supplemental Indenture dated as of September 15,

1971, the Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture dated as

ofDecember 1, 1974 and the Twenty-second,
Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1979 e

thereto relating,to First Mortgage Bonds of the
Company. e

2-99990

4.2 Portions of sixteen supplemental indentures to the
Indenture of Mortgage and Deed of Trust dated as of
June 1, 1947, between the Company and The Bank of
New York (formerly Irving Trust Company), as

Trustee, relevant to the declaration or payment of
dividends or the making of other distributions on or
the purchase by the Company of shares of the
Company's Common Stock.

e4-(e) to Registration Statement 2-99990
No. 2-99990 of the Company.

ie

Material Contracts
10.1 'upplemental Indenture of Lease dated as of July 19,

1966 between the Company and other participants in
the Four Corners Project and the Navajo Indian Tribal
Council.

4-D to Registration Statement
No. 2-26116 of the Company.

l'

2-26116

10.1.1

10.2

10.3

International Inc. and the participants in the Four
'

Corners Project, including the Company.

Amendment and Supplement No. 1 to Supplemental
and Additional Indenture of Lease dated April 25,
1985 between the Navajo Tribe of Indians and Arizona
Public Service Company, El Paso Electric Company,
Public Service Company of New Mexico, Salt River
Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District,
Southern California Edison Company, and Tucson
Electric Power Company.

Fuel Agreement, as supplemented, dated as of
September 1, 1966 between Utah Construction 8r,

Mining Co. and the participants in the Four Corners
Project including the Company.

il

Fourth Supplement to Four Corners Fuel Agreement
No. 2 effective as of January 1, 1981, between Utah

10.1.1 to Ann'ual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1985.

1-6986

10.3 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1991.

1-6986

4-H to Registration Statement '-35042
No. 2-35042 of the Company.

10.4 Contract between the United States and the Company
dated April 11, 1968, for furnishing water.

5-L to Registration Statement " 2-41010
No. 2-41010 of the Company.



Exhibit
No.

10.4.1

Desedsttee

Amendatory Contract between the United States and
the Company dated September 29, 1977, for
furnishing water.,

Filed as Ezhlbitt F le Ne.

5-R to Registration Statement '-60021
No. 2-60021 of the Company.

10.5 Co-Tenancy Agreement between the Company and
Tucson Gas &Electric Company dated February 15,
1972, pertaining to the San Juan generating plant. ',

5-0 to Registration Statement
No. 2-44425 of the Company.

2-44425

10.5.1 Modifications No. 1 to San Juan Project Agreements 10.10 to Annual Report of the 1-6986
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31„
1991.

10.5.2 Modifications No. 3 to San Juan Project Agreements
dated July 17, 1984.

10.5.3 Modification No. 4 to Co-Tenancy Agreement
between the Company and Tucson Electric Power
Company dated October 25, 1984.

10.5.4 Modification No. 5 to Co-Tenancy Agreement
between the Company and Tucson Electric Power
Company dated July 1, 1985.

10-KK to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form'10-K
for fiscal, year ended December
31, 1984.

10.5.1 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,

'985.

10.5.2 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1985.

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

10.6 San Juan Project Construction Agreement between
the Company and Tucson Gas &Electric Company,
executed December 21, 1973.

5-R to Registration Statement
No. 2-50338 of the Company..

2-50338

10.60

10.6.1

Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of November 1,
1992 between Public Service Company of New
Mexico and Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce,
New York Agency

Modification No. 4 to San Juan Project Construction
Agreement between the Company and Tucson
Electric Power Company dated October 25, 1984.

10.6.2 Modification No. 5 to San Juan Project Construction
Agreement between the Company and Tucson
Electric Power Company dated July 1, 1985.

4.5 to Registration Statement
No. 33-65418 of the Company.

10.6.1 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year-ended December 31,
1985. e

10.6.2 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1985.

33-65418

'1-6986

1-6986

10.7 San Juan Project Operating Agreement between the
Company and Tucson Gas & Electric Company,
executed December 21, 1973.

5-S to Registration Statement
No'. 2-50338 of the Company.

2-50338

10.7.1 Modification No. 4 to San Juan Project Operating
Agreement between the Company and Tucson
Electric Power Company dated October 25, 1984.

u

10.7.1 to Annual Report of the 1-6986
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1985.



Exhibit
No. <

10.7.2

10.8

10.8.1

Deeenonoa

Modtgcation No. 5 to San Juan Project Operating
Agreement between the Company and Tucson Electric
Power Company dated July 1, 1985.

Arizona Nuclear Power Project Participation
Agreement among the Company and Arizona Public
Service Company, Salt River Project Agricultural
Improvement and Power District, Tucson Gas R
Electric Company and El Paso Electric Company,
dated August 23, 1973.

Amendments No. 1 through No. 6 to Arizona Nuclear
Power Project Participation Agreement.

Piled as Exhibit:

10.7.2 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1985.

5-T to Registration Statement
No. 2-50338 of the Company.

10.8.1 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1991.

File No.

1-6986

2-50338

1-6986

10.8.2 Amendment No. 7 effective April 1, 1982, to the
Arizona Nuclear Power Project Participation
Agreement (refiled).

10.8.4 Amendment No. 9 to Arizona "Nuclear Power Project
Participation Agreement dated as of June 12, 1984.

10.8.5 Amendment No. 10 to Arizona Nuclear Power Project
Participation Agreement dated as of November 21,
1985.

10.8.2 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1991".

10-JJ to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1984.

10.8.7 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1985.

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

10.8.6 Amendment No. 11 to Arizona Nuclear Power Project
Participation Agreement dated June 13, 1986 and
effective January 10, 1987.

10.8.8 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1986.

1-6986

10.8.8 Amendment No. 13 to the Arizona Nuclear Power
Project Participation Agreement dated April4, 1990,
and effective June 15, 1991.

10.9 Coal Sales Agreement executed August 18, 1980

among San Juan Coal Company, the Company and
Tucson Electric Power Company, together with
Amendments No. One, Two, Four, and Six thereto

10.8.7 Amendment No. 12 to Arizona Nuclear Power Project
Participation Agreement dated June 14, 1988, and
effective August 5, 1988,

19.1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1990.

10.8.10 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1990.

10.9 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on'Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1991.

1-6986

1-6986

1'-6986



ExhibB
No.

10.9.1

10.9.2

10.9.3

10.9.4

10.11.1

10.12

Desertsttea

Amendment No. Three to Coal Sales Agreement dated
April30, 1984 among San Juan Coal Company, the
Company and Tucson Electric Power Company.

Amendment No. Five to Coal Sales Agreement dated
May 29, 1990 among San Juan Coal Company, the
Company and Tucson Electric Power Company.

Amendment No. Seven to Coal Sales Agreement, dated
as of July 27, 1992 among San Juan Coal Company,
the Company and Tucson Electric Power Company.

First Sup'plement to Coal Sales Agreement, 'dated as of
July 27, 1992 amo'ng San Juan Coal Company, the
Company and Tucson Electric Power Company.

Amendment No. 1 to the Early Purchase and
Participation Agreement between Public Service,,
Company of New, Mexico and M-S-R Public Power
Agency, executed as of December 16, 1987, for San,,
Juan Unit 4.

Amended and Restated San Juan Unit 4 Purchase and
Participation Agreement dated as of December 28,
1984 between the Company and the Incorporated
County of Los Alamos.

Piled as Exhibn:

10-NN to Annual Report of:,
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1984 (confidentiality
treatment was requested and
exhibit was not filed
therewith).

10.9.2 to Annual Report of tlie
Registrant on Form 10-K for

'iscalyear ended December 31,
1991 (confidentiality treatment
was requested as to portions of
the exhibit, and such portions
were omitted from the exhibit
filed and were filed separately
with the Securities and
Exchange Commission).

19.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1992
(confidentiality treatment was

requested as to portions of this
'xhibit; and such portions

were omitted from the exhibit
filed and were filed separately
with the Securities and
Exchange Commission).

19.4 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on For'm

10-Q for the quarter ended
'eptember 30, 1992
(confidentiality treatment was

requested as to portions of this
exhibit, and such portions
were omitted from the exhibit
filed and were filed separately
with the Securities and
Exchange Commission).

10.11.1 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, .1987.,

10-00 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1984.

Pile No.

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986



Exhibit
Ntb

10.14

10.16

Dercttcttea

Participation Agreement among the Company,
Tucson Electric Power Company and certain financial
institutions relating to the San Juan Coal Trust dated
as of December 31, 1981 (refiled).

Interconnection Agreemenl dated November 23, 1982,
between the Company and Southwestern Public
Service Company (refiled).

Filed as Exhibit:

10.14 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1992.

10.16 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1992.

File No.

1-6986

1-6986

10.18»

10.18.1»

Facility Lease dated as of December 16, 1985,
between The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner
Trustee, and Public Service Company of New Mexico.

Amendment No. 1 dated as of July 15, 1986, to
Facility Lease dated as of December 16, 1985.

h

10.18.3'mendment No. 3 dated as ofMarch 30, 1987, to
Facility Lease dated as of December 16, 1985.

,10.19 Facility Lease dated as of July 31, 1986, between The
First National Bank ofBoston, as Owner Trustee, and
Public Service Company of New Mexico.

10.19.1

10.19.2

Amendment No. 1 dated as ofNovember 18, 1986,
Facility Lease dated as of July 31, 1986.

a

r

Amendment No. 2 dated as of December 11, 1986, to
Facility Lease dated as of July 31, 1986.

10.19.3 Amendment No. 3 dated as ofApril 8, 1987, to
Facility Lease dated as of July 31, 1986.

10.20»

10.20.1»

Facility Lease dated as of August 12, 1986, between
The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner Trustee,
and Public Service Company of New Mexico.

Amendment No. 1, dated as of November 18, 1986, to
Facility Lease dated as of August 12, 1986.

I

10.18,2» Amendment No. 2 dated as ofNovember'18, 1986, to
Facility Lease dated as of December 16, 1985.

28(a) to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 31; 1985.

28.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
July 17, 1986.

28.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
November 25, 1986.

10.21.3 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on For'm 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1987.

28.1 to the Company's
Quarterly. Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1986.

28.5 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
November 25, 1986.

10.22.2 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1986.

10.22.3 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K

'or fiscal year ended December
31, 1987.

28.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
August 18, 1986.

28.9 to the Company Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
November 25, 1986.

,1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986



Exhibit
No. nesertstlee

10.20t2 „Amendment No. 2 dated as of November 26, 1986,
to Facility Lease dated as of August 12, 1986.

Filed as Exhibit:
n

10.23.2 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1986.

Fiie No.

1-6986

10.21

10.21.1

10.22

10,22.1

Facility Lease dated as ofDecember 15, 1986,
between The First National Bank ofBoston, as
Ow'ner Trustee, and Public Service Company of New
Mexico (Unit 1 Transaction).

Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 8, 1987, 'to

Facility Lease dated as of December 15, 1986.

Facility Lease dated as ofDecember 15, 1986,
between The First National Bank of,Boston, as

Owner Trustee, and Public Service Company of New
Mexico (Units 2 Transaction).

Amendment No.,l dated as of April 8, 1987, to
Facility Lease dated as of December 15, 1986.

10.24.1 to Annual Report of 1-6986

the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1987.

28.9 to the Company's Current 1-6986
Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 1986.

10.25.1 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1987.

1-6986

28.1 to the Company's Current 1-6986
'eport on Form 8-K dated

December 17, 1986.

10.23»»

10.23.1»»

10.23.2»»

10.24»»

10.25»»

Restated and Amended Public Service Company of
New Mexico Accelerated Management Performance
Plan (1988). (August 16, 1988.)

First Amendment to Restated and Amended Public
Service Company of New Mexico Accelerated
Management Performance Plan (1988). (August 30,
1988.)

Second Amendment to Restated and Amended
Public Service Company of New Mexico Accelerated
Management Performance Plan (1988). (December
29, 1989). '

Management Life Insurance Plan (July 1985) of the
Company.

Amended and Restated Medical Reimbursement
Plan of Public Service Company of New Mexico.

o

19.5 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1988.

19.6 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended

'eptember 30, 1988.

10.26.2 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for fiscal year ended December
31, 1989.

10.39 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1985.

'19.6 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form

'„10-Qfor the quarter ended,
March 31, 1987.

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

10.25.1»» Second Restated and Amended Public Service
Company of New Mexico Executive Medical Plan.

10.25.1 to Annual Report of
the Registrant on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1992

1-6986



r

Exhibit
No."»

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

Desetlsnee

Amendment No. 2 dated as of April 10, 1987,:to the

Facility Lease dated as of August 12, 1986, between

The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner Trustee,
and Public Service Company of New Mexico. (Unit 2

Transaction.) (This is an amendment to a Facility
Lease which is substantially similar to the Facility
Lease filed as Exhibit 28.1 to the Company's'Current
Report on Form 8-K dated August 18, 1986.)

Amendment No. 3 dated as of March 30, 1987, to the
Facility Lease dated as of December 16, 1985, between

The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner Trustee,
and Public Service Company ofNew Mexico. (Unit 1

Transaction.) (This is an amendment to a Facility
Lease which is substantially similar to the Facility.
Lease filed as Exhibit 28(a) to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated December 31, 1985.)

Decommissioning Trust Agreement between Public
Service Company of New Mexico and First Interstate
Bank ofAlbuquerque dated as of July 31, 1987.

New Mexico Public Service Commission Order dated
July 30, 1987, and Exhibit 1 thereto, in NMPUC Case

No. 2004, regarding the PVNGS decommissioning
trust fund.

Filed as Exhibit:
e

10.53 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
19&7.

10.54 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1987.

10.55 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1987.

10.56 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1987.

File No.

1-6986

1-6986

r

1-6986

1-6986

10.31'» Executive Retention Agreements.

10.33' Supplemental Employee Retirement Agreement dated
March 6, 1990.

10.32ee Supplemental Employee Retirement Agreements dated
August 4, 1989.

10.42 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1990.

19.4 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1989.

10.47 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K'or
fiscal year ended December 31,
1989.

1-6986

1;6986

1-6986

10.34

10.34.1

Settlement Agreement between Public Service
Company of New Mexico and Creditors of Meadows
Resources, Inc. dated November 2,'989.

First amendment dated April24, 1992 to the
Settlement'greement dated November 2, 1989 among
Public Service Company of New Mexico, the lender
parties thereto and collateral agent.

10.48 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1989.

19.1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1992.

1-6986

'-6986



Exhtbtt
No.

10.35

10.36

10.36.1

Deeetlelleal

Amendment dated April 11, 1991 among Public
Service Company of New Mexico, certain banks and
Chemical Bank and Citibank, N.A., as, agents for the
banks.

San Juan Unit 4 Purchase and Participation
Agreement Public Service Company of New Mexico-
and the City of Anaheim, California dated April26,,
1991.

Second stipulation in the matter of application of
Public Service Company ofNew Mexico for NMPSC
approval to sell a 10.04% undivided interest in San
Juan Generating Station Unit 4 to the City of
Anaheim, California, and for related orders and
approvals.

Filed as Exhibltt

19.1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1991.

19.2 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 1991.

10.38 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1992.

Rle No.

1-6986

1-6986

I

1-6986

10.37'» Executive Retention Plan.
R

10.37 to Annual Report of the 1-6986
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1991.

10.38 Restated and Amended San Juan Unit 4 Purchase
and Participation Agreement between Public Service
Company of New Mexico and Utah Associated
Municipal Power Systems

10.39 Purchase agreement dated February 7, 1992 between
Burnham Leasing Corporation and Public Service
Company of New Mexico.

10.2.1 to the Companyls
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1993.

10.39 to Annual Report of the 1-6986
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1991.

10.40»» Director Restricted Stock Retainer Plan.

'0.40.1»»

First Amendment to the Public Service Company of
New Mexico Director Restricted Stock Retainer
Plan

10.41 Waste Disposal Agreement, dated as of July 27, 1992
among San Juan Coal Company, the Company and
Tucson Electric Power Company.

10.40 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1991.

19.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 1993.

19.5 to the Company's.
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1992

(confidentiality treatment was
requested as to portions of this
exhibit, and such portions
were omitted from the exhibit
and were filed separately with
the Securities and Exchange
Commission).

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986



Ezhfblt
Np.

10.42

Dcccrtcttcn

Stipulation in the matter of the appiieation of Gaa

Company of New Mexico for an order authorizing
.„. recovery of-MDLcosts through Rate Rider

Number 8.

Filed as Exhibit: piteNc.

10.42 to Annual Report of the 1-6986

Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1992.

10.43»» Description of certain Plans which include
executive officers as participants.

10.43 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1992.

1-6986

10.44»» Public Service Company, of New Mexico—Non-
Union Voluntary Separation Program.

10.44.1»»

10A5»»

10.46'»

First Amendment dated April 6, 1993 to the First
Restated and Amended Public Service Company
of New Mexico Non-Union Severance Pay Plan
dated August 1, 1992.

Public Service Company of New Mexico
Performance Stock Plan.

Public Service Company of New Mexico Asset
Sales Incentive Plan.

10.47»» Compensation Arrangement with Chief Executive
Officer.

10.47.1'» Pension Service Adjustment Agreement for
Benjamin F. Montoya.

10.47.2»» Severance Agreement for Benjamin F. Montoya.

10.48'» Public Service Company of New Mexico OBRA
'93 Retirement Plan.

10.47.3»» Executive Retention Agreement for Benjamin F.
Montoya.

10.44 to Annual Report of the,
Registrant on Form 10-K for.

fiscal year ended December 31,
1992.

19.2 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 1993.

99.1 to Registration Statement
No. 33-65418 of the Company.

10.1 to the Company's «

Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1993.

10.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1993.

10.3.1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1993.

10.3'.2 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended ~

September 30, 1993,,

10.3.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1993.

10.4 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on„Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 1993.

1-6986

1-6986

33-65418

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

Additional Exhibits
16.1 Letter re. Change in Certifying Accountant. 16.1 to the Company's Current 1-6986

Report Form 8-K dated
January 8, 1993.



Exhibit
No.',

22"'
Dsssrlellsa

Certain subsidiaries of the registrant.

PHed as Exhibit

22 to Annual Report of'the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1992.

PHe No.

1-6986

99.1 Collateral Trust Indenture dated as of December 16,
1985,'among First PV Funding Corporation, Public
Service Company of New Mexico and Chemical Bank,
as Trustee.

99.1.1 Series 1986A Bond Supplemental Indenture dated as of
July 15, 1986, to Collateral Trust Indenture dated as of
December 16, 1985.

99.1.2 Series 1986B Bond Supplemental Indenture dated as of
November 18, 1986, to Collafer'al Trust Indenture
dated as of December 16, 1985.

99.1.3 Unit 1 Supplemental Indenture of Pledge (Lease
Obligation Bonds, Series 1986B) dated as of December
15, 1986, to the. Collateral Trust Indenture dated as of
December 16, 1985.

99.1.4, 'nit 2 Supplemental Indenture of Pledge (Lease,
Obligation Bonds, Series 1986B) dated as of December
15, 1986, to the Collateral Trust Indenture dated as of
December 16, 1985.

99.2e Participation Agreement dated as of December 16,
1985, among the Owner Participant named therein,
First PV Funding Corporation. The First National
Bank of Boston, in its individual capacity and as
Owner Trustee (under a Trust Agreement dated as of
December 16,'1985 with the Owner Participant),
Chemical Bank, in its individual capacity and as

Indenture Trustee (under a Trust Indenture, Mortgage,
Security Agreement and Assignment of Rents dated as
of December 16, 1985 with the Owner Trustee), and
Public Service Company of New Mexico, including
Appendix A definitions..

28(i) to the Company's
'Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 31, 1985.

28.4,to the Company's Current
tReport on Form 8-K dated
July 17, 1986.

28.1.2 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 25, 1986.

28.8 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 1986.

28.16 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 17, 1986.

2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
December 31, 1985.

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

99.2.1e

99.2.2'9.3'mendment

No. 1 dated as of July 15, 1986, to
Participation Agreement dated as of December 16,
1985.

Amendment No. 2 dated as of November 18, 1986, to
Participation Agreement dated as of December 16,

1985.

Trust Indenture,'o'rtgage, Security Agreement and
Assignment of Rents dated as of December 16, 1985,
between The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner
Trustee, and Chemical Bank, as Indenture Trustee.

2.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
July 17, 1986.

2.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
November 25, 1986.

28(b) to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 31, 1985.

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986



Exhib(t
No.

99.3.1»

99.3.2e

99.4e

99.5

99.5.1

99.6 ~

99.6.1

99.7

Deretlatlea

Supplemental Indenture No. l dated aa of July td,
1986, to the Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security
Agreement and Assignment of Rents dated as of
December 16, 1985.

Supplemental Indenture No. 2 dated as of November
18, 1986, to the Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security
Agreement and Assignment of Rents dated as of

'ecember16, 1985.

Assignment, Assumption and Further Agreement
dated as of December 16, 1985, between Public Service
Company of New Mexico and The First National Bank
of Boston, as Owner Trustee.

Participation Agreement dated as of July 31, 1986,

among the Owner Participant named therein, First PV
Funding Corporation. The First National Bank of
Boston, in its individual capacity and as Owner Trustee
(under a Trust Agreement dated as of July 31, 1986,
with the Owner Participant), Chemical Bank, in its
individual capacity and as Indenture Trustee (under a
Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security Agreement and
Assignment ofRents dated as of July 31, 1986, with
the Owner Trustee), and Public Service Company of
New Mexico, including Appendix A definitions.

Amendment No. 1 dated as of November 18, 1986, to
Participation Agreement dated as of July 31, 1986.

Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security Agreement and
Assignment of Rents dated as of July 31, 1986,
between The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner
Trustee, and Chemical Bank, as Indenture Trustee.

Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated as of November
18, 1986, to the Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security
Agreement and Assignments of Rents dated as of July
31, 1986.

Assignment, Assumption, and Further Agreement
dated as of July 31, 1986, between Public Service
Company of New Mexico and The First National Bank
of Boston, as Owner Trustee.

Filed as Exhibit:

28.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
July 17, 1986.

File No.

1-6986

28(e) to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 31, 1985.

1-6986

2.1 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1986.

1-6986

28,4 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8«K dated
November 25, 1986.

28.2 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1986.

28.6 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
November 25, 1986.

1-6986

1-6986

1-6986

28.3 to the Company's
Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended
June 30, 1986.

1-6986

28.2 to the Company's Current 1-6986

Report on Form 8-K dated
November 25, 1986.

F 13



Exhibit
No.

99.8»

99.8.1»

99.9'9.9.1'9.10»

99.11

99.12

Deserlsttes

Participation Agreement dated as of August 12, ipgd,
among the Owner Participant named therein, First PV
Funding Corporation. The First National Bank of
Boston, in its individual capacity and as Owner Trustee
(under a Trust Agreement dated as of.August 12, 1986, .

with the Owner Participant), Chemical Bank, in its
individual capacity and as Indenture Trustee (under a
Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security Agreement and
Assignment of Rents dated as of August 12, 1986, with
the Owner'Trustee), and Public Service Company of
¹w Mexico, including Appendix A definitions.

Amendment No. 1 dated as of November 18, 1986, to
Participation Agreement dated as of August 12, 1986.

Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security Agreement and
Assignment of Rents dated as ofAugust 12, 1986,,
between The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner
Trustee, and Chemical Bank, as Indenture Trustee.

Supplemental Indenture No. 1 dated as of November
18, 1986, to the Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security
Agreement and Assignment ofRents dated as of
August 12, 1986.

Assignment, Assumption, and Further Agreement
dated as of August 12, 1986, between Public Service
Company of New Mexico and The First National Bank
of Boston, as Owner Trustee.

Participation Agreement dated as of December 15,

1986, among the Owner Participant named therein,
First PV Funding Corporation. The First National
Bank of Boston, in its individual capacity and as

Owner Trustee {under a Trust Agreement dated as of
December 15, 1986, with the Owner Participant),
Chemical Bank, in its individual capacity and as
Indenture Trustee (under a Trust Indenture, Mortgage,
Security Agreement and Assignment ofRents dated as

of December 15, 1986, with the Owner Trustee), and
Public Service Company of New Mexico, including
Appendix A definitions (Unit 1 Transaction).

Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security Agreement and
Assignment of Rents dated as of December 15, 1986,
between The First National Bank of Boston, as Owner
Trustee, and Chemical Bank, as Indenture Trustee
(Unit 1 Transaction).

Filed as Exhibit:

2.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
August 18; 1986.

FQe No.

1-6986

I

28.8 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
November 25, 1986.

28.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
August 18, 1986.

1-6986

1-6986

28. 10 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated November 25, 1986.

1-6986

28.3 to the Company's Current 1-6986
Report on Form 8-K dated
August 18, 1986.

2.1 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 1986.

1-6986

I

28.2 to the Company's Current 1-6986
Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 1986.

F 14



Exhibit
No.w

99.13

99.14

99.15

99.16

99.17*

99.18o

Descrlptloa

Assignment, Assumption and Further. Agreement dated
as of December 15, 1986, between Public Service

Company of New Mexico and The First National Bank
of Boston, as Owner'Trustee (Unit 1 Transaction).

Participation Agreement dated as ofDecember 15,

1986, among the Owner Participant named therein,
First PV Funding Corporation, The First National

'

Bank of Boston, in its individual capacity and as Owner
'rustee (under a Trust Agreement dated as of

December 15, 1986, with the Owner Participant),
Chemical Bank, in its individual capacity and as
Indenture Trustee (under a Trust Indenture, Mortgage,
Security Agreement and Assignment of Rents dated as

ofDecember 15, 1986, with the Owner Trustee),'nd
Public Service Company ofNew Mexico, including
Appendix A definitions (Unit 2 Transaction).

Trust Indenture, Mortgage, Security Agreem'ent and
. Assignment of Rents dated as ofDecember 15, 1986,
between the First National Bank ofBoston, as Owner
Trustee, and Chemical Bank, as Indenture Trustee
(Unit 2 Transaction).

Assignment, Assumption, and Further Agreement
dated as of December 15, 1986, between Public Service
Company of New Mexico and The First National Bank
of Boston, as Owner Trustee (Unit 2 Transaction).

Waiver letter with respect to "Deemed Loss Event"
dated as of August 18, 1986, between the Owner
Participant named therein, and Public Service Company
of New Mexico.

Waiver letter with respect to "Deemed Loss Event"
dated as of August 18, 1986, between the Owner
Participant named therein, and Public Service Company
ofNew Mexico.

2.2 to the Company's Current
Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 1986.

1-6986

28.10 to the Company's
Current Report on Fo'rm 8-K
dated December 17, 1986.

1-6986
II

28.11 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated December 17, 1986.

1-6986

28.12 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 18, 1986.

1-6986

28.13 to the Company's
Current Report on Form 8-K
dated August 18, 1986.

1-6986

FHed as Exhibit: File No.

28.3 to the Company's Current 1-6986

Report on Form 8-K dated
December 17, 1986.

99.19

99.20

Agreement No. 13904 (Option and Purchase of
Effiuent), dated April23, 1973, among Arizona Public
Service Company, Salt River Project Agricultural
Improvement and Power District, the Cities of Phoenix,
Glendale, Mesa, Scottsdale, and Tempe, and the Town
of Youngtown.

Agreement for the Sale and Purchase of Wastewater
Emuent, dated June 12, 1981, among Arizona Public
Service Company, Salt River Project Agricultural
Improvement and Power District and the City of
Tolleson, as amended.

28.19 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1986.

28.20 to Annual Report of the
Registrant on Form 10-K for
fiscal year ended December 31,
1986.

1-6986

1-6986
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One or more additional documents, substantially identical in all material respects to this exhibit, have

been entered into, relating to one or more additional sale and leaseback transactions. Although such

additional documents may differ in other respects (such as dollar amounts and percentages), there are

no material details in which such additional documents differ from this exhibit.

Designates each management contract or compensatory plan arrangement required to be identified

pursuant to paragraph 3 of Item 14(a) of Form 10-K.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

During the quarter ended December 31, 1993, and during the period beginning January 1, 1994 and

ending March 8, 1994, the Company filed, on the dates indicated, the following reports on Form 8-K.

Dated:

August 12, 1993

December 8, 1993

December 15, 1993
s

Piled:

October 15, 1993

January 13, 1994

.February 25, 1994

netsttna to:

Relating to natural gss supply litigation and pricing issues,

refunding activities, sale of 50 MW of San Juan Generating
Station Unit 4 and Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

Framework filing stipulation, S&P's credit ratings, liquidity
facilities, fuel and purchased power cost adjustment clause, a

transmission right-of-way and director resignation

Proposed Sale of Gas Gathering and Processing Assets and

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OP NEW MEXICO
(Registrant)

Date: March 8, 1994 By /s/ B. F. MoNToYA

B. F. Montoya
President and ChiefExecutive Ofhcer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the followingpersons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Stgnature Capacity Date

/s/ B. F. MoNToYA

B. F. Montoya
President and ChiefExecutive Ofhcer

Principal Executive Officer
and Director March 8, 1994

/s/ M. H. MAERKI

M. H. Maerki
Senior Vice President and

ChiefFinancial Ofhcer

/S/ D. M. BURNETT

D. M. Burnett
Corporate Controller and
ChiefAccounting 0+cer

/S/ J. T. ACKERMAN

J. T. Ackerman

/S/ R. G. ARMSTRONG

R. G. Armstrong

J. A. Godwin

/s/ L. H. LATTMAN

L. H. Lattman

/s/ R. U. ORTIz

R. U. Ortiz

/s/ R. M. PRIGE

R. M. Price

/s/ P. F. RoTH

P. F. Roth

Principal Financial Officer

Principal Accounting Officer

Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

March 8, 1994

March 8, 1994

March 8, 1994

March 8, 1994

March, 1994

March 8, 1994

March 8, 1994

March 8, 1994

March 8, 1994
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Public Service Company of New Mexico is the
sole transfer agent and registnr for our common
and preferred stock. As of December 31, 1993,
there were 25,305 registered sltareholders.

Listing:

The common stock of the Company is listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and is also traded
on the Pacific and Philadelphia Stock Exchanges.
A consolidated quote is published in numerous
daily stock tables canied by many newspapers.

The ticker symlml for the common stock is PNM.
The most common newspaper symbol is PSvNM.

Annual Meeting:

Date: April 27, 1994

Time: 930 A.M. (Mountain Daylight Time)
Location: UNM Continuing Education Center

1634 University Boulevard N.E.

Albuquerque, New Mexico

Notice of meeting, proxy statement and proxy
willbe mailed to shareholders with the annual
report on or about March 23, 1994.

For shareholder account irrforrrration,
write or call.

Public Service Company of New Mexico
Attn: Shareholder Records

Alvarado Square —MS 0802

Albuquerque, NM 87158

505) 848-2650- Albuquerque
1-800-545W25 —Other titan Albuquerque

For questions about the Company,
write or call:

Public Service Company of New Mexico
Attn: Investor Relations

Alvarado Square —MS 2720

Albuquerque, NM 87158

505) 848-2477 —Albuquerque
14X-5454425 —Other than Albuquerque

Quarteny High and LowShare Prices

1993 1992

Higb Loru .High Low

First Quarter 12sr 9"+ 117+ 9s

Second Quarter 13>" 11s 13'1
Third Quarter 13~a 10'4 t+ 12 t<

Fourth Quarter 11' t 13 tr2 12

Suspension ofComnron StocL Dirridends

In April 1989, the Company announced the
suspension of dividend payments on the
Company's common stock as a result of a deficit
in retained earnings. For a discussion of the ~

suspension of dividends on the Company's
common stock, please refer to the 1993 Form
10-K which is a part of tlus annual report.



Public Service Company ofNew Mexico

Alvarado Square
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87158


